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Vision

Impactful digital
transformation, responsibly
delivered, at scale.

Revenue

4 62%
to £5] Jm

{FY2020: £215m)

Adjusted EBITDA'

4 87%
to £7 Im

fryunzo e

Adjusted EBITDA Margin

217%
to ]4/0

{Fy2020:32%
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Public Services Revenue

+82%
to £36.5m

(Fv2020: £20.0m)

Cash

106% == ...
£5.7mM¢:.

tCO2e per £Im Revenue

¥ 23%
37.32 «coze

(FR020: 48,81 1CO2e)

Gross Profit

4+ 34%
to £16 Im

17 2m

Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share?

#69%
to6 ]p

(Fen020: 3

Hours Donated

4+ 83%
0 1,654

(F¢2020: 904)
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Letter to Shdreho!uders

Dear shurehoiders,

| am pleased to be Wrtttng to you at the end of |

- an'incredibly challenging yet hugely successful - -
“year for The Panoply. We have seen many

new challenges for our people and clients;

with these continuing to evolve as we moved -

into the second year of lockdown restnctrons

It is with great pride therefore that | can

present to you our Annual Report and results

demonstrating how we have thrived in a ttme

of grec:tt uncertolnty and. Chunge

. 'The Pf"ln'oply Holdmg Plc' is referred to as 'The Panoply
_.throughout thls document T

e panopi/
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I want to acknowledge and thank cur team members,
whose talent, dedication and support are at the heart of
everything we achieve. The Panoply was founded with
commitment to doing business with purpose and making
adifference to the communities in which we operate.

During the pandemic this sense of purpose has been
strengthened as we completed numeraus projects
supporting critical aspects of the coronavirus response.
We are incredibly proud to have delivered a range of
services to support UK citizens during the pandemic,
including work with NHSX, Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy (BEIS), NHS Blood and Transplant
and Camden Council

Alongside our support for clients during the pandermic,
we have placed a strong focus on assisting our team
members We acknowledged the need to support
everyone with their own individual circumstances, putting
our people first in these difficult times.

We also worked hard to beceme a more diverse and
inclusive organisation, making progress in closing

72% of the 18 key gops we have identified across pay,
representation and inclusion scores. We have invested
heavily in properly understanding our environmental
impact, partnering with Emitwise to measure more of our
supply chain that ever before, helping us to get closer to
our goal of neutralising the historic emissions of the whole
business. We continue to contribute to the communities
in which we live and wark. Through our 1% pledge we have
been able to deliver our third Future Leaders incubator
programme, supporting underepresented digital
entrepreneurs.

Our agile, user-centred way of working is perfectly suited
to delivering value in a new way for large organisations
serving the public, These institutions have traditionally
been constrained by legacy technology and processes
that - although designed to mitigate risk - actually
increase the chances of faiture.

Through the combingtion of cloud technologics,
empowaered agile teams and ¢ focus on the user,

we deliver significantly more impact than traditional
approochas to transformation. [t's now possible to deliver
more impact through better outcomes. We have seen the
benefit of fantastic services delivered at speed during the
pandemic. with the right approach we believe this can
become the norm for the public sector as awhole.

As the world around us changes, we must also evolve
and adapt, honing and growing our skills to respond to
our clients’ changing needs. Cur acquisition model is key
to this approach, and this year we welcomed healthcare
transformation specialists Difrent and managed services

company Keep IT Simple Lid {KITS) to The Panoply. In just
three years we have grown from three people to circa
500 employees and 200 contractors, a huge jump
frorn when we started out. Now is the time to make
sure we build upon our success to date and realise the
opportunities ahead. This report explains our ambitious
new goals for 2025 and the changes we're making to
enable us to achieve these goals. These changes wilk
set us up well to become an accredited B Corporation
by 2023, taking our place within a glebal movement of
businesses as a force for good.

Our financial perfarmance underping our commitment to
doing business with purpose. Our revenue increased by
82% this year, adjusted EBITDA, as a medsure of our overdll
financial performance, increased by 87%; and we saw
impressive adjusted diluted earnings per share of &1p. Our
continued growth and success demonstrates the unigue
combination of talent, operating model and purpose

that we have assembled at The Panoply. We deliver
meaningful work that maokes o real difference to our
clients, with our high-performing, agile teams upskilling
and sharing knowledge every step of the way. This is what
enables us to provide value to organisations seeking
genuine benefits frem digital transformation, securing
success both now and in the future.

While we've seen strong organic growth from winning

and delivering interesting work collaboratively across
companies in The Paneoply, our recent strategic review has
also highlighted that our previous brand strategy and the
structural legacies of many rapid acquisitions threaten to
hold us back in the future.

That is why now is the right time to take o bold step to build
upon our successes to date and achieve more.

All UK companies within The Panaply are co-creating

a new, single crganisation. Under one new brand, we'll
market, sell and deliver together, enabling us to radically
improve outcomes for citizens and cemmunities at scale

We know we can deliver impact offectively and efficiently.

Now, we need to organise curselves in a way that supports
us to deliver at scale.

This work is now well underway with a multi-workstream
programme in place. We expect to introduce our new
brand for the first time in Autumn 2021, with all existing
brands fully retired and organisational integration
completed by April 2022,

Thank you for your continuing support

Neal Gandhi [TA
12 August 2021 rea Tano e e, T e Tl
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Playing Our Part

During tho Covid=18 pandemic

Our primary goal from the date when we first identified a risk from
Covid-18 in January 2020 was to maintain employment for our people,
supporting them and their families through this difficult time. In the UK
our trading and balance sheet strength cllowed us to make an early
commitment to not draw dovm on public funas in any way, lecving
this vital support for others in a worse position.

In February 2020, as part of our risk identification and

management process, we agreed on ¢ set of values-led

principles that have guided our decision making during
the pandemic. They were:

To do all we can to retain our talented

-| waorkforce so that post-crisis we are ina
strong position to take advantage of the
economic and social recovery;

To favour the health of our employeas over
2 any client pressure to work on site. To close

offices when we felt the risk to employees was

too great to continue to ask them to come iny;

To ask employees whose roles became

3 termporarily under utilised to volunteer in their
communities to assist in the crisis whilst on full
pay and not to make these team members
redundant;

4 To learn from the 2008/8 financial crisis and
ensure we remained commercially fres by
not taking any government funds, enabling
us to make our own decisions beyond the
pandemic.

the panoply//

We believed that these steps were in the interests of the
wider community, giving much-needed government
support to those companies that were and are facing
significant hardship.

Having identified the business risk early and putting the
welfare of our teams first, in the first week of March 2020
we instigated work-from-home plans two weeks ahead

of UK government instructions. Being a cloud-native
company, the transition was straightforward and we saw
ne loss in productivity during that time. Staff utilisation
remained stable at appreximately 70%.

We are also proud to have assisted in the Covid-18
emergency effort directly. Our work included:

.

Rapid delivery of Covid=1¢ home test ordering service
for NHSX

Building a personal protective equipmenit ("PPE") stock
level dashboard for Nerth East London NHS Trust

Developing a system to bring companies together to
manufacture ventilators

Creating systems and processes for Comden Council
to ensure shislding residents received the assistance
they needed

Supporting the Competition and Markets Authority
via the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial
Strategy to create a system which allows businesses
to be held to account for unfair behaviour during
the crisis.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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In detail: Delivering the UK’s
COVID-19 home testing service

At the start of the pandemic 40% of frontline staff in
NHS organisations were in isclation with unconfirmed
Covid=19 symptoms. NH$X challenged us to deliver a
homae test ordering service increchbly cuickly — frorm
srrifeh Tha alm wvos 10 ensiire tha SeTaTy of key
workers and enable these inisolation to return to wark
faster following negative Covid-19 test results.

Sur dellvery team waos deployed Into ¢ complex mult-
department and multi-vendor effort te deliver Covid-12
FULILI L 5t e,

YWig worked gulckly und within a doy, wa st the
project's goals and KPls, identified who was involved
in the overall programme and their rolefskill sets,
and designed end-to-end user journeys and service
blueprints.

we led a multi-disciplinary, mult-vendor team to take
the idea frem infancy to implementation dand delivared
home testing kits for NHS organisations and key workers
in seven days.

we conducted diary studies, documenting Londlon
Ambulance Service Staff to understand the end-to-end
experience tor staft.

We implemented service analytics, collecting service
performance and user behaviour data, ond iterated
the service using guantitotive and guolitative data
sources such s surveys, user testing, service data and
contact centre logs.

We also set up a dedicated Assisted Digital contact
centre, supporting users with accessibility needs. The
sarvice successfully launched around a month later
far key workers, accepting orders from the wider public
two vweeks after launch,

| SINACOOVY S LHCd3d TeNNNY 1207




Market Overview

PUBLIC SCCTON 8OFTWARE AMDIT SERVICES
BY ACTIVITY?

Operations £6.1Thn

£2.6bn Software £2.6bn

£6.1bn Solutions £2.6bn

+ 28bn

Consnifting £0.7bn

Digital transformation in the time of
Covid-19

The Panoply was created to do things differently. We are
driven by our values, and the belief that business can do
petter — for people and for the planet. Our organisational
model is a direct challenge to those of large, traditional
consultancies, whose ways of working have remained
largely unchanged and are unsuited to providing value
in the digital-first erc.

The UK’s large institutions — across both public and private
sectors — continue to struggle with significant technical
debt, legacy IT systems and cutdoted ways of working that
limit their potential to change. The Panoply helps these
arganisations to tackle their present challenges, building
resilience and adapting to changing circumstances in

the future.

Perfectly placed to respond

In a year that saw significant disruption from Covid-19,
our flaxible operating model, our trusted, multidisciplinary
teams of experts, and our commitment to making a
difference meant we were perfectly placed to take on

the challenge As organisations sought to adapt their
operations for remote work, or launched new products
and services in response to a radically different world,

we had the tools to help.

The Software and IT Services (SITS) markat is worth

an estimated £51.8bn in the UK, with the public sector
comprising £12.1bn of this total. With 75% of our cperations
in the public sector we were well placed to seize the
opportunities of the market as institutions responded
with increased spending to the pandemic.

the panoply//

HERITAGE VS NEW SOLUTIONS*®

Heritage £8.4bn

. FR4hn £3.70n
’ New £3.7bn

The need to keep services running for citizens during
the pandemic - and the catalyst this has provided for
digital transformation moving forward = has produced
a significant market for SITS companies operating in the
public sector.

The Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) for the pullic
sector SITS market is 1.3% from 20M8-20237, of which in 2020
New solutions (Which The Panoply operates in) make up
37%, with Heritage at 62%. By 2023 New is set to overtake
Heritage, accounting for 51% of the market.

Health - as a subsector of public sector SITS - is forecast
to see particularly strong growth from 2019-2023 with a
CAGR of 3.8%". Cur acquisition of healthcare digital service
delivery specialists Difrent in September 2020 enablas us
to take full advantage of this activity, and a market worth
£312m more in 2023 than in 2019. Central government

is another subsactor projected to expand, with a CAGR

of 1.3%, and a market worth £254m more in 2023 than

in 20197,

The UK IT operations market accounted for more than half
{52%) of the total SITS market in 2019, and by 2023 could
be worth as much as £29.2bn™ - or 56% of total UK SITS.

in March 2021, we acquired managed services company
Keep IT Simple (KITS), whose market-leading expertise

in service integration and management will help us

to deliver even more value to large organisations oy
meeting their technology operations needs.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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PUBLIC SECTOR SCFTWARE AND IT SERVICES
BY SUB SECTOR™®

Central £4.9bn

e R22bn

Local £2.2bn

£1.8bn Health £1.9bn

£4.96n Defence £1.8bn
£1.8bn

Education £0.7bn

Police £0.6bn

Doing business responsibly

Another dominant theme of the past year has been
increased awaraness of the issues affecting our pecple,
planet and cemmunities. Calls for racial equality gained
momentum with the rise of the Black Lives Matter
movement and increasingly erratic climate events threw
the environmental crisis into sharper focus

As an organisation founded on values of social and
environmental responsibility, we have welcomed
calls for business to be — and do ~ better. To reflect
our commitment to putting our people, planet and
community first, we are announcing our intention te
become B Corp certified by March 2023,

We make genuine differences in the communities in which
we work and live, with over 160C employee volunteer hours
donated this year, and 1% of dalt our profits given to charity.
We take complete respensibility for our impact on the
planet. We have worked with Emitwise to measure our
entire scope 1, 2 and 3 footprint which is fully offset through
Gold Standard offset projects via Ecologi. We have also
partnered with Rewilding Britain to further their vital work
enhancing biodiversity.

During the Cavid-12 pondemic we have strengthened our
commitment to cur people. As work and home lives have
converged throughout the pandemic, we have supported
our emplayesas with up to £1200 of childecare support in
lockdown, an employees Health and Wellbeing scheme,
and a winter fitness challenge.

Pold e Sac i 2arket rorenas!

TSgurce To bAoAy
Jpvie 2000502

We have closed the gaps in inclusion for
underrepresented employees. We have valuntarily
introduced ethnicity pay gap reporting — exceeding

the expectations of an organisation of our size — and, in
recognition of the specific challenges faced by black
communities in the workplace, decided to measure the
inclusion of our black workforce separately from those of
other minority ethnic groups.,

we continued our bi-annual Future Leaders Programme
supporting young entrepreneurs from underepresented
backgrounds, which this year helped those struggling
due to Covid-18 and included an inclusive BBQ catering
company, a digital vaccine passport business, and a
career development platform for black and minority
ethnic women in the cybersacurity industry.

Ambiticus plans for growth

Over the next year we will continue our model of growth
through acquisition, adding further skills and specialist
focus areas to the business that will enable us to meet a
broader variety of client needs. We expect the rapid pace
of our growth to continue.

If the accelercted forces of change inthis pandamic
year have taught us anything, it is that our organisctions
must rethink their operations, culture, and approach to
technology to survive in a digital-first era. Those who are
digitally native, and who empower and trust their teams,
are positioned to thrive.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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At A Glance

The Panoply

| 'Impcictf'ul' Dig_ital transformation, responsibly delivered, at scale.

The Pqnoply IS0 dlgjtally native technology services The Pariaply now generatss 71% of ravenue from the .
group, at the forefrant of o giewing rmarkot, feousad on .\ puitlig oorvioge ootor, supporting both loaal ﬂnd

sustainablé digitot transformation und posrtwe pur;}osefuf central goverment, the NHS as well as not—furproﬁt
orgarisational chonge S organisations.’

The business has gmwn rapldiy through ucqwsmon with
mare thon 10 businasses chwred since 2018: Organic
like for fike revenue growth' in the year was strong at

19%. We now have circa 500 permanent employees ond
200 contractars, primarily based in the UK, os well as in
Bulguno and Norway
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Revenue by Sector & Sub-Sector

SECTORS

Public

Commaercial

TGP B SUB SECTORS

Local Government
Central Government
Health

% Education

Other public services including;
Housing and Not-for-Profits’

Multiple other Sub-Sectors

ceo oI ;

7%

29%

24%

20%
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Our Model

Ne are a digita! ransformation
busness that helps organisations
transform ana deliver their services 1o
thalr tsars Lsing organisational des'an
and techrology solutions.

How we do it

what makes us different

We belisve on increasingly complex world needs a new
model to achieve high impact outcomes for clients and
their employees and more volug for stakeholders.

We combine the dynamism and agility of smaller, expert
teams with the scale required to confidently address our
clients’ most pressing needs, as they navigate the rapidly
changing nature of society and business.

3. Agility at scale

We make the complex simple at the scale
required, with the agility that our clients deserve

the panoply//
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Commercial Vision

Achigve UK run rate revenue of £102m and
£l2=~£14m run rate TBITDA by Mareh 2023

Deliver 10% to 15% organic revenue growth per
annum

Ensure around 70% of operating profit drops
through into positive cash flow

Impact Vision

Decreasing all 18 gaps identified across pay.
representation and inclusivity.

Measuring and offsetting our historic carbon
footprint entirely

Kickstarting digital careers by recching 1000
unique beneficiaries through community action

. . . ) and community investrment
Delivar progressiva dividand policy at 15% ~ 20% of
net income'

Add more than £35m of revenue through earnings
enhanceing acquisitions

Keep leverage low at below 1 imes run rate EBITDA

Commercial Impact
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4, Dividend

Fy2021 0. 6 p2

(FY2020: nil}

1. Consensus Revenue Forecast

o2 £ 71.2M

7. Women in senior leadership

FY2021 40%

{(7/2020: 28%)

8. Carbonintensity per £1m revenue

Fy2021 37.32 TCO2E

{Fv2020: 48 81iCO2e}

2. Revehue Growth

FY2021 £ 5] .] m

(Fy2020: £315m)

5.Revenue from Acquisition

Fy2021 £ 6 03 m

(FY2020: £6.4m)

9. Careers Kickstarted

FY202) 6 02

(Fvo020: 334)

3. Operating Profit to cash flow

rv2on 106%

(FY2020 g1

6. Leverage®

FY202 0.7

(Fy2020:0.)
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Our Vision for 2025

Hrough the sucoess of 2021 and the
ER2CT IO

de ahead o
completed

sal ey

consolidation of brandis
achiove our tarch 2023 a-

s tmsframe. We recen

3

s financicl and imoact goals
o 2005

Our ambition for March 2025 is to become a top 20
UK public sector supplier, building upon our existing

momentum and track record in delivering public services.

In practice this means generating around £150m revenus
per year from UK public sector wark by this date.

The Panoply was created on the belief that businessas
could and should step up to help governments and
not-for-profits tackle the big issues that are affecting

our communities We do that through the work that we
deliver and also how we operate. Cur impact ambitions
sit shoulder to shoulder with our commercial objectives
we hold ourselves to the highest standards of corporote
governance and are accountabls to all stakeholders, not
just our shareholders.

the panoply /s

Vision for FY25

Commarcial

1 Tobecome a top 20 public sector supplier by March
2025 on run rate basis

2. Toachieve a run rate revenue of £200m (£150m public
sector, £50m Private sector) by March 2025

Deliver 10-15% organic revenue growth per annum

4. To make further earnings enhancing acquisitions to
reet this revenue goal

5. Deliver atleast 70% of operating prefit through to
positive cash flow

8. Deliver progressive dividend pobcy at 15%-20% of
retincoms

Impact

1. Halve the 23 gaps that we have identified across
representation, pay and inclusion for employees from
underrepresented backgrounds

To achieve net carbon zero status

To kick-start 5,000 digital careers, reaching 5,000
unigue beneficiaries through our community action
and community investment programmes

To deliver our 2025 vision we will accelerate our plans
around consolidation, streamlining our focus around the
customer and enabling the business to deliver a much
clegrer integrated value proposition to our clients.

In September 2021 The Panoply will launch a single new
brand, uniting all its businesses and the holding company
under a single name for the first time, We expect to have
fully retired all existing brands by April 2022,

Through this censolidation of brands and internal
functions including implementing new business-wide
finance, HR and preject management systems, the
business wili be positicned to accelerate cur full service
offering to aur clients, by delivering agllity at scale.

This will enhance our competitive positioning as the
only medern, full service scaled digital transformation
company, covering consulting, solutions and operations.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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We are bound together by a collective desire to
radically improve the services that matter to people
and a belief that businesses can and should behave
responsibly and leave a positive legacy.

As our business evolves and grows so should the values that drive us. As we finalise the new
brand to launch in September 2021, we will be developing unified values and behaviours for the
integrated business.

As a people-focussed business, the four values that underpin cur culture are:
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We work together
effectively. We believe that
together we can achieve
and deliver mere and
amplify our imgact.

Agility with trust

We are dynamic, modern,
and agile as well as
professional and safe. we

bring the benefits of a small K ;
; - now we need to bring
business together with the ; people along on this

security lorger busmesses/ N AT E journey.
provide. Al - -

We value difference not just
in gender, ethnicity and class
but in personality, talent and
perspective. It tokes all types
of attributes to make a
great team.

We are bold, challenging
ourseives to be better. We




Case Studies
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B The human factor in th;s WOrk was perhupﬂ even mofre -
 dmportdat hets, ds the repetitive noture of these'tasks -
- wWere severely demotwqtlng staff. By using intélligent -
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Case Studies

continuec)

Supporting local
government
reorganisation

Challenge

We recently supported Buckinghamshire's transition to
a single unitary authority, making sure they were able
ta maintain their service delivery for resicents.

The council delivered the pregramme through their
intarnat toam but rocogniced tha need for suppart
and insight to improve their approach and averall
governance of the change programme.

Approach

We started with o review of the programme’s initial set
HR and plon, revealing areas for improvement. We then
led several crucial projects within the programme that
included reviewing the approach to fees and charging,
rebranding for the new council, the ICT workstream
including access control and the naw intranet.

We coached the council's internal team to enhance
their approach, sharing cur extensive experience in
delivering complex projects and supporting other
unitary programmes. Our advisory role clse included
helping the programme director target rirens wea falf
warg cauge for concern, waorking together o decide
Hpan the baest solution guickly.

1o make sure activity wds prioFitised 1o meet core
deliverables and milestones, we supported the internal
leam tc review their milestonas and dependencies to
keep the workload managecable.

We developed a real-time programme assessment
maode] to show the impact of the slippage versus
the recility of the delivery, broken down to align the
governance structure of the programme. We afso
ran go-live readiness assessments to identify any
operational challenges which may exist on day one,
creating areas of focus for the team.

the panoply

“This project helped establish a new Council,
providing the platform to fundamentally
transform the way public services are
delivered in Buckinghamshire. It was a real
privilege to play a partin helping the councils
to deliver their vision of a single councii to
improve outcomes now and into the future.”

Mike Dearing, Executive Director =
Transformation, The Panoply

With the council's PMO lead, we helped oversee a
successful vesting date os ¢ill other resources were
deferred ontc Covid-18 response. We then warked
with the servico directors to review these cutstanding
deliverables and make sure they were handed over to
business as usual.

impact

Despite the enormity of the change, the new council
successfully went live during Covid-19 with no impact
on the services residents received. The new councit
can now continue on its journay to deliver outstanding
services 1o its resiclents consistently across the county
of Buckinghamshire
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Delivering Growth

=z of Tha Panaply is darivad fire

vk as tnraugh acguisizion.

Accelerating organic growth

Since inception The Panoply has focused on delivering
profitable organic growth, and last year we set the target
of driving 10% 1o 156% organic revenue growth per year
aver the three years to 31 March 2023, with maintained or
improving margins.

We can confidently state that we are on track to achieve

this target, with FY21 organic like for like revenue growth of
18% this puts us well on track to achieve our stated target

and as such we have committed to extending this target
o 2025.

Profitable organic growth is one of cur core values: we
achieve this growth and profit s clients recognise our
value through delivery.

Growth through acquisition

Since IPO in December 2018, The Panoply has completed 12
acquisitions. During FY21 to the end of March 2021 we have
acquired 3 additional companies: Arthurly, Difrent & Keep
IT Simple (KITS).

Not only do they contribute significant revenue and EBITDA
they also provide capability and sector penetration.

Capabilities:
MS Azure Cloud Platform Gold Partner Credentials

AWS Certifications & delivery capaebilities

Run and Manage Live Critical Services

Szctors:
Public Health (Difrent)
utilities (arthurly)

Large Central Government Departrments (KITS, Difrent)

M&EZ Pipeline

Through origination our internal Mé&A team has ;

- ldentified more than 200 target companies

- Made more than 170 contacts with target companies

+  Received 90 respansas, with more than 80 being
positive

the panoply/

ot tres noture of our bushess saes this

+  Held more than 80 introductory meetings with more
than 60 progressing te second meetings

+  Progressed to NDA & RFl stage with more than 50
targst companies, several of which have resulted in
offers being made

Our continuing success has enabled our HSBC revolving
credit facility to be extended twice in this period from £5M
to £7M and now to £20M of which, £7m remains undrawn,

M&A Commercial Vision 2025

M&A will play an important role in helping to achieve our
next milestones for 2025,

The strong M&A pipeline will ensure that a number of
earnings enhancing acquisitions will be completed to
balonce organic growth with acquisitive growth, and
support the delivery of our growth goals.

The Panoply will continue on in its efficient approach for
acquinng and integrating companies. We continue to add
additional capabiity and belster existing capability to our
integrated operations.

We continue to:

- Add further capabilities covering:
— Data enginegering and dota science
- Artificial intelligence and machine learning
= Cybersecurity and security oparations

— Microsoft stack: Azure, Power Platform, Power Apps,
Power Automate, and Office365 & Dynamics CRM

- Amazon Web Services
— Google Cloud Platform
— Devops and Devsecops

= Automation

+  Bolster capabilities that enhance our customer
offering in the public, health and adjacent sectors.

Ensure acquisitions are hot seen as immediate exits
for their founders but incentivised to build long term
sustainable growth through a consideration make-up
that is majority share based.

+  Ensure gcquisitions are immediately earnings
enhancing.

The Panaply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



strong financial fundamentals
profitable (cdjustad EBITDA)

Cash generative - 105% cash conversion
Milestone dividend payment in 2021
Adljusted EBITDA £71m, cash at bark of £57m

Aecess to struotural growth markets

Software & IT Sarvices market worth an estimated
£l Bknin the UK

Public sector comprises £12.1bn

CAGR for the public sectors SITS market is 1.3% from
2019-2023, projecting stable growth for the industry
over the next few years

Heclth sector expected to grow At 3.8% CAGR 10
£2.2bn by 2023

Revenue is 71% public sector, across centrel and focal
government, healthcare and education sectors

A unique, full service proposition for
clients
Cloudfag le native

Deep integrated expertise on every engagement,
cOllalTve strennih

Drives ability to take market share from legacy
cornpetitors

Focused exclusively on new technology rather than
heritage systems

Increasing ability to win larger £3m+ deals and the
accelerated move towards digital transformation
acrass both public and private sectors

Investing for growth

Proven capability to gu cily build competitive
offerings in key areas

Prepared for the move tc conversational Al and
Robotic Process Automation to solve the problems of
legacy technoiogy

Laser focused acquisition strategy

Continuing to targst strategic earnings-ennancing
coquisitions that will add to our capabilities or help
us further strengthen our position within the UK public
services market

In-houss origination and M&A team

Making enly acarctive acquisitions

Management and wider employee
buy-in

with significant stakes in the company and invested in
its purpose

Employees engage through Share Incentive Plans and
Option 5chemes.
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Chairman'’s Statement
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Dihe opportanty

Alongside strong organic growth, we've scaled the
husiness through targeted acquisitions. During the period,
we acquired purpese-driven digital transformation
businesseas Difrent, Arthurly and Keep IT Simple. These
acquisitions have added immediate valua to the
Group, significantly expanding our capabilities and
kolstering us as a key player in defivering these services
to organisations of scale. As a result, we have increased
our position in the public sector and, nctably, grown

our focthold in healthcars, a key target market for the
business.

The pandemic prompted an unprecedented acceleration
of digital transformation during the period, but we

do not expect to see a slowdown in activity as life

returns to normal Quite the opposite, we expect digital
transformation will only become mare important in the
years ahead - as part of o future where organisations

will continually look to refresh and update their existing
capabilities in order to meet the ever-changing needs

of custorners and service users.

Our purpose

Across the business, The Panoply is driven by its sense of
purpose and core focus on delivering sustainable, positive
change for people and communities. In a year which has
seen many areas of the public sector under significant
pressure, our projects have enabled these organisations
to continue providing their necessary services to pecple
across the country. Projects of note include working in
partnership with Camden Council to help Camden and
local public service partners match vulnerable residents
with relevant support during the Covid-19 crisis, as well as
NHS Home Testing. Environmental, social and governance
{EsG) issues are increasingly moving up the agenda and

| am proud to say our long standing commitment to this
field continues to be a key differentiator from many of
our peers.

Frorm Board level down, we are unified by this commitment
to positive impact. To reflect this, The Pancply has setup

a Board-level ESG commitiee to ensure our ESG practices
and the quality of our reporting continues to be of an
excellent standard. Additionally, a further measure taken
during the year is to make our Group CEOs accountable
for ESG metrics, dadicating an equal space and weighting
in monthly board meetings to discussing progress against
nen-financial KPis.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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This yaar we consclidated our Sustainakle Futures work
into three key areas: People; Planet; and Community.

I'm extremely pleased with our performance across all
our Sustainable Futures areas and further detail on our
progress can be found in the Chief Executive's Statement
further below.

In a year that has further brought to light the significant
inegualities and imbalances in the UK and globally,

I'm proud to see the Group has only become more
emboldened in our migsion to tackle these issues
head-on.

Corporate governance

The Group's risk management is up-to-date and
appropriate. The Board continues to assess and rmonitor
the principal risks to the Group and remains cognisant of
the engoing impact of Covid-19 to our end marksts and
stakeholders.

This year the Board established the Environmantal, Social
and Governance Committee (ESG Committee) which is
chaired by Isabel Kelly, and has the primary responsibility
to assist Executive Management in setting the Company’s
general strategy with respect to ESG matters, and to
consider and recommend pelicies, practices, reporting
and disclosures that conform with the strategy:

The Panoply’s Board is commiitted to operating proper
standards of good corporate governance and has
applied the principles set out in the QCA code to the
Group. Post period end we have completed a Board
effectiveness review which whilst receiving positive
results provides us with areas of further focus as we
move forward.

We highly value our shareholders, for whom we are
uitimately seeking to daliver value which has been
achieved with purpose. As a result, we recognise the
importance of keeping all shareholders up-to-date and
engaged, and we remain committed to transparency in
all our corporate communications.

People

I would like to sincereby thank all cur team members

for their dedication and hard work throughout an
unprecedented year It has been an exceptionally testing
time for all, and our staff have truly gone above and
bayond to deliver exceptional work for our clients, stepping
up to the many challenges posed by the pandemic.
I'would also like to extend awarm welcome to all new
team members from Difrent, Arthurly, Keep IT Simple

and Nudge Digital.

Qutlook

while we are beginning to see the light at the end of

the tunnel for the pandemic, the changes te working
practices are here to stay. For an increasing numer of
organisations across the public and private sector, digital
transformation is no longer an abstract term but an
essential and ongoing service. In this context, The Panoply
stands apart from its monolithic competitors as an agile
player that can deliver a growing range of digital projects
at great spesd and with first-class technical expertise.

Wwe continue to strengthen our offering year-on-year
through key hires and strategic acquisitions. With our
strong management team, best-in-class businesses and
a substantial market oppartunity, | remain highly confident
in our ability to fulfill all cur commercial objectives, in
tandern with delivering positive, sustainable change.

Mark Smith
Chairman

12 August 2021
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The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Chief Executive's Review
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Qur teamns have been resilient, determined and innovative
in their work, despite tacing often-difficult working
environments and an unprecedented scale and urgency
of demand from our public sector clients at the coal face
of the crisis. In this way we have proven beyond doubt
our value proposition ~ that small, multi=disciplinary
teams working in on agile way, can deliver incredible
projects that solve real problems and meet real needs.
We are proud to have driven positive, sustainable change
across many public sector organisations which have, in
turn, supported those across the UK in dire need of their
services.

This year saw us grow substantially in scale, with our
headcount growing to 504 at year end (FY2020: 414}, We
are proud to have not fudoughed any staff and provided
full pay threughout the year. We have been mindful of

the greater presence work has played in many people’s
lives in this unprecedented time and have therefore
significantly increased our activities arcund mental health
support and diversity and inclusion, going above and
beyond to support our people’s wellbeing.

Collaboration across the business has become even
closer, with several of our brands having merged into a
smailer number of core, customer-facing brands. This
strategy has proven successful, allowing our teams
across the company to work together on larger and more
impactful projects which points towards further brand
consolidation in the future as we plan to move towards ¢
single brand, simplifying and strengthening our offer to
customers.

the panoply/”/

Alongside our arganic growth, we welcomed three new
companies in tha peried (Arthurly, Difrent and Keep IT
simple), alt of which have so far brought significant value
tc The Panoply. Post-period end, we clso acquired Nudge
Digital, extending our footprint in hadaltheare.

We are proud to have raised our financial expectations
during the year and to have now met these new
expectations. So far, we have also delivered against the
Commercial Vision set out last year, further details of
which appear below. We therefore take this opportunity
to detall additional, further-reaching ambitions below.
The Panoply has an exciting read ahead and we are
committed to moving forwards at speed to capitalise en
the opportunity.

Financial overview

We are very proud of the outstanding financial
performance we have achieved; it is a testament to the
dedication of cur teams and the power of innovative
thinking. We have delivered strong revenue growth, up
62% and adjusted EBITDA up 87%. This was driven by the
full year impact of FY2020 acquisitions and the three
acquisitions made in the year, alongside strong organic
revenue growth of 19%. The statutory loss after tax was
£2.2m (FY2020: £3.0m) The adjusted profit ofter tax, which
we believe enables readers to better understand the
underlying performance of the Group, as it shows the
operational performance excluding one-off non-recurring
iterms and fair value adjustments, showed the full extent
of our growth up 85% to £5.0rm {FY2020: £2.7m). A full
reconciliation of adjusted profit befors tax is shown in the
Financial Review section. Adjusted diluted EPS was up 68%
to8lp

Net cash generated from operations before tax and
including lease payments was £81m, delivering a cash
conversion ratic of 106%. Over the peried, the Group
continued to clesely monitor and mandge its costs ina
prudent fashion. As at 31 March 2021 the Group's financial
position showed retained cash reserves of approximately
£5.7m and a net debt position excluding impact of leases
ot £7.3m (below Ix pra forma EBITDA - being the EBITDA if
all the companies acguired in FY2021 been in the Group
for the full year). Cash generation is expected to remain
strang and the Group has a £20m revolving credit facility
in place with HSBC of which £7m was unutilised as at

31 March 2021.

The Panoply Heldings Ple
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Growth strategy

From incepticn, our vision has been to bring together

a panecply of cempaniss and skills in order to provide

an entrepreneurial, full service capability, delivering
cutcomes to large clients at afraction of the cost and
time of their traditional suppliers. We have also scught
to give our companies the combined balance sheet
that enabled them to win substantially larger contracts
than they would have won had they remained small,
independent companiegs. With four contracts warth more
than £3m won during FY21, versus three in the entire multi
decade collective histories of the acquired companies,
this strategy has proven succeassful.

Whilst FY2021 has been a tremendously successful year,
with like—for-like crganic growth at 19%, we believe that
we can continue to simplify our offer to clients by further
consolidating our business and embracing o single
brand, which we will execute upon during FY2C022. This
naw single brand will focus on our key vertical markets of
central government, local government, healthcare, not
for profits, and commercial sectors, and will offer those
sectors a modern, full service clternative for their digital
transformation needs. This significant change programme
within the Group is already underway and has the full
support of the management teams of all current brands
within the Group. We are sxcited about the opportunitias
for further organic growth that this next phase in our
strategy will bring as we take an integroted change,
axperiance and technology cffer to market.

This change will see us move to a single P&L structure with
a single sales, account management and back office
structure in the UK. It wili also allow us to further leverage
our Fastern Furopean development facility in Bulgaria.

In line with this plan, we have changed our acgquisition
rmaodel, predeminantly remaoving earn outs in order to
facllitate faster integration and encourage better leverage
of the Group's wider resources. This new model was

used for the recently announced acquisition of Nudge
Digital on 30 June 2021 To further support our growth,

we will continue to acquire companies that either add
capabilities or additicnal vertical markets to The Panoply.
Future acguisitions will be on a part cash, part shares
basis to align management’s interests with the long-term
success of the business. Those acquisitions will come from
the UK and, over time, from other countries, as we scale.
As before, acquisitions will be earnings enhancing and

we will continue ta focus on profitable, cash generative
companies that we believe will benefit from the scale
penefits that The Panoply brings, particularly around their
ability to win larger contracts and leverage existing case
studics.

Finally, the acquisition of Keep IT Simple, (KITS), has seen

us lasunch a recurring manoged services offering into
central Government, running live services. This offering
significantly increases our backlog coming into each
financial year, giving us a stronger platform for growth
than ever efore. This is in addition to cur existing recurring
revenues driven by our ccmmercial sector clients.

Overall we are positionad well to drive double digit like=for-
like arganic growth alongside furthar acquisitive growth in
the yearstoc come.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021

23

MAJIATH DIDILTULS | SINNCDOV 9 LHOd3d TVNNNY 1202



24

Chief Executive’s Review

continued

FY2021 Progress against Cormnmmercial Vision
Last year, we laid out our six=step Commercial Vision, which we wanted to achieve over the three years to FY2023.
Below is o summary of our performance against these goals.

the panoply//

Produce 10% to 15% organic revenue growth
per annurm

c.70% of operating profit to drop through
infn positive cash flow to generate
sigrencant cash reserves

To use this rash o set up o progressive
dividend policy for sharehclders at
approximately 15%-20% of net income
(odjusted promt arar tax)

We aim ta use a mixture of positive cash
flowr and our listed shores to make further
earnings enhancing acquisitions to add
more than £35m of revenue

Given avr size rind scale we believe that
liguiaity Is Imporlont und will Lherefore cim

to keep leverage low at below Ix Pro Forma*

EBITDA

Qn this basis wa cim to achigve o run
rote revanue of £100m by Margh 2023 and
daliver £12m-£1dm FRITNDA

1% organic revenue growth

108% OF to cash flow
£51m cash generated from operations
inclisase payrments

Aggregate Dividends of 0.6
9.4% of net income (adjusted profit
after tax)

Made three acquisitions, curnulatively
adding £18.1m of run=rote revenue

Pro Forma Leverage of less than Ix Pro
Formo EBITDA

Consensus analyst revenug
expeclutions for FY22 of £64m
Consensus analyst EBITDA expeactations
of £8.7m

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 13533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



FY2021 Performance against Impact vision

Alongside our Commercial Vision, we have alsc publicly stated an Impact Vision, to achieve by FY2023.
This reflects the equal weighting we give to financial and ESG progress.

Close the gaps that exist in our business hMade progress in
and wider industry. Decreasing pay gaps, closing 72% of gaps™
regresentation gaps and gaps in inclusivity

Leave no Tracs. Measuring and offsetting Invested in software to collect dato and
our historic footorint entirely measure emissions ond offset 1,915 tCO2e

Equip cur Sommuriities with fututepuuf rs kick-started
skills. Kick-starting 1000 digital careers

The Panoply Heldings Ple
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Chief Executive's Review

continued

New goals

On the basis of the progress made to date and with our
continued strong organic growth alongside our pipeline
of acquisition opportunities, we reiterate aur confidence in
reaching our stated March 2023 goals. Therefore, we take
this opportunity to introduce longer term goals to March
2025.

Commerciol Vision for FY2025

. Toachieve a run rate revenue of £200m {(£150m public
sector, £50m commercial sector) by March 2025

2. Todeliver 10-15% organic revenue growth per cnnum

3. Tomake further earnings enhancing acquisitions
to strengthen our offer, achieve greater scale and
support our overall vision

4. Tobecome a top 20 public sector supplier by March
2025 on run rate basis

5 Todeliver 70% of operating profit through to positive
cash fiow

8. Todsliver progressive dividend policy ot 19%-20% of
netincome

7. Todeliver improving EBITDA marging

Impact Vision for £Y25

1. Halve the 21 gaps thot we have identified across
representation, pay and inclusion for employees from
underrepresented backgrounds.

2. To be ontrack te achieve net 7ere status

3. Tokick-start digital careers, reaching 5,000 unique
benefciaries through our community action and
community investment programmes

We believe that our growth strategy, as described above,
will drive us towards these longer-term goals.

Strategic review of the period
From animpressive coliection to onimpreszive
cempany, The next stag on our joumay.

Collaboration has always been key to The Panoply and

we embraced this further during the period through

the continued deployment of Foundry4, FutureGov and
Manifesto as our core full service’ brands. This is part of an
ongoing journey towards structuring the Group in the best
possible way to leverage our strengths, simplify cur offer,
and make the biggest difference to clients.

By bringing our expertise together under these names
we have simplified our value proposition for clients and
allowed The Panoply to win increasingly larger and more
impactful projects. In FY2021 the business secured 4

the panoply//

contracts of a value over £3m, compared with none in
FY2020. Itis important to note that these contracts were
at scale and multi-disciplinary and could only have been
won under these amalgamated brand prepositions.

In addition, we began to centralise some HR and finance
systems & functions to increase efficiencies and unlock
synergies across the business.

Continuing to grew by gcquisition

we completed three major acquisitions in the pericd, all
predominantly in the public sector:

+  Arthurly, o technology services business with
particular strength in the Microsoft technology stack

- Difrent, a digital transformation consultancy focused
on the healthcare sector

Keep IT Simple, a provider of high value IT support
and transformation services, predominantly to pubhc
sector clients

Thanks to the highly complementary nature of these
acquisitions they have integrated well into the Groug and
all have generated significant revenue. For example, two
recently won contracts were only possible 1o win because
of the capabilities added to the Group via the acquisition
of KITS. Furthermare, the acquisiticn of Difrent has given

us o strong footheld in the growing healthcare sector with
healthcare revenues now representing 9% of total revenue

We are now in @ position to affer an even more
comprehensive end-to-end offering to our clients,
ranging from consulting and sclutions through to ongoing
operations.

Acquisition remains a key tenet of our strategy and we
have o number of potential opportunities in the pipeline.
Proving ou: value position for the public sector

Across the year we have continued to build our public
services base with 71% of revenue in the year from this
sactor {FY20: 84%). This was ganerated frorn a wide range
of projects ranging from hyperscale cloud migration
programmes through to high level organisational change
initiatives. New client wins in the year include NHS Business
Services Authority, NHSX, Planning Inspectorate and HM
Land Registry.

In addition, we have furtner built our capability in its sub-
sectors, building a book of reference case studies and a

burgeoning reputation acress central government, local
government and healthcare.

We have proven the value of our proposition by working on
significant projects with public services clients, showing
them that small groups of experts can deliver results.

The Panoply Holdings Flc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Example projects include:

- Supporting the NHS Busingss Services Authority to
deliver its digital transformation agenda and digital
health delivery overseas

«  Assisting the Planning Inspectorate to deliver its
planning appeals service into Beta

- Working with HM Land Registry as partners inits
digital transformation programme and digital service
developrnent

+  Enabling local authorities acress England to access
the £3.6bn levelling up’ Towns Fund alongside
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government

Robust, recuring parformance in commercial sector

29% of revenue came from the commercial sector in the
period and it continues to be a very impaortant sectar to
the Group. Of that approximately two-thirds is recurring
revenue from clients such as News UK, Funding Circle,
Cargilt and Dow Jones. The roster of recurring revenue
clients is mainly made up of large-scale corporates.

One example of our commercial work is a project
undertaken for Dow Jones. The successful set-up of the
team of News UK, ancther company of the Noews Corp
Group and current client of the Group, supported the
choice of The Panoply as a strategic partner for the
planned growth of Dow Jones. Threugh the collaboration,
The Panoply helped build a high-performing tech unit that
acts as an extension of Dow Jones’ core techinology team,
supporting this team in the development of distinguished
web and mobile applications, APls and data feeds.

Digital transformation market

The past year has shown organisations of all types and
sizes that it is possible to implement digital transfermation
rapidly and at a reasonable price. Beyond this, it has
shown exactly how much of animpact implementing
these kinds of programmes can have.

Last year we stated our belief that the impact of

the pandemic will be to accelsrate widespread
understanding and demand for our services. We have
now seen this borne out Itis becoming increasingly
recognised that a small, but skilled, multid:sciplinary team
can be trusted to deliver. This can be done across even
the most complex projects.

The Software and IT Services 'SITS market in the UK is
warth £61 8bn, of which the public sector is £121on The
public sector SITS market has previously revolved around
the drag of large legacy deals provided by heritage
suppliers. However, this balance is changing in favour of
new, ogile suppliers that have the people and resources

to deliver agile at scale. Agile now represents £37bn of
the total £12bn value, up 18.6% year on year. With digital
transformation being a continuous process and that
requires engoing investrment this represents an exciting
opportunity for The Panoply, which we believe is one of the
only truly digitally native and also full-service players.

Current trading and outlook

The business has had an extremely strong start to FY2022,
and has already completed another acquisition, which
we believe reflects the growing reputation we are building
within our target markets. In Q1, we signed approximately
£18.6m in new contracts, a record quarter A number of
wins have been made possible by the Group being able to
leverage the capahilities brought to us by the acquisition
of KITS in March 2021

Coming into the current financial year, we had a
confirmed backleg deliverable in the year, including
annualised recurring revenue, of approximately £39m.

Ql bookings have added approximately £16.5m in further
recognisable revenue in FY2022, taking the total revenue
plus backlog to £55.8m, with three guarters left to go. Ql
trading continues to deliver revenue growth at above our
targets of 10%-15%.

As aresult, the company expects revenue and EBITDA
for FY2022 to be significantly ahead of current market
expectations and for us to deliver analysts” expectations
for FY2023 in FY2022

This year we will continue to focus on delivering against
our commiercial and impact vision, through cur strategy
of consclidation to a single brand and ¢ single P&L
driving further arganic growth and continued earnings
enhancing acquisitions.

- Against our 2023 commercial vision of 10% 10 15%
organic revenue growth per year, we gained 19% in
FY2021, we will continue to target this growth and profit
as clients recognise our value through delivery.

+  Since IPC The Panoply has acquired 12 businesses
with the latest post period Gequisition of Nudge Digital
Limited increasing this to 13. These acquisitions have
provided the abilty to grow at a substantial pacs,
whilst providing the access to growing markets and
incredible talent.

Looking ahead, itis clear the demand for digital
transformation services continues at full pace. As
our reputation grows and our capabilities continue
1o strengthen and diversify, | am confident we are
well-positioned to take advantage of the significant
opportunities ahead acrass our target markets.

Neal Gandhi ﬂ/ﬁ
Chief Executive Officer  rea'Garar a.z 5,30 5 0wl
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We continued to see a large amount of repeat business
from customers, with 67% of custormers billed in FY2021 also
billed in FY2020. Most excitingly we have seen an increase
in the scale of the contracts we are now winning as o
result of the combined services of The Panoply including
four decils over £3m up from just three in the combined
multi decade history of the individual companies prior

to acquisition.

Gross margins were at 32% against 38% in the pricr year.
The reduction was driven by a change in the makeup

of the services that we provide, with growth in our
managed services and recurring business. This has seen
us add significantly 1o our backlog for FY2022 which
stood at £39.0m (FY2020: £15 0}, Gross margin has also
beenimpacted by some Covid-19 recruitment scaling
challenges, exacerbated Ly our top line growth, which
rmeant that we had anincreased reliance on contractors
at higher rates than full time employees. The Panoply has
now reached a scale where we can address this through
our newly centralised HR function and greater hiring of
permanent employees As a result, we anticipate an
improvement in gross margin moving forward

the panoply/”

Adjusted EBITDA was £71mup from £3.8min FY2020
representing an increase of 87%. statutory EBITDA was
£1.8m, up frorm a less of £6.8m in FY2020 representing an
increase of 400%. Adjusted EBITDA margin was 14% up
from 12% in the prior year. The increase in margin is mainly
driven by PLC costs remaining largely flat as we continue
to scale. In addition, we have seen a reduction in certain
overheads as a result of Covid-19.

The statutory loss after tox decreased by 27% to £2.2m
{(FY2020: £3.0m). The Directors believe that an ‘adjusted
profit before tox’ measure is more representative of

the underlying performance of the Group. To arrive ot
adjusted results, adjustments made include acquisition
expenses, amortisation related to acquired intangibles
and share-based payments and the impact of fair value
adjustments along with the corresponding tax impact of
the adjustments.

The fair value adjustment reflects stronger than forecast
performance of the Group companies and amortisation
is a charge that does not reflect the underlying
performance or prospects of The Panoply.

The following table summarises the adjustments:

Fy2020
£ 000
Statutory loss before tax {2140
Amortisation of intangible
assets relating to acquisitions 2,458 1558
Loss from fair value movement
in contingent consideration 4,260 3,764
Share-based Payments 294 129
Costs relating to acquisition
and restructuring 748 591
Adjusted profit before tax 5,913 2,802
Tax (including impact of
amortisation and costs relating
to acquisition and restructuring
adjustments} (sog) (230)
Adjusted profit after tax 5,015 2,672

As a result of the acquisitive nature of the Group and its
use of shares as consideration, the Directors believe that
an adjusted share count for the purposes of calculating
earnings per share 1s required. As such the Directors

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



calculate an adjusted diluted share number by taking
the weighted average basic shares and including the
maximum shares to be issued in respect of contingent
consideration to be paid based on performance
measures met in the period, together with the maximum
share opticns cutstanding. The following table
summgarises the adjustments:

FYZ202
£'000s
Weighted average basic
shares 53,784 48,162
Shares relating to future
contingent consideratian 13,728 22774
Shares relating to
Share-based payments 1,436 3,885
81,948 74,82
Adjusted diluted earnings
per share {pence} 61 38

Based on these alternative non-GAAP measuras the
business achieved adjusted profit after tax of £5.0m
(FY2020: £2.7m) resulting in ad)usted diluted earnings per
share of 61p (FYz020; 3‘6p}. The statutory loss per share for
the period wos 3.5p (FY2020: 83p loss).

Cash Flow and cash conversion

Net cash generated from opearations before tax and
including lease payrments was £51m. Cash cornversion,
calculated by reference to the adjusted profit before

tax but after deducting costs relating to acguisition and
restructuring was 106%.

In total, cash increased in the year from £4.6m to £67m
but net debt excluding the impact of IFRS 16 leases
increased from £0.4m to £7.3m as a result of payments
made for acquisitions completed in the pericd. The cash
censideration for the acquisitions was £18.5m, with £2.8m
being funded frorn the Group's cash reserves, £5.9m
funded from cash acquired and £8.0m funded through an
extended revelving credit facility put in place during the
year with HSBC. The net debt position at the year end was
significantly below Ix Pro Forma £BITDA.

HSBC have extended their revolving credit facility with The
Pancplyto £28m. £13m has been drawn down in total for
acquisitions n FY2028 and FY2021 leaving the Group at
the year end with a further £7m to draw down for further
acquisitions. This together with cash flow generated

from operations provides a strong basis to continue our
acquisitive growth into FY2022.

Balance Sheet

Intangible assets have increased significantly in the year
as a result of the acquisitions completed

Total deferred consideration at 31 March 2021 was £12.2m,
of which £10.8m relates to deferred consideration where
performance obligations ware met In the period (further
detoils set out below) We continue te note that thisis o
liability that will be satisfied through the issue of shares
and not through cash. Once this is removed, the Group's
current ratio at the year end was 18 (FY2020:17) providing
solid liquidity.

Dividend

Following initiation of our first intenm dividend the Board
are pleased to announce a final dividend” of G.4p per
share subject to approval at the AGM. The proposad final
dividend, if approved by sharehoelders, will be payable

on 1 Qctober 2021 to all sharehelders on the Register of
Members on 24 September 2021, This will take the total
dividend paid to shareholders in respect of FY2021 to 0.6p
per share,

Additional consideration

As a result of the streng performance of Group companies
during the current and prior period, further consideration
is payable and will be satisfied through the issus of new
ordinary shares. As at 31 March 2021, the total value of
consideration that is payable based on FY2021 accounts is
£10.8m, resulting in maximum further shares to be issued
totalling 13.7m which reduces to 3.8m based on the closing
share price as at 2 july 2021,

value
£°0005

Oliver Rigby :
Chief Financicl Officer  ©. »~
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Sustainable futures

Environmental, social
& governance report
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ESG Report

Sustainable futures

Weveai o cadd the
canntiny, auabt s and e

EaTs ramorting.,

our non-financicl KPls track the progress we're making
in building sustainable futures for our people, planet
and community.

We align our sustainable futures strategy with the UN
sustainable Development Goals that we feel we are best
aple to contribute towards. We focus on SDG8 ‘Decent
Work and Economic Growth' and have identified the
targets 81, 8.4, 85 and 8.6 as priorities.

llar heies

Dignity and equalily
Dignity and equality

Black SLT representation

SEB inclusion score gap

We used the World Economic Forum's (WEF) standard for
consistent ESG reporting to identify the recommended
metrics aligned with these targets The WEF released a
white paper in September 2020 to develop a core set of
common metrics and disclosures on non-financicl factors
for investors and other stakeholders. This framework
incorporates all of the major existing ESG standards and
splits the metrics into four pillars; principles of governance,
people, planet and prosperity.

This table shows where you can find each metric, as
described in the WEF framewaork within the ESG repert. It
alse shows which SDG each mstric relates to and which
standard we have used to capture the data.

the panoply//

Dignity and equality
Dignity and equality
Dignity and equality
Dignity and equality
Dignity and eguality
Dignity and equolity
Dignity and equality
Dignity and squality

Dignity and equality

Dignity and equality

Dignity and equality

Dignity and equality

Dignity and equality

Disckility inclusion score gap
Disablity SLT representation
Employee inclusion score
Ethnicity pay gap {mean)
Ethnicity pay gop {median)
Fermale SLT representation
CGender inclusion score gap
Gender pay gap (mean)
Gender pay gap (median)
LGBT inclusion score gap
LGBT SLT representation

Minarity sthnic Inclusion score

Minority ethnic SUT
representation

et PRI Pugs
GRI 405-1b 8% 2% 42

GRI405-1b 8.5 1% 43

GRI 405-10 85 3% 43

GR] 405-1b 85 6% 42

GRI 405-1D 85 B5% 43

GRIN02-38 BDH 4% 46

GRI102-38 85 0% 46

GRI 405-1b 85 40% 42

GRH405-1k 85 0% 43

GRI102-38 85 16% 46

GRI102-38 85 19% 45

GRI405-1b a5 1% 43

GRIA05-1b 85 13% 42

Qap GRI 40510 85 13% 43
14% 42

GR1405-1b

8%

The Panoply Heldings Plc

Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Reporting S0G See
Thorrmo hiCtro stanaard  Targset Fi0e Page
GRI 408-1b,
Dignity and cquality Modern slavery audit GRI 4081 87 - 47
Dignity and equality Modern slavery statement 87 - 47
Overall minority ethnic
Dignity and equality representation GRI 405-1b 85 13% a2
Dignity and equality Overall black representation GRI 405-1b 85 3% 42
Dignity and eguality  Overall disability representation GRI 405-1b 85 6% 42
Dignity and equality Overcll female representation GRI 40%-1b 85 48% 42
Dignity and equality Cverall LGBT representation GRI 405-1b 85 12% 42
"GRI 202-1,
Adopted from
DoddFrank Act,
US SEC
Dignity and equality wage level % (CEO:Median} Regulatons” 85 471 72
Health and % employees participating in Adapted from
well-being well-being programmes GRI:2018 403-20 88 80% 40
Health and
well-being Employee satisfaction score 85 78 40
Health and
well-being Employee wellbeing score 85 7.4 40
GRI2013
Health and 403-9akb,
well-being Injuries and Fatalties GRI1.2018 403-6o 88 0 40
Percentage of employees
Heaglth and that are contractors
well-being or temporary staff 88 24.81% 72

Climate Change
‘?['T,Pt@ Changs
Climate Change
Climate Changs
Climate Change

Climate Change

Frashwater
avallability

Nature loss

Carbon offset total

Energy Intensity ratio
(per £Im revenue)

Energy Intensity ratio (per FTE)

Reduction of energy
consumption

Scope 1 emissions

Scope 2 emissions

Scope 3 emissians

Water consumption
Land use and ecological
sensitivity

GRI3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI 3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

ORI 3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI 3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI 30513, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol
SASB CG-HP140al,
WRI Agueduct
water risk

atlas too

GRI 304-1

84 19151CC2%e 53

84 , 37.32tC0%e 51
84 431002 ol
8_4 20.9tC02e B 751
8_4 6.4tCO2e , 5l
g4 , "”723 5tC02e 51
8.4 '\7,7"537785 tCo2e o 51
il IR
84 - 53

The Panaply Haldings Plc’
Company number: 10533096
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ESG Report

continued

Thomo

Pitlar

Ethical behaviour
Fthical behaviour

Governing
purpose

Protected
ethics advice
and reporting
mechanisms

Quality of

governing

body

Risk and opportunity
oversight

Stakeholder
engagement

Community and
social vitality

Cammunity and

Community and
social vitality
Community and
social vitality

Employment and
wealth generation

Employment and
wealth generation

Employment and
wealth generation

Employment and
wedalth generation

social vitality

tlotro

% people rained in anti-
cerruption

Number of corruption incidents

Slated purpose

Protected ethics advice and
reporting mechanisms

Governance body composition

Disclosure of risks

Material issues impacting
stakeholders

Careers kickstarted
Cormmunity Investment total

Comunity Action hours

Tax paid

Share buybacks + dividends
Employee wurnover

Employee wages and bensfits

Employment and
wealth generction
Employment and
wealth generation
Employment and
wealth generation

the panoply//

New jobs
Operating cosls

Revenue

Repattl

stope

GRI 201-1

Adapted from GRI
2011

As referenced in
1AS 7 and US GAAP
ASC 230

As referenced in

145 7 and US GAAP
ASC 230

GRIA0-10&Db
GRI 2011
GRI 401-1a&b

GRI 2011

Gee

7235 “agn

88 - 97
88 - 97

B 781 o - 7786
s
85 - 84
8.8 - 75_
88 - 78

B 886 268 5¢
. 8&1 _ £33,930 5¢
78.6 ) 1,654 57
78.1 - ‘57341,?28 132

- E}] - ,,E{I,G'S]Q nz
81 £138,445 n

8;1 o l§.46% 40
oM 81 eamon iz
LN
) EW £44,084,331* IQG
81 £51,145,880 28

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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Thame beonz yil fago
Employment and
wedalth generation Worforce Growth GRI 401-1a&b 81 53% 3¢
Innovation of better
products and % revenue from controversial
services clients 81 18% 73
Innovation of better Number, type and impact of
products and physical and technological
services legacies a2 - 66
Innovation of better Significant indirect economic
products and  impacts, including the extent of
services impacts 8.2 - 66
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ESG Report

Sustainable futures

Sustainable futures
for our people.

We are closing the gaps that exist in
our business and wider industry.

Decreasing pay gaps,
representation gaps and
gaps in inclusivity.

While contributing to SD6G:

8.5 Decent, equal work opportunities for all

We will get there by implementing:
Employee wellbeing initiatives
Diverse recruitment processes
Employee inclusion networks

wellness activities

the panoply//

Sustainable futures
for our planet.

We are leaving
no trace.

Medsuring and offsetting
our historic footprint
entirely.

While contributing to SDG:

8.4 Decoupling economic growth from
environmental degradation

We will get there by implementing:
Carbon reduction strategies
Carbon meosurcment programmeoes
Carbon offset partnerships
sponsoring ecological regeneration

Green incentive schemes

The Panoply Haoldings Pl
Company number: 10533046
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Sustainable futures
for our communities.

We dre equipping our communities
with future-proof skills.

Kickstarting 1000
digital careers.

While contributing to SDG:

8.6 Youth education and training

We will get there by implementing:
Future Lleaders programme
Other volunteering activities
Donating 1% of pre-tax profit

Donating 1% of employee time

Sustainable futures
through prosperity.

We are delivering
impactful work.

Radically improving the
services that matter.

While contributing to SDG:

8.1 Sustainable economic growth

We will get there by implementing:
Targeted client origination

Embedding impact targets within our M&A
practice

Ethical ways of working

37
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ESG Report

People continued

e Rid -

People

Closing the gaps that exist in our
business and wider industry

We cre working to ensure
sustainable futures for all of
our people through ¢ focus
on employee wellbeing &
satisfaction and workforce
diversity, inclusion

& equality.

the panoply//

Never have these issues been more
important. The past year has tested
us all, blurring the lines between
home and work in a way we have
never seen before.

Employers have had to take greater
accountability for the mental

and physical wellbeing of their
employees. The world is finally
beginning to wake up to the need to
tackle systemic inequalities. As the
headlines move on, we must ensure
that our commitment to addressing
these issues does not waiver.

The Panoply Haldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements fer year ended 31 March 2021
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DIVERSITY & INCLUSION

We made progress in closing

o of our gaps**

#*Based on Yoy progress against 18 gaps across repres‘entatioh,
pay aninclusivity




ESG Report |

People continued

and The Panoply is the most
socially and environmentally
aware dnd the most inclusive
for gender and ethnic
Background so i am proud to
be asseciated with it

Anonyimous, from our Diversity &
Inclusion survey

1. Employee wellbeing & Satisfaction

As an impact driven prefessional services business

wea undearstand that our biggest asset and our biggest
impact lies with our people. We are investing in the
rental, physical and financial wellbeing of our staff. The
Panoply pays all staff above the living wage and delivers
a programme of culturally relevant welibeing initiatives
which were accessed by 80% of our workforce last
financial year.

we are a low risk business in terms of occupational health
and safety issues and had no reported serious injurias or
fatalities at work last year.

We measure the wellbeing and satisfaction of our
employees regularly through ancnymous surveys. This
year, employees scored their satisfaction as 7.6 out of

10 on average and their wellbeing as 7.4. This was a
margnal improvement of last year's results of 75 and 7.2
respectively. Our annual employee turnover was 18.46%.

EAF

The Panoply provides free access to an Employee
Assistance Programme (EAP) for all UK employees. We
provide the EAP as a confidential employee resource
designed to help our people to deal with personal and
professional problems that could be affecting their hame
life or work life, health or general wellbeing.

the panoply//

‘I work with several companies

Wellness Wednesdays

During the first lockdown we introduced Wellness
Wednesday events. We invited expert speakers once a
rnonth to speak to employees about their physical and
mental health. Some examples of sessions that tock place
are. Food for Mental Health, Nutrition & Gut health and
Managing Stress.

Fitness Challenge

The challenge was designed to focus on boosting
employees’ physical activity after the Christrmas holidays.
It aligned with the UK's third national lockdown and helped
employees te get outside and get moving during a time
of isolation. The Group clocked up a total of over 666,000
steps over the course of two weeks

F

Steps over
two weeks

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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2, Diversity, inclusion and Equality

The Panoply strives for equality of opportunity for all, at
every level of the business. It is our responsibility to reflect
the richly diverse cormmunities that we serve and to be
accessible to people from all backgrounds. Not only do
we believe that this is the right thing to do, we believe
that diverse, inclusive teams are higher performing and
better for business. That 1s why we have put in place
rigorous review processes to report on our progress and
performance.

We have made some excellent improvernents this year,
making progress in closing 72% of the gaps that we
measure, but we are aware we still have a way to go.

We will continue to ansure that the quantity, quality and
frequency of our D& reperting is best in class. We will
continue to be totally transparent about our results and
cur progress. Not only doaes this help us hold ourselves (o
account, we hope that it inspires others to acknowledge
and address the issues that exist within our industry and
start their own journeys towards equality of opportunity.

we are proud of the inclusive culture at The Panoply and
the range of talent that we attract, particularly for a tech
group of our size in an industry not known for diversity. We
intend to help change the compaosition of the tech sector
by continuing to roise the standards of our D&l initiatives,
raising awareness of issuées and investing in a pipeling of
diverse talent.

EMPLOYEE WELLBEING

p Borm F20 Ty20e

D&l report
Headlines

We are a more divarse groups at al
levels of the business than we were 12
months dgo

Inclusivity scores have remained high
and steady

Participation and disclosure rates
remain lowel than we would ke

W narrowed almost all of the
inclusivity gaps, closing the aap
between menfwomen and low incoma
armployces entirely

We must do more to tackle ethinic
edudlity as plock and mixed race
employees still do notieel us included
in the workplace

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

People continued N

Diversity at The Panoply
Senior Leadership

women " Minority ethnic “ Black
(Fy2020r 30%) (FY2020:12%) {ry2020: 0%)
Gap Gap Gap

FY2020 1% | FY2020 5% FY2020: 8%
Y2021 10% Fv2021 13% 28 o FY2021: 6%

Disability

(FY2020: 0%) (FYonooe 7%)
Gup Gap

FY2020 16% 2020 -5%
FY2021. 10% g : FY2021 -10% B

Overall Representation

Women o mlnorily ellmic Gleielit
(FY2020: 47%) (FY2020: 13%) (Fy2020: 3%)
Gap Gup Gap

FY2020 3% | FY2020. 14% FY2020. 6%
FY20210 2% FY2021. 14% FY2021 5%

Disability LGeT

)

(Fy2020: 3%} (Fy2020: 8%
Gap Gap

FY2020 13% ! FY2020 6%
FY202% 0% 2 FY2021 -9%

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Inclusion scoras by employee category

2020 Gap 2021 Gap  Lowsstinclusion scores
Gender 4% 0%
Socio Economic . o
Background 2% 1%
Disability 15% 3%
Sexuality 5% 1%
Ethnicity 12% 1% [
Disclosure;

73% of our employees participated in our 2021 D&l survey,
dewn from 76% last year. For pay gap analysis, 92% of
employccs have disclosed their gender and 82% have
disclosed their ethnicity. We can only report on the data
that we have and therefore acknowledge that we have
work to do to engage our employees in this work and
improve disclosure rates.

Diversity:

We believe that diversity is both a cause and a
consequence of inclusive environments which is why it is
s0 important that we continue te track how diverse and
representative our workforce is.

We measure overall representation and senior
representation {top pay quartile) for employees from

the following categories; women, minority ethnic, Black,
disabilities, LGBTGI. We work out the gap by finding the
difference to community representation. We work out
community representation by using UK government
dernographic data. Where the data is avallable and likely

10 be different (race and LGBTQI data) we use the midpoint

between UK and london demographic data

Highest inclusion scores

fnclusion:

Our priority is building inclusive environments that work
for everybody which is why our D&l reporting focusses so
much on how included and accepted employees feelin
the workplace.

Inclusivity scores have remained high and steady this
year despite the obvious challenges that we have
faced with a brand new way of working.

We work out inclusivity sceres tased on the average
responses from inclusivity indicators asked within the
D&l survey. These questions and methodolegy are
based broadly on Kantar's Inclusivity Index.

We have made some really encouraging progress this
year in closing our inclusivity gaps. In particular, there is
no distinguishable gap between how women and men

feel at The Panoply or how included employees feel based

on their sccio-economic background.

The exception s the gap between white employees and

employees from ethnic minority backgrounds. Despite the

gap closing for black employees, the gap between mixed
and multiple race employees has widened.

inclusivity Scores

(FV2000 & FYD00D

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

‘People continued

Percentage ot empioyees who agreed with the following comments
by enmiployes category

100%
80%
60%

40%

0%

Black White Asian Minarity ethnic Mixed/ Mult ple . Hetrosexual

The Panoply Holdings Flc
the panoply/ Company number. 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



LGBIQI

Women

nisability

No Lower 52B Upoer/ mddle
Cisabil ty SEB

86%

of peopte agreed or strongly agreed
with the comment

I believe people of

all identities can be
successful at this
company

Cown from 87% in FY2020

The Panoply Holdings Flc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

' Peop Ie continued

Pay distribution by gender

LIppsr
Upper Middle
Lower Midclle
Lowear
0% 5% 50% 7% 100%
HEMcle @\Femate W Undsclosed
Equality:

Inclusion and representation are not far enough. We want
to make sure that employees have equal access to equity
within the business which is why we have introduced

quarterly pay gap reporting for both gender and ethnicity.

our mean pay gadp has stayed the same this year with the
median gap increasing from 17% to 19%. This is in part due
to acquisitions in the period that have not been as diverse
in terms of gender as we would like. We are warking with
these businesses to attract more female talent and also
including diversity in our M&A due diligence process

Pay distribution by ethnicity

Uppor

Upspen W1

Lower Middle

Loaen

0% 2a% S0% 9% Woxn

B Whits % Asion BBlack = Mixed Otner B Undisclosed

This is the first time we have published our ethnicity pay
gap. In general, we are pleased with the results however,
we dre awdre that we have more work to do to have mare
black and mixed race representation in particular at
senior levels within the business.

Equal to 159 in FY2020

Up f!’Om 17% In FY2020

the panoply//
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Qufr commitments:

1. We arelaunching Employee Resource Groups
(ERGs) to act os safe spaces for employees frorm
underrepresented backgrounds to share expericnces
and ideas about how we can close seme of the gaps.

2. We are introducing quarterly pay gap reporting for
both gender and ethnicity to ensure that we do not
lose momenturm.

3. Wwe hove signed the Tech Talent Charter and will be
helping to drive diversity and inclusion within the tech
sector in a measurable way.

Diverse pipalines

We understand that these issues cannot be solved
avernight. Inequalities are often founded on generations
of systemic prejudice and that we need to take along-
term view to achisve true equality of cpportunity. That is
why we are investing in a pipeline of diverse talent. This
year we have run code-clubs, mentored students, run
careers sessions and interview skills sessions. We have
sponsored a student who has ambitions to be an engineer
through an Arkwright Scholarship and have continued to
deliver the Future Leaders programme, running a 9-week
incubator for minarity cwned businesses. More on this on
page 60.

3. Human Rights

At The Panoply, we have a zero-tolerance approach to
modern slavery and are fully committed to preventing
slavery and hurmnan trafficking in our operation and supply
chain. We have taken concrete steps to tackle modern
slavery, as outlined in our Modern Slavery Staternent
staterment

In the past year, we conducted arisk assessment of the
capacity of the organisation to manage and prevent the
risks of modern slavery based on gov.uk MSAT framework.
As part of the framework we also conducted a risk
assessment mapping of our supply chain by taking into
occount:

+  Therisk profile of individual countries based on the
Clobal Slavery Index

The business services rendered by the suppliers
+  The presence of vulnerable demographic groups

+  Highrisk sectors that it works with personnel services
{e.g. cleaning service suppliers)

In addition to this, The Panoply includes Modern Slavery
Training as part of the onboarding material far any new
member of stoff and has a Whistleblowing Policy that
encourages all employees, customers and suppliers

to report any suspicion of slavery or human trafficking
without fear of retaliation.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number; 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report cosuni}

Picinet continued

Planet

Leaving no trace

We are working to decoupie The climate and ecological crises
oL CONOIC \7"{ wowlh from are the two mostimportantissues
x facing our species. The complex
Pvrormental oo H(i(]’ 1o nature of both the causes and
NEasLing ted u‘ IHU solutions represent an unmissable
opportunity to rethink our timpact,
_ renew our health, reinvigorate
S o our relationship with nature and
ciles it rebalance our economy. Businesses
like The Panoply have a responsibility
to take a lead on tackling these
a8 issues head on.

')z{{

SMmerQency.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply// Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021






1. Reducing company impact

The most important part of our environmental approach
is to reduce the negative impact we have on the planet.
There are three stages; mcasure our carbon footprint,
actively reduce the emissions we're respensible for and
offset what can't be reduced.

tMeasiring out carbon footprint

We have built on the megsurements we made in

FY18/20, and are now taking ownership of all of our
carbon emissions; scope 1, 2 and 3, both upstream and
downstream. This includes business travel, employee
commuting, remote working and purchased goods and
services.

We have invested significantly in expertise and technology
by partnering with Emitwise to identify all of our emissions
This means the carbon footprint we have calculated is

as detailed and accurate as possible. It is based on the
data from our finance and expenses systems, a survey
completed by 60% of cur employees, our utility bills and
available data from our [andlords, waste collectors and
maintenance contractors.

This has resulted in a carbon footprint of 1,515 tonnes of
CO2 equivalents (KC02e). This equates to 4.3 tCO2e per full
time employee and 37.32 tCO2e per £1 million of revenue.

the panoply//

our scope 1and 2 emissions are 1.5% of our total emissicons,
meaning our scope 3 emissions make up 88.5% of our
total emissions.

. 5 - -
Sooe H . 3

Percentage
of emissions

88.5%

0.3% 2V

This everwhelming majority in scope 3 is indicative of our
type of business but is more pronounced than some of
our peers because we have calculated our full upstream
and downstream scope 3 emissions. Of particular note is
our purchased goods and services making up 89% of our
total emissions, and cur employee commuting emissions,
which make up 7% of our total emissions.

Because of the vastly increased scope of cur
medsurements this year, combined with the complete
lack of business travel, comparing this figure with the
figure we published last year is unhelpful. Therefore, to
gst a better understanding of our carbon footprint, we
recalculated our FY19/20 carbon foctprint using the same
methodology as we did for this year’s. That showed in
FY19/20 we were responsible for carbon emissicns of

1,631 tCO2e. This equates to 406 tCO2e per full time
employee and 48.61tCO2e per £1,000,000 of revenue.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



fo dfusts0)

Sconsl

B ) 355
Purchased district heating emissions 4.36
Purchased electricity emissions 39.50
Tomal Soos s Tana wiops 2 - 47.41
Businass travel 184.59
Employee commuting (including remote
working) 60.61
Fuel and energy related services 13.69
Purchased goods and services
(including capital goods) 1,210.59
Upstream leased assets 0.63
Upstream transportation and distribution 114
Use of sold products 1.28
Waste n.36
iowlvoone s . . 148369
Torl Sooes T oAt - 1,531.00
Coppenmisn e s o
tCO2e per full time employes (FTE) 4.05
tCO2e per £lm revenuea 48.61

Touet
Zrodp P
Fyous
6.41 B 8.4] - -
4.29 - 429 -
19.20 479 0.58 13.83
29.¢0 1.20 4.87 13.83
10.80 276 0.20 794
180.57 50.96 482 12479
15.45 719 0.92 734
1,662.63 118872 622 a7l
1.07 107 - -
0.27 003 - 0.24
1.21 108 0.01 012
1318 627 013 679
_ 188529 125808 6828 558893
1,915.00 1,269.00 73.00 573.00
4.30
37.32

- The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533026
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When comparing the two financicl years, the most
encouraging facter is that we've started to break the
relationship between economic growth and carbon
emissions. Our emissions per £1 million of revenue have
reduced by 23% from FY2020 to FY2021.

This comparison also allows us to do d rough assessment
of the impact of Covid-19 on cur emissions. Our data is
categorised in away that we can pick certain sources of
emissions that are positively or negatively impacted by
Covid-19 e g. business travel, office energy use, employse
commuting and working from home. Despite the obvious
reductions, the increase attributed to working from homne
led to an increase of around 12%. This contradicts the oy
normal narrative of Covid-19/remote working decreasing e
cmissians, We'll do more in depth analysis to understand )
how that can be addressed.

e
carbon En ey CGvid
Business travel 9252
Employee commuting
{excluding remote working) 57.5 8.93 S L
Cffice heating and electricity
emissions 52 331
Remote working 3.43 185.06

Totat 205 229

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/’ Company number; 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Our ofisetting uproach

This financial year we have continued with our policy of
offsetting our emissions via Ecologi Gold Standard Projects
such as investment in selar pancls in India Emissions
avoidance via offsetting like this is not a perfect solution
for well doccumented reasons, but done to the expected
standards it has a clear positive impact

We have purchased carben offsets to the equivalent of
1,915 tCO2e, which is the eqguivalent of over 7,000,000 miles
driven in the average UK car and almost 3,000 fights from
London to New York

We have now also planted over 16,000 trees, but not simply
for their carbon removal potentical. We see tree planting

is vital to help increase the planet's depleted bicdiversity,
support local communities, reduce inequalities and helz
peocple reconnect with nature.

Funding and supporting climate gotios
As a digital native technology service company, we

do not manufacture or sell physical preducts that
negatively impact nature, land use, ecological sensitivity,
freshwater availability or water consumption. However,
we accept thot in order to cperate we need buildings
ond infrastructure, which negatively impact those things.
We have therefore used proxy data for the environmental
impact of the water usage in our offices.

We will donate time and money to organisations whose
aim is to positively impact the systerms and societal
norms that have devastated our planet and the
ecosystems within it. Therefore, in continuation of aur
donations in FY19/20, we have once again donoted to
Rewilding Britain.

Rewilding Britain's mission is ta champion rewilding in
Britain, acting s a catalyst for debate and action, and
demoenstrating the power of working with nature to
tackle the extinction crisis and the climate emargency
Our donaticn will contribute significantly towards many
different direct rewilding projects as well as research,
education and policy influencing.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements fer year ended 31 March 2021
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Reinmaving bairlers for employees

To maximise impact and prove our commitment to the
planet, we pricritise action that can be taken by the
arganisation as a whole Too much ecmphasis is placed
on individuals when discussing solutions to the climate
emergency, when far more impact would be made by
getting whole organisations, industries and governments
to moke changes

Individual action is still vital though, therefore, we are
helping tc remove barriers for our employees to maximise
their positive impact on the planat.

We have joined the QctopusEV electric vehicle leasing
scheme. We have passed all the possible savings onto
our employees to open up electric vehicle ownership to
a wider range of people We officially joined the scheme
in the final days of the financial year so we'll report order
numbers in our 21/22 financial year report, but interest
has surpassed our expectations, with over 25 employees
actively looking at the scheme.

We have continued our rallout of web browser Ecosiaq,
which has now helped finance over 750 trees. We will
push this initiative much further in 2021

We have also continued to offer cur employees the
chance to learn more about the causes and sclutions
to the climate and ecological emergencies, with paid
courses from the likes of Climate in Colour and lunch
and learn talks from Rewilding Britain, The Beaver Trust
and Olic.

the panoply//

daporoas
we cre ds

As part of our 1% pledge, employees are able to take
two doys a year to dedicate to community action. Many
employees use this time for envirenrmental activism.

Finally, we have partnered with the Make My Money Matter
campaign to help apply pressure to our pension providers
to align individuals” investments with the Paris Agreement
targets.

Raising dwareness

We need to use our position to raise awaranass across our
whole sphere of influence; employaes, clients, suppliers,
sharehclders and industry peers. We will continue to use
opportunities such as our annual report to write about
what we're doing and encourage others to share, copy
and augmaent.

We're also raising awarenass by getting imvalved in
projects with industry bodies and education institutions
We have employees actively involved in raising awareness
of the environmental impact of digital industry via the
BIMA Sustainability Council, the SDIA Roadmap and
whitepapers.

We briefed and mentored students from Loughborough
University Lendon as part of their collaborative masters
project. Five teams chose to work on our briefing akout
the environmental impact of the digital industry. This
project started in March 2621 and we won't see the results
untii the sumrner cof 2021, however it has olready led to a
commitment frem Loughborough University to work with
us to put the environmental impact of the digital industry
into the syllabus on relevant courses.

The Panaply Heldings Pl
Company number: 10533056
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



We have also been leading the way with our clients. We
have deliversd projects which are actively addressing
the environmental impact of digital industry for both

The Climate Group and The National Trust, analysing the
barriers and epportunitias for delivering local low carben
energy systems for EmergentEnergy, recemmending
and prototyping opportunities for local businesses in

tha Oxford Zero Emissions zone and running Blackpool
Council’s climate assemblies.

Gt future ambitions

Leaving no tyace
Cur partnership with Emitwise opens up three crucial
opportunities.

1. We willbecome a net zero company by 31 March 2027,
The definition we will abide by in terms of net zero,
will be the one defined by the Science Based Targets
Initiative developed by the Carbon Disclosure Project.
Emitwise enables this reduction strategy by allowing
us to find the insights locked within cur carbon data,

2. By 3! March 2023 we will have offset andfor captured
all of our historical scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions. The
benchmarks we now have for the financial years 18/20
and 20/21 allow us to calculate the carbon footprint
we hove been responsible for since the founding of all
of the companies that make up our group. Emissions
are a debt to the planeat that we will pay back.

3. we will be as close to real-time carbon neutral as
possible. Using our data integration with Emitwise to
calculate cur carbon footprint on a continuol basis
will enable us to take more immediate, proactive
action on reduction and automate the offset andfor
capture of our emissions in as close to real time
as poessible.

wWa firmly believe that every crganisation must now
consider itself an environrmental organisation, therefore
we will continue to push the boundaries of what an
organisation can do to measure, reduce and offset

its footprint.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

Community continued

Community

Equipping our communities with
future-proof skills

We are kickstarting one
thousand careers, investing
both our time and money in
activities that are equipping
our communities with the
skills they need to contribute
to and benefit from the fourth
industrial revolution.

the panoply#

We believe that everyone should
have equal opportunities to
participate in the world that we are
helping to create. The tech sector is
growing at an exciting pace and we
need to make sure that there are not
pockets of society that are locked
out of the industry through a lack of
investrment in future proof skills. That
is why we donate 1% of our pre-tax
profits and 1% of our employees’ time
to invest in our local communities.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 106533085
Financial staterents for year ended 31 March 2021



CAUSES SUPPORTED

SKILLS

kickstarted with future-proof skills

HOURS DONATED

1,654 !

donated to community action this year

[
ja]
E'..'?
I
=
=
c
B
)
m
-
O
)
=
gl
I
O
9]
o]
C
=z
—
%]
W
-
3
-
m
@
(9]
Ee)
m
b
m
=

FUTURE LEADERS PROGRAMME

supported through our Future Leaders programme




ESG Report

Commu ﬂity continued

"My experience on the programme has been
amazing. Very much needed motivation and
suppoert durtng Covid-19.”

Mairvin Onu

Community Action

We believe in the power of people to transform their
communities. That is why, as part of our 1% pledge,

every employee is targsted to donate at least 1% of thair
time each year to community action, helping to build
sustainable futures for people in the areas in which they
live and work. Although the recent restrictions have made
traditional volunteering more challenging, our people
have shown incredible creativity and determination to
support their communities this yaar.

This year 72 employees denated a total of 16594 hours to
community action, up from 904 hours last year.

Some examples of community action projects
from this year

Enpluyabiility wurkshops

In partnership with Radical Recruits

Helping job seekers from marginalised communities to

get job-ready by supporting them with interview skills and
confidence.

Work Experience

In partnership with Kori

Giving diverse young people exposure to working within
adigital agency through digitol work experience and
networking opportunities.

Coding Training
In partnership with Code Canteen

Connecting learners with mentors and providing a space
for anyone who 1s interested in coding to access advice
and support.

the panoply/

“Twanted confidence in myself and abilities as
an entrepreneur. f expanded my network and
learnt how the rest of the world runs business.”

Mursal Sqiq

“'m no longer intimidated by the things { don't
know and | feel like I'm ready to conquer the next
phase of my business with fresh eyes.”

Taylor Semelsberger

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Community Action Grants

Our most active volunteers each year are offered an
opportunity to apply for a Community Action Grant. To
crovide an additional boaost to charities and initiatives that
they are already supporting through community action,
we provided any member of the Group who contributed
more than 18 hours, access to one of five £1000 grants to
donate to a charity of their choice.

Community Grants delivered in FY202i:

- Asthrma UK/ British Lung Foundation Partnership
- Spitalfields Crypt Trust
+  Rewilding Britain

Caldecott Foundation

Cots for Tots

Community Investment

This year, we donated £33,9830 to charities locol to where
our emplayees live and work in line with 1% of our pre-tax
profit pledged from FY20. Many of these donations were
directed by employees through our community action
grants and Christmas Give programmes. We understand
that alarge part of the valus that we can offer to
beneficiaries comes from our expertise, services and time,
which is why we try to leverage all of our investments with
additional nan-fingncial support.

Our community investment strategy looks to equip
communities with future-proof skills by kickstarting digital
careers. To date we have helped to kickstart 802 careers™
{268 in FY21) and plan to reach 1000 by 2023. We support
a portfolio of programmes that focus on both scale

and depth of impact We regularly deliver interventions
that dedicate dozens of hours of support to a single
beneficiary, favouring transformative impact over light-
touch initictives.

“eareer kickstarted = 1 unfque benehciary from our community
action ar communety investment programmes who has beneftted
from at feast 1 hour of skills developrment training

The Panoply Holdings Flc
Company number; 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

Commu ﬂity continued

Futurec Leaders

The gilot of the Future Leaders programme launched
in October 2019, and since then we have received 180
applications and supperted 10 Future Leaders over two
cohorts. Ihe programme was created with a mission
to shake up the boardreoms of tomarrow by investing
In underrepresented sntrepreneurs today. It seeks out
talontod young businoss ownors and providos thom
with expertise, mentorship, networks and support
needed for them to successfully develop thernselves
and thoir comparny.

Diversity of applications:
mMinority

ethnic 78%
Disability 27%
Low SEB 67%

Tha 2020 prodgrammes was cesiqnad to halp develoning
businesses facing challenges caused by the Covid-18
pandemic and was delivered completely remotcly for
the hrst ime. Succeasstul participants were ottered a
weakly stipend, finarcial support to cquip their home
office space, a business coach, weekly professional
davelopmenl waorkshops and the chance To pileh o
roal invostors at tho end of the programme.

the panoply//
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ESG Report

Community continued

Nabccha

Arkwright Engineering Scholar

In order to achisve our diversity ambitions we need to

be affecting change much earlier in the talent pipeline.

In addition to thc comnunity action work that we do in
schools, we partnered with Arkwritght Scholars for the first
time ta spensor our own Engineering Scholar through their
further education

Nabeeha is a talented young wormnan, attending a state
secondary school in the UK and studying for her A Levels.
She has already received mentorship fram a number

of employees from the group with expertise in Artificial
Intelligence and Robotic Process Autornation and is
currently working on her first paper on the Environmental
Impact of the Tech Industry under our guidance.

Christmas Give

Every December the Group makes a donation on behalf
of every employee to a charity chosen by them. Through
this initiative last year we donated £7,350 to the following
charities:

In Norway

Dyrebeskyttelsen Norge is a natiocnwide animal welfare
organization working to ensure that animals are treated
with respect and compassion.

Flyktninghjelpen helps people on the run all over the world,
providing, among other things, food, shelter, clean water,
legal aid, and education to refugees.

the panoply//

In Bulgaria
Redom is an organisation dedicated to fighting animal
cruclty in Bulgaria.

Time Heroes is a platform for volunteering and doing good.

whereToNow is a charity supporting young people from
low-income families or without parents to continue their
education and find a job

in the UK
Refuge is the world's first safe house for wormen and
children escaping domaestic violence in Chiswick.

CALM or The Campaign Against Living Miserably is leading
a movement against suicide.

Girls Out Loud is a UK based social enterprise set up in
2010 with the aim of raising the aspirations of young girls
between the ages of 13-18 by facilitating intervention
programmes in schools.

Rewilding Britain is an organisation diming to reinstate
natural processes and reintroduce missing species in
Britaain.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Some of the organisations we are
proud to have supported this year.
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Prosperity continusd

Prosperity

Delivering impactful work

Our people are delivering We understand that our biggest impact
impacﬁul digit@l comes from the work that we do with

) . | our clients. The products and services
tra QSfOmetIOH everyc:ay, that we are putting out into the world
radically improving the have the potential to make population-
services that matter. scale impacts on our communities. We

take this responsibility very seriously and
are conscious of the need to ensure our
work is always aligned with our purpose
and values.

The Panaply Holdings Plc
the panoply// Company number: 10533086
Financial staterents for year ended 31 March 2021



EMPLOYEE INVESTMENT

£24m+ o

Invested in employee compensotlon & benefits

JOBS CREATED

REVENUE FﬁOM CONTROVERSIAL SECTORS

less than 29

of our revenue is from controversml sectors

UK MEDIAN SALARY i
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ESG Report

Prosperity continued

Ten of our most impactful projects
Radically Improving the Services that matter

We are improving people's lives by making the services that they rely on more efficient and more effective. Through
digital ransformation we helg our clients to deliver more impact, more effectively and at a fraction of the cost.

We are helping governments and organisations to tackle complex and pressing social issues, reshaping the way our

communities operate.

#1 Understanding the skills
& capabilities needed to
set the safety tech sector
up for success

Department

for Culture
Media & Sport

#2 Understanding resident
need in a crisis: supporting
Camden Council’s
response to Covid-19

Camden

the panoply./

Why dogs itmatrer?

Ag internet use grows, so too does the
potential to inflict harm on users. The
safety tech sector provides solutions
to protect users from onling harms,
and it's grewing rapidly, expecting to
see L1bn revenue by 2024 |t will need
the right pecple, with the right skills
and capabilities, in order to create and
sustain that growth,

How did we improwve it?

Our recommendations for government
and industry are designed to snsure
that (1) safety tech has access to

the technology talent it needs; (2)

the workforce represents the people
safety tech protects; {3) data privacy
and security are prioritised and (4)
users are kept at the centre of product
development.

why does it mottar?

Camden Council recognised sarly
that when facing the community-wide
and long-term challenges of COVID-18,
arodically different approach

was needed Working with council
colleagues, we enhanced existing
services; focused on ecrly intervention
and prevention, and strengthened
tnrough partnership across council
services and VCS to meet resident
needs and identify future needs

Hov: did we improwvae it?

We identified situations that could lcad
people to need support as a result of
Covid-19. We mapped food services

to reduce food poverty, built a service
directory helping residents find scrvices
and built Beacon, enabling councils Lo
capture resident needs, connect them
to support and ensure needs are met.

wino dogs 1t mdtis: o

The project audience 1s government
and the safety tech industry, the
recornmendations will impact any
citizens vulnerable to online harms

Why was this radical?

The challenges safety tech faces -
divarsity, talent, privacy — are shared
across tech, but experienced to a

maore pressing degree by this sector.
DCMS and safety tech businesses are
implementing the scaffalding for this
young sector to become an exemplar
for the industry, while supporting its fast
yet sustainakle growth

WHo does it matier ic”

This work had the most direct impact
to Camden residents, but sets an
example to wider public sector
organisations looking to replicate and
build a redically new approach to true
collaborative working across council
services and with the voluntary and
community sector to create the best
outcomes for their places.

Why was this radicai®

This work allowed staff to coordinate
and deliver support at pace and scale;
deasigning a truly mullidisciplinary
team approach with functionalities

to colloborate with VCS organisations
and increase capacity for support, and
ultirmately, understand people's needs
holistically, cnsuring they get the right
support fram the right service at the
eqarliest oppertunity

The Panaply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



#3 Fully managed laas/
Paas for Rural Payments
CAP platform (Common
Agricultural Policy)

Rural Payments
« Agency

#4 A sustainable Drupal 9
web build for the Climate
Group

THE
CLIMATE
GROUP

why does it matter?

The faled implementation of the new
digital-by-default anline service, left
the RPA with problems such as,

AN IT Solution requiring 300
concurrent users, consistently
crashing at just 21 logons

No Disaster Recovery or Business
Continuity Environments

30+ uncontrolled environments and
teams inherited, with total run rate of
£34M p/a

How did we improve it?

Through our design, bulld and
transformation led programme we
delivered a system architecture and
performance that could support aver
3,000 concurrent users {I0x the original
requirement) by the claims window
pericd time freme.

Wiy does i mailer?

Website users have no say in how much
energy a website eals up. So it was
down to our developers to set o new
standard. Putting the environment at
the heart of the project we re-shaped
the criteria of what really mokes fora
'successful website.

Howe did ve improyz #2

Emissions have decreased by o
projected 91% across the sites, and
page weights cut by 50%. In turn,
average page load time has halved,
increasing the website’s overall SEO
and security rankings As o result, more
than 200 trees can focus on emissions
elsewhera for the next yeor.

woo does it imattet to?

The Rural Payments Agency (RPA) is an
executive agency of the UK Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(efra). The RPA delivers the European
Unien (EU) Commeon Agricultural Policy
(CAP} payments to farmers and traders
in England, paying out over £2 billion

in subsidies each year across 80,000+
claimants

Wiy was s radical?

This poorly perferming and expensive
system was re-orchilected,
transformed, migrated and then
optimised for performance and valug,
resulting in a highly performant,

high capacily platform with

significant improverment over original
requirements and an annual run cost of
£5 5, saving £28 5M pfa,

Who does it matler to?

With the digital industry emitting more
carbon than the aviation industry, this
project approach should be considered
by any organisation locking to not only
rebuild, butimprove their web estate

Wiy was this radical?

We embarked on what might just be
ane of the world's first ever sustainable
web builds. Changing our appreach
led to radical new approaches, such
as rewriting our Grupal templates,
rebuilding the videc player, replacing
it with static images in order 1o prevent
YouTube scripts from loading, and
rebranding to a much darker pallet

to conserve energy produced by LED
screens.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number. 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

Prospe rity continued

#5 Translating a social
mission into an immersive
online learning experience

#6 Delivering home
testing kits to NHS staff

X

the panoply//

Why daes it matter?

The learning platform had to be
interactive, engaging and accessible,
bul mostly, it had to maintain the
human element of the in-person trips
This project is the first step forward

in working with new and emerging
technologies, with exciting plans to
combine the digital experience with the
physical trips when they continue

Hore did we linprove it?

Stuclents can take partinlive seminars
guided by experts on the Holocaust.
Content includes a first-hand testimaony
from a Holocaust survivor, ¢ virtual site—
visit to Auschwitz-Birkenau Memorial
and Museum as it is today, and veice
recegnition-based Q&As. Over 400
students have enrclled since its launch
in March,

why does it mattar?

During the early weeks of the Covid-18
pandemic, large numbers of key
workers, up to 40% of staff in some
organisations, were self-isolating with
covid-hke symptoms. This threatened
the effectiveness of some key front-lina
organisations.

How did we improve it?

Within just 8 days we'd led o team

to deliver the end-to-end service on
goviuk enabling citizens to requast
tests which were dispatched from a
distributicn centre overnight. In the first
12 weeks our service had distributed
over 1 million test kits to UK citizens

Who does it mattet 1o

Getting the basics right while pushing
the boundaries of an online learning
experience ensures lhe core messages
are lifted beyond the confines of

a laptop screen. The platiorm has
reducecd barriers to access HET's
learning material and effectively
extended the reach and influence

of this charity and their important
message

Wy wias this radical?

This marks the first time HET has
digitised an offline experience; making
it instantly mere accessible Light page
loads will allow students to access the
platform on-site when in-persen trips
resume. Digitising the administrative
process supports a higher intake, vital
to continue the teachings around the
tragedy that 1s Lhe Holocoaust.

who doas it matter (o

Getting PCR tests to key workers who
were self-isolating allowed those who
tested negative for Covid-19 1o retum to
work earlier.

wiy was this radical?

Building « critical national service

that also interfaces to a physical
supply network and that scales to
handle the demands of being the

lead story across lhe entire UK media

is not something that can usually be
accomplished within a small number of
days in a camplex central government
department.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



#7 Connecting vuinerable
citizens with supermarkets
to access priority delivery
slots

Depariment
for Environment

Food & Rural Affairs

#8 A partnership
approach to supporting
seven district and borough
councils and one county
council to combine,
saving money and putting
residents’ needs at the
heart of two new unitary
authorities.

RTINS

14 AN J
" NORTHAN IS

Why does it matter?

This was a significant part of the
government response to Covid
providing necessary support to
vulnerable people unable to foed shop
or use onling services during lockdown/
shielding periods

How did we improve it?

Working directly with Defra, our
stokeholders, local authorities, and
retailers, our collaborotive approach
quickly identified the core needs of

the users and we developed the initicl
portal within 48 hours of receiving the
requirement. The portal itself was in
Production in & days having traversed
governancs, security control and a GDS
assessmaont.

Why doas it matie?

This Northamptenshire iocal
government rearganisation creates two
of the largest new unitary authorities in
the country. North Northamptonshire
Council and West Northamptonshire
Coungil quickly launched two new
minimum viable websites, creating
strong digital foundations that help
residents find information, easily
access services and form part of more
complex resident experience.

How dicd we improve ite

Working in a multidisciplinary team, we
did a rapid discovery and andalysis of
eight existing web estates, undertaking
resedrch and testing with over 400
residents With their insight, we created
a solid design system for two new
council websites. The public Beta
version in March, scoring 10/10 for
accessibility.

who does it matter to”

All individuals who were clossified as
vulnerable and shielding during the
pandemic

Why was ths radicais

Engaged by Defra to rapidly respond to
the Covid-18 pandemic. We needed to
assemble o team and produce a portal
allowing for the referral within 7 days.
The service was specificolly mentioned
by ministers during the daily briefings
to the UK and two of our team received
MBE's for services.

Who does 1t mutter to®

Local authorities looking to recrganise
in their place, save money and fully
accessible develop digital platforms
that together, create services that are
useful for residents.

Why was this radical?

Wesl Northamptonshire Council and
Nearth Northamptonshire Gouncil
websites went ive on 1 Aprif 2021 o
coincide with the official vesting day of
the new authorities. Residents found the
Beta websites clean and cosy to use,
ensuring the besl possible outcome for
residents, local businesses and council
staff

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

Prosperity continued

#9 A child-friendly design
and platform experience
for the Child Exploitation
and Online protection
Command (CEOP)

NCA

National Crime Agency

the panoply//

Why doeg iz matie:?

Thinkuknow is an education
programme designed to protect
children both online and offline. The
new website design needed te be a fun
and engaging tool for children ta use,
reinforcing the message thal they can
always talk to a trusted adultif thoy fecl

in any way distressed or uncomfortable.

It also neaded to empower parents
and carers to have online safety
conversations with 4 - 7 year olds.

Howy did wo improve it?

we developed a gamified experience
for children using animation and
interaction. We enabled the children
te win badges and print certiiicctes
that they could colour inand keep.
We created four badges to caver the
four scenarios children are exposed
to; sharing pictures, playing games,
watching videos and chatting online.
Collecting stars and badges helped
to keep them engaged, and created a
personal experience for each child.

Wwho does it ratter to?

4 - 7year old children who use
phones, tablets or computers were

the primary audience, and parents,
carers or teachers having online safety
conversations with children are the
secondary audience

Why was this radica?

We created tailored interviews for
each user group, Including a child
psycholagist, 4-7 year olds, parents,
and teachers. We tested an early
prototype with our subject children
in order to establish the right tone for
the audience Not only did the results
from the prototype inform cur design
direction, but the children were also
heard asking their parents when they
could use the website again

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533086

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



#10 Empowering
consumers by tackling
unfair business behaviour
during the pandemic

CMA

Competition & Markets Authonty

Why does it matter?

Unfortunately some businesses have
treated cansurmers unfairly during the
Coronavirus pandemic, c.g by gouging
prices or unreasonably refusing
refunds. Our service has collated
evidence from ~140k people, providing
resources to seek supporl and enabling
high-profile cases against businesses
guaranteeing refunds of over £2456
million by holiday and evont providers.

How did we mprove it?

We rapidly developed a service,
replacing a form that could not cope
with Lhe higher-than-expected volurmes
of traffic It was deployed within o week
using the GDS front end and has been
continucusly iterated to better mecet
the needs of consumers and provide
evidence for the CMA's actions

Wheo does It rmatter to?

This service supports the general
public as consumers, and particularly
vulnerable groups

Why was this racdicat?

We first spoke to the CMA on Friday 27
March, and launched the service on
03 April. Between its launch and 03
May, there were ~31,000 submissicons.
The peak was 6,874 entries in one day.
This service is still in use and has now
received ~14Ck submissions.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number; 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

Prosperity continued

BREAKDOWN OF INCOME
BY SECTOR

ol T

rars
e i 29%

29%

Employment and Weaith Generation

The Panaply's workforce has continued to grow at a rapid
pase. We are providing well paid, decent jobs across

the group All of our employees are paid the living wage,
Indeed our UK median safary was almost three times the
UK living wage last year ot £28 Q1. Cur CEOMedian wage
ratic is low at 471 and we invested over £24m in
employee compensation and benefits. We created

55 brand new jobs excluding acquisitions in FY21. we will
look to increase this significantly over the coming years
in line with our crganic growth strategy and intention to
reduce rellance on contrdctors which cuntently makes up
25% of the workforce.

Employee Ownership

AL The Panoply we support the principle of wider sharg
ownership amongst all of our colleagues. To help our
employees acquire shares in a tax efficient way, we
introduced a Share Incentive Plan ($IP) in January 2021,
As of March 21 we had 85 unique volunteers registered
in the scheme.

The SIP was designed to enable employees to contribute
up to £1,80C per year through salary sacrifice and
purchase shares in the group. To reward employesas and
provide additional benefit The Panoply matches the
purchase of these shares on a1l basis.

the panoply/

BREAKDOWN OF INCOME BY
SUB SECTORS
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e 9%
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Client Disclosure

The core purpose of The Group is to deliver impactful
work, responsibly. With this in mind, it is important that

we start measuring the impact of our client work and
raking sure that it supports both our commercial and
impact ambitions. This year we have worked to develop a
framework for dealing with controversial client sectors so
that we can ensure that the work we do always aligns to
our values, ethics and ambitions.

To ensure that we are accountable and respoensible for
the work that we do, we will publish any revenue from
contraversial sectors each year in our client disclosure
report. Last year 1.9% of our revenue came from sectors
deemed as potentially controversial by the International
Finance Corporation and ethical investment criteria.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2621
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LSG Report

GoOvaerndnce continued

sen 0}t

Governance

Underpinning everything with
strong principles of governance

We are committed to operating
proper standards of good corporate
governance and have established ¢
corporate governance model based
on the key principles of the Quoted
Companies Alliance Corporate
Governance Code ("QCA Code”).

the panoply/s

The Panoply Holdings plc operates a
business model and growth strategy
that promotes the generation

of shareholder value through its
growth. The company promotes
professionalism, openness, honesty
and integrity between its customers,
staff, shareholders and suppliers

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Risk and Risk Management

The success of the Group depends on the proper management of risk. The Group has a governance structure to identify
and monitor relevant risks at both a subsidiary and a Group level. The risks identifiec are ranked by likelhood and
potential impact, then tracked through monthly board meetings. Once risks are identified, the Group will formulate and
deploy mitigating strategies.

The principal risks and uncertainties that the Board believed could have a significant odverse impact on the Group's
business are set out below. The table is not intended to be exhaustive and the principal risks are not listed in order of
sericusness or potential impact. There may also be risks that are not currently considered to be serious or which are
currently unknown and risks that are outside of the Group’s control. Where reasenably possible, The Panoply has taken
steps to manage or mitigate the risks, or potential risks, but it cannot entirely safeguard against all of them.

Disruption and
uncertainty
due to the
Covid-19
pandemic

=

Customers: The ongoing Covid-19 pandemic
has resulted in changes to customer
behaviours, impacting dermand in various
industries and resulted in fiscal interventions
by Governments.

Qver 70% of the Group's revenue is genarated
from public services. As the world starts to
return to normaley, UK Government budget
constraints may lead to reduced spending
in core markets in which we operate. This will
result in the Group's clients being forced to
respond to such circumstances by reducing
their digital transformation and non-essential
consulting budgets, thereby reducing the
demand for the Group's services, or putting
pressure on price for services.

People: Covid-18 has impacted the health,
emotional and mental wellbeing of employees
due to physical isolation for atong period. If
large numbers of employees are affected,

it could result in business disruption and
necessitate higher spends for ensuring
business resiliency.

The Group is committed to delivering a
great service o clients which will provide an
impeoctiul outcome to our clients problems.

The Group has been focusing on relationships
with clients and obtaining feedback with
regards to their concerns in order to ensura
that the right contracts are in place to meet
the needs of both parties given the constraints
In place,

Focus on diversification of client base into
other areas of public services

Group-wide message to all employees to
provide assurance that during the pandemic,
their health and well-being 1s of paramount
importance. This was demonstrated by

our quick response to the pandemic,
implementing o work-from-home policy prior
to government guidance 1o do so

Use of menlal health first ciders to inform how
we can best support team members through
this uncertain pariod.

An employee assistance programme has
been implemented throughout the Group.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 105336096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Risk and Risk Management

continuad

The Groupis
embarking
onabusiness
meoedel change
programme
that will
impact alf
areus of the
business

Identification
and
integration of
investment
opportunities

Occupational
health &
safety with
new working
from home
patterns

Inability
to recruit
and retain
adiverse
workforce

the panoply//

Customers: There is a risk that this will impact
processes around delivery and cperations
as time consumed by various necessary

but additional projects from group disrupts
commerciol or delivery performance and if
appropriate hand offs at each stage of the
change is not considered

People: There is a risk that this will impact the
retention of people if there is not a detailed
plan for execution and appropriate change
management.

The Group’s strategy is to grow bath
organically and through acquisitions.

There is a risk that failure to complete on
transactions will leave the Group with
substantial unrecovered costs; or that a
company that has been successfully acquired
does natintegrate effectively leading to the
loss of synergies and disillusionment of our

people.

We have less control over whether the working
environments of our employees dre safe and
appropriates.

This could fead to injuries for our employees
and ligbility which may not e covered by our
insurance policies

The guality of the services provided by the
Group's busingsses are fundamentally derived
from the quaiity of the Group's people.

The Group's performance could therefore be
advarsely affected if itis not akle to recruit,
train and retain key talent in the Group's
businesses and at the Group level

The Group believes that the business model
change pregramme should involve feedback
from our people in the organisation to be a
SUCCEsS.

We have ensurad through careful project
planning that there will be no disruption to
commercial or delivery performance during
this periocd

Group is investing in people management,
with the recruitment of a Group People
Directer who will focus on the employee value
proposition for the Group. The Group dims for
all employees to find and work towards their
lkigai / purposa.

Focus on incentivising employees through
benefits offered by the Group, such as SIF,
share options, BV scheme and ongoing
support through the pandemic

The Group has a comypreheansive M&A process
to ensure that companies who join the Group
aligns with the Groups' purpose, values and
vision; adds strategic value to the Group and
strengthens our proposition adding greater
depth or breadth and has leaders who can
work collaboratively.

Once companies are part of the Group, the
Group integratas the newly-merged company
inte its standard monthly reparting cycle
where (financial) nsks, if any, are identihed.

Cecupational health surveys and guidance
districuted to employees and financial
support given to improve home office set-ups.

Our goal is to have a diverse workforce that
replicates the diversity of where we operate.

The Group puts culture and purpose in

the forefront of what we do to become an
employee of choice for employees. We
actively set our KPls to focus on the diversity of
our workforce and managed the KPIs with the
same prominence as our financial KPls.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533046
Financtal statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Breach

of legal,
regulatory and
contractual
information
security and
deta privacy
legislation

Cyber security
risk

Impact of
inflation

Competitors
with the ability
to undercut
our businesses

Non-complionce could expose the Group 1o The Group reviews the impact of new

liosility and fines (for example under GDPR), information security and data privacy

and negatively impact profit and cash flow in regulations and legislation on the Group and
tha short term, cause reputational damage its customers, The output of these reviews
and damage customer relationships and influences the Group's internal controls
credibility in the market and processes and the design of products,

solutions and working practices.

The Group relies upon the confidentiality, Cyber security threats are monitored by each
integrity and availability of its IT systems individual cormpany and any risks of cyber
internally and as part of its service offerings security are communicated throughout the
to custormers. Cyber security events are whole group en a timsly basis.

occurring more frequently, and attacks are
designed with greater complexity

A major cyber security event causing loss of
availability or loss of customer data could
limit the Groups' cperaticns, expose the Group
to fines and cause reputational damage,

and damage customer relationships due to
reduced credibility in the market

Increasing cost of workiorce (employees as Focus on gross margins and operating costs

well os contractors) resulting in a squeeze in to understand the reasens for decreass in

marging margins. These will be discussed with the CFOs
of each Group company and an action plan
agreed.

Recruitment within the Financial Fianning
& Analysis are of financce to focus on data
analysis and forecasting

The Group's compelilors include large The Group 1s focused on delivering first class
consultancies and technology cornpanies, as services to clients and working hand-in-hand
well as smaller niche companies. with clients to meet their needs.

It is part of the Group's strategy to exploit the We believe that the way we provide services
current disruption of the digital transformation sets us apart from competitors so that our
services industry and ta focus on working with clients can see the value of the work that we
clients to meet their needs. parform

we continue to monitor the bid to win ratios te
identify potential risks.

The Panecply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Section 172

Cur 172 statement

The directors of The Panoply and all these of all UK
Companies must act in accordance with a set of general
dutics. Section 172 of the Companies Act requires Directors
to take inte consideration the interests of stakeholders in
their decision making and is summarised as follows:

“A Director of @ company must actin a way they consider,
in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success
of the company for the benefit of its shareholders as
awhole and, in doing so have regard {omongst other
matters) to:

- Thelikely consequences of any decisions in the long-
term

The interests of the company's employees

+  The need tc foster the company’s business
relationships with suppliers, customers and others

= Theimpuact of the company’s operations on the
community and envircnment

«  The desirability of the company maintaining a
reputation for the high standards of business conduct,
and

+  The need to act fairly between shareheolders of the
company

This section serves as our Section 172 staterment.

The Beard censiders, both individually and together,

that they have acted in the way they consider, in good
faith, would be mest likely to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its shareowners as a whole
(having regard to the stakeholders and matters set out in
Section 172{}{a-f) of the Actin the decisions taken during
the year ending 31 March 2021),

Quy Viglon: impactiul digited
responsibly delivered ol ceale
The Bodard recognises that engagement with the
Company’s stokeholders is critical to the success of the
business in realising this vision. The Directors continug

to have regards to the interest of our people and the
Company’s other stakehaolders, including the impact of

its activities on the community, the environment and

the Company’s reputation when making decisions. We
recognise that promoting the lang-term sustainability and
success of the Company is intertwined with creating value
for, and engagement with, our stakeholders. It should
therefore be at the core of aur business.

Engagement with stakeholders is not new and has been a
part of the business since its inception, but the cbligation
to include the Soction 172 statement presents an

the panoply//

opportunity to illustrate to you how your Board engages
with stakeholders and how this has impacted on your
Company's decisions and strategies.

The Directors are fully aware of their responsibilities to
promete the success of the Company in accordance
with Secticn 172 of the Act Our intention is to behave
responsibly and ensure that management operates
the business in a responsible manner, operating within
the high standards of business conduct and good
governance expected of us.

Engagement with Stakeholders
Ot Stakeholdders
We understand that the success of our business is

intrinsically linked to the impact we have on our people,
planet and the communities we work with and for.

From our clients, suppliers, our peaple, our shareholders
and our planet, building strong effective relationships and
engaging regularly is imperative to our continued success
and impact.

Effective stakeholder engagement builds trust,
strengthens our legitimacy as a socially respoensible
business and supports our efforts te develop and
implement effective solutions to build sustainable futures
for our people, planst and communities

Our Key stekehoidere aned ho
engage with ti
Qur Clients

a7y

In 2020, everything we took for granted was upended.
The way society and communities worked, learnt and
interacted was transformed overnight. How people
shopped, socialised and entertained changed radically,
and the nature of work changed in a few short hours.

=it
« Covid-18 required us to pivot how we supported and

engaged with our clients from a physical to 100%
virtual presence overnight.

How we engiage s

[RETERS

We were committed to being part of the solution ata
tirme where our clients were focused on saving lives
and delivering critical services. This enabled us to
build relationships that will grow for years to come.

+  We continuously evolved how we communicate and
deliver our services based ¢n client feedback.

+  Tor some clients, we co-lacate or embed our people,
which helps facilitates clear communication,
collaboration and teamwork.

The Panoply Holdings FPlc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements fer year ended 31 March 2021



oimg exgmples

The change in working enabled us to support our clients
during some of the toughest pericds ever experignced,
this proximity to cur clients has led to scrme incredible
WOork.

Delivering the Ventilator Dushboard. The Department of
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy {BFIS) was asking
businesses to ctfer their support in the production of
ventilators ond ventilator components. They wanted to
quickly put up aform to collect businesses’ information
after the relevant call centres and email accounts were
overloaded. We delivered this form live in one day

CGur Shareholders

Cur focus is to ensure that all of our shareholders are
treated equally and fairly, so that they may fully benefit
from our centinued successful execution against both our
impact and commercial vision. We believe it is important
that our shareholders understand and support what

we are Lrying to achieve as we rely on their continued
confidence to support our growth activities.

Hon v engoge with our shoishalders

Covid-19 required us to adapt how we engage and
continue to build our relaticnships with cur Sharehalders
Investor roadshows became virtual and investor events
moved to enline platforms. This change enabled us to
see more of our shareholders, more regularly and provide
them greater levels of detail around our operations and
the impact we were having on our people, planst and
communities we operated in.

This year we engaged with our shareholders through
various channels, mainly:

. Investor roadshows

AGM, which the Chairman, Non-Executive and
Executive Directors attend to ensure engagement with
a broad rangs of shareholders

+  Stock exchange anncuncemants, increased regularity
during early stages of the pandemic to provide
shareholders the most up to date status of the group

+  Annual report

Retail Investor events, Including Mello, Investor Meet
Company and Pl World

The Directors hovs regular contact with existing
shareholders and potential investors in The Panoply. Neal
Gandhi and Cliver Rigbycermmunicate via email, calls and
face-to-face meetings with shareholders.

Following our Hi Interim results in November we conducted
a virtual readshow that tock place across two weeks,
providing tha opportunity to engage with existing and
potential new shareholders.

Engagaimeat
Following the November roadshow the Company
successfully completed a secondary sale of 2,761,849
existing ordinary shares of £0.01 each in the Company.
The Sale Shares represented approximately 4.0% of the
Company's issued shares at the time.

crne sxamples

Ausziness Porinsrs

Qur Suppli
We rely on our suppliers and businass partners to deliver
our services to our customers and to maintain our
productivity. They have regard to several factors when
considering o business relationship with The Panoply,
including, the success of our business, developing long
term relaticnships, trust and credibility, ethics (Including
anti-corrugtion and tribery, human rights and modern
slavery).

goue vwithour supplizes & bl

SATLNETS

We are committed to building strong warking relationships
with our suppliers and business partners. Itis the
responsibility of all our employses to engage directly with
our suppliers and business portners o ensure we are
aligned on quality, ethics, innovation and delivery.

In line with our consclidation focus, we appointed o Group
Strategic Partnerships Director, responsible for the Group's
relationships with Microsoft, Amazon (AWS) and Google
(GCP). Cur relationships with these key technology parties
are critical to the Group's continued succass

Engug 3 axampizs

The Group recently attained o Microsoft Gold Cloud
Flatform competency, demonstrating a "best-in-

class” ability and commitment to meet Microsoft Corp
customers’ evolving needs in today's mobile-first, cloud-
first world as well as distinguishing itself within Microsoft's
partner ecosystem. Becoming a Microsoft Gold Partner
will allow the Group te cembine strengths with Microsoft,
speeding up deployment and improvement of Microsoft
AZure environments.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Section 172

continued

Cur People:

We understand how important it is to have a workforce
with different skills, perspectives and experiences. Across
the Group, we are making sure that our workplaces are
inclusive and supportive enough to attract the diversity of
talent that will enalle us to grow

How we engage with our people

»  Provision of mental health first aiders
»  Monthly teedback loops

- Employee Assistance Program (EaP)
- Employee Forums

+  Employee Resource Groups (ERGs)

2020 put many pressures on oUr people, none that
could have been foraseen. OuUr priority was 1o support
our people and their families in any way we could. We
encouraged open dialogue between employees and
managers, and ensured teams had the resources to
manage any issues they faced.

We set up mantal health first aiders, an employec
assistance programme and supported our employees
with young children through childcare company
Grandnanny, providing free care lo parents when
nurseries and schools were closed

Engugemontouicome examples
Details on the engagement with our people can be found

in our dedicated people section, please see pages 38
to 47.

the panoply s/

Cur Pianst

The environmental impact of the digital industry has been
vastly underestimated. With o carbon footprint today
equal to the aviation industry, we want {c raise awarenass
of this and work with our industry to minimise its impoct.

We believe that there is a better, more sustainable way to
do business. We're investing in training and research to
Build teams of technology experts within the Group who
deeply understand the environmental impact of digital
products and are able to design and advocate for better
alternatives.

Hoenwe ©ng

+  Partnerships with NGOs including Ecologi and
Rewilding Britain

with our planet

+  Membership of Sustdinable Digital Infrastructure
Alliance

+  Membership of BIMA Sustainability Council

This year we have partnered with Emitwise, a technology
platform that helps us monitor and track our carbon
footprint in real time. This partnership provides us the
capabilities to deliver against our vision of becoming reai-
time carbon neutral by 2023

Alongside tracking our carbon, we have continued our
rollout of web browser Ecesia, which has now helped
finance over 750 tress, tcologi on their Gold Standard
offsetting program and have implemented a Electric
Vehicle Leasing Scheme through Octopus EV to enable our
employees to switch to green energy transport.

Frigugemaint cutcoms examples

Cur approach to the planet chaltenges the status quo for
businesses. We go beyond the minimum that is required

of us as an erganisation, priaritising not only how we can

rnitigate our environmental impact, but alse bring about

pasitive change too.

Details on the engagement with our planet can be found
in our dedicated planet section, please see pages 48
to 65

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Qur Communities;

Guring periods of upheaval, communities face the
thraatl of being left behind. We want to ensure those
communities not only thrive now, but also have o
rneaningful stake in the future. Our work is transforming
the way that businesses operate, ensuring that we are
equipping people with the skills they need to thrive in the
future workplace.

Our community investment work is focused on
empowering vulnerable communities through technelogy
and providing occess to employment for diverse talent

Engagement
+  Partnership with ADA National College for Digital Skills

»  Participants and alumni of Future Leaders
prograrmme

Purposefully investing time and energy and empowering
the communities in which we live and work is ot the very
heart of what we do. Although the restrictions last year
made community action more challenging, people
across the Group had some incredible opportunities to
get involved digitally

As part of our 1% time pledge, every employee can spend
2 days each year participating in community action in
the form of voluntary and pro-lbono wark for charities or
charitable organisations or on a project with a specific
charitable aim, either organised by the cempany or
employee.

Engagement outcome: examples

Details on the engagement with cur communities can be
found in cur dedicated communities section, please see
pages 56 to 83.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statemenis for year ended 31 March 2021
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Board of Directors

Mark Williom Srmith, aged 66
Non-Executive Chairman

Mark has held several senior roles in creative and
innovative communication businesses. He began his
career os ¢ chartered gccountont at Touche Ross

& Co. (Deloitte). He then spent 30 years at Chime
Comrnunications, which was acquired by Providence
Private Equity in 2015,

Mark is currently Chairman of Holiday Extras, a market
lzader in the provision of online ancillary travel services,
where he has been Charrman for 5 years and Non-
Executive Director for 18. He is also Chairman of Merit
Group Pic {Previously The Dods Group), an AIM listed
intelligence, medig, training and events company,
operating in over 50 countries, Mark is also non-executive
Chairman of The Unlimited marketing Group a private
equity owned marketing services group.

the panoply#

fzal Norendiro Gandhi, aged 53
Co-Founder and Chief Fxecutive Qfficer

Nedlis a serial tech entrepreneur having ce-founded four
companies that exited successfully with a combined value
of £117m He co-founded his first compaony ot the oge of 2
and, under the brand name of Jungle.com, that company
went on to be sold to GUS for £37m. In 1998 he co-founded
¥plora and scld it to Nasdag-listed UsWeb in 1998.

Neal then co-founded Attenda, a managed scrvices
consultancy that went on to be sold for £72m; one part
tc Telacity Plc and the other to Darwin Private Equity. In
2006 he founded QuickStart Glokal, an offshore [T service
provider, which grew rapidly, ond in 2010 was listed in the
Sunday Times Tech-Track 100 at number 3, his second
coempany in that st with Attenda having been listed at
number 2 in 2001,

Oliver qualified as an accountant with MR1 Moores
Rowland LLP in 2006 before spending six years as an
adviser in corporate finance with Daniel Stewart and
Deloitte. Oliver acted as a Nominated Adviser to the AIM
Market of the London Stack Fxchange and was one of their
youngest Qualified Executives,

Prior to co-founding The Panoply, Oliver set up Growth
Company FD Limited in 2012 to provide part-time CFO and
corporate finance support to growing businesses.

Other Roles: Company Secretary

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533086
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Christopher Paul Sweetiand, aged 86
Nen-Executive Director

Chris quclified as a chartered accountant with KPMG
before spending 9 years averseas in a variety of financial
roles with PepsiCo Inc. In 1889 when he was CFO for the
Central Europe Beverages Division, he was recruited by
WPP to be part of their small central team,.

Chris retired from his role as WPP Deputy Group Finance
Director in 2018 having spent 27 years helping bulld the
company and having been involved in all aspects of
operations, investor relations and the many acquisitions
that built that group. Chris also represented WPP on the
boards of a number of companies both in the UK and
overseas.

Other Roles: Chairman of the Audit, Risk and AIM Rules and
Compliance Committes

lsabel June Kelly, aged 55
Nen-Executive Director

Isabel is the founder of Profit with Purpose, a social
purpose censultancy working with companies and
nonprofits. She is olso an Industry Careears Advisor for MBA
students at the Sald Business Schoeal, focused en social
impact.

In 2002 Mare Benioff, CEC of Salesforce.com, hired Isabel
to establish the Salesforea Foundation internationally
{now Salesforce.org). For 12 years she grew and led an
international taam delivering technology, grants and
programmes in N0 countrics, as well as generating
revenue of $12m te fund the work. Isabel worked at Oxfam
and Amnesty (nternational for 12 years prior to jaining
Salesforce.

Other Roles: Chairman of the ESG Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Cecilic Neainarn, <

Executive Dirsctor

o

Rachel has extensive experience in digital leadership

and transforrmation, having held several senior positions
in the public, private and not-for-profit sectors, including
as a CEO. She was ths first Chief Digital Officer at the UK
Department of Health where she developed its first digital
strategy. She is now a business advisor and mentor and
runs her own consultancy providing advice and coaching
on strategy, leadership and digital transformation to
executives and Boards.

Rachel also brings significant additional advisory
experience to the Board. She is a non-executive director of
Checkit plc, an independent Governor of Birkeck College,
University of London, and a non-executive member of the
Advisory Board of Digital | eaders of which shea is ¢ former
Chair. She has featured in Computer Weekly's list of Most
Influential Women in T since 2016.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

The Panoply Holdings plc is committed to operating
proper standards of good corporate governance and
has established a corporate governance mode! based
on the key principles of the Quoted Companies Alliance
Corporate Governance Code {"QCA Cods”). The following
outlines how the Company addresses the Llen broud
governing principles defined in the QCA Code. The Non-
Executive Chairman is responsible for corporate
governance and the overall leadership of the Board and
ansuring its effectiveness.

The Panoply Holdings plc operates a business modcl and
growth strategy that promotes the generation of
shareholder value through growth. The company
promotes professionalism, openness, honesty and
integrity between its customers, staff, sharehelders and
suppliers.

Principle 1 - Establish g strategy dnd
Lusiness mode! which promote long-term
value for shareholdars.

The Panoply is a technology-enabled services group,
built to service clients’ digital transformation needs.
Founded in 2018, with the aim of identifying and acquiring
best-of-breed specialist information technology, design
and innovation consulting businesses, we collaborate
with our clients to deliver the technology outcomes
they're tooking for at the pace that they expect and
demand.

We believe an increasingly complex world needs a new
model to achieve high impact ocutcomes for clients and
their employees and more value for stakeholders.

We combine the dynamism and agility of smalier, expert

teams with the scale required to confidently address our

clients’ most pressing needs, as they navigate the rapidly
changing nature of society and business.

Since inception the Group has identified and met
numerous potential target companies and has
complsted twelve acquisitions.

Uniitte many buy and build models that have preceded
The Panoply, the Directors are focused on creating ¢
business where employees join a cuiture of purpose,
collaboration and innovation that delivers impactfuf work,
profitable organic growth and agility at scale.

The Directors believe that our flexible operating mode,
our trusted. multidisciptinary teams of experts, and our
commitment to making a difference meant we were
perfectly placed to deiiver long term volus for
shareholders.

The Panoply has developed an efficient, formuiaic
approach for acquiring companies. With an extensive
acquisition pipeline, the Directors intend to continue to
supplement the crganic growth of the Group through the
addition of complementary companies.

the panoply#

Moy, bl tie
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The Directors believe that the enlarged Group's key
strengths include.

. Significant market opportunity - Tech Market View
estirmates the UK Software and IT Sarvices (SITS)
market is worth an estimated £51.8b in 2020,
growing to £56.89b by 2023. The public sector
comprising 71% of the group’s revenue is worth an
estimated £121bn of this total Further details
regarding market cutlock can be found on pages 6
and 7.

Group platform — The Panoply provides a platform
for companias which join the Group to accelerate
their organic growth through cross-selling,
leveraging The Panoply brand, network, listed status
and balance sheet.

. Alignment of interests — The Panoply's acquisition
rmodel involves a signiticant proportion of the
consideration for an acqguisition being issued in
ordinary Shares thereby ensuring alignment of
interests with existing shareholders.

. Profitable and cash-generative — the Group is
profitable, cash generative and only intends to
make accretive acquisitions going forward.

Purpose led business — The Panoply is leading the
way in terms of the quantity, quality and frequency
of ESG repaorting;

- The Group recently appointed an ESG Board
Committee, led by Isable Kelly, NED;

- The Group balances both purpose and profit
by setting dedicated targets for by 2023 and
2025;

- Set a target to become a B-Corporation by
20232

. Focused growth strategy

- The Panoply’s acquisition model is designed to
attract ambitious companies, confident in their
ability to grow profitably and rewards cross-
selling and collaboration;

- The Pancply's management has an extensive
network to helg identify, attract and execute
future acquisitions.

. Experienced Management and Board with proven
track record - The Panoply is managed by highly
exparienced executive and non-executive directors
combining strong secter, public company and
international mergers and acquisitions expertise
with o track record of building, growing and exiting
sarvices companies.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Principte 2 - Seak to undarstand and mest
shureholdar neads ond extseciations,
The Panoply proactively engages with its shareholders

and potential shareholders alike. This is through a senes
ol mechanisrns.

. Formal announcements — as a London Stock
Exchange (LSE) AIM listed company, we make all
statutery announcements through the LSE'S
regulatory news service (RNS}. A feed is maintained
on our investor area. The Panoply reports formally to
shareholders by the publication of its annual and
half-yearly financial statements.

. Analyst and investor presentations — the Executive
Directors present the half-yearly and annual results
to institutional investors, analysts and the media.
The presentations are available on the investor
section of the website.

. AGM - Notification of the date of the AGM is sent ta
sharehalders at least 21 working days in advance of
the meeting. Details are sét out in the Notice of
Meeting. The Directors (and the external auditor) are
ovailable at the AGM to answer questions, both
during the course of the meeting, and informally
afterwards. All details can be found on the Investor
Announcements Section of the website

. News releases — in addition to statutory
annauncements, wa use RNS Reach to present
regular business news and updates to shareholders.
We also have a full news service available on The
Panoply website.

Interactive sessions — The Panoply’s Executive
Directors arrange regular {sk, monthly} face to face
sessions with any interested shareholders or
potential sharehclders, and are also availabls for
updates at any point In the year. See contact details
below.

Investor focused micro-site — we maintain a full
saction on the main Pancply website for investors.
This includes real-time RNS announcements; the
latest Investor Documents, presentations and
reports; share information and share dealing
interactive feeds; this corporate governance
staterment; a full list of investor related caontacts.

. LSE Profile — we also maintain a profile en the
Londen Stock Exchange Issuer services website.

Investor Email - we also manage an investor email
account for any direct queries —
mvestors@thepanoply com.

Contact with major sharehelders is principally
maintained by the Executive Directors, who ensure that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whaole.
The Chair is also available to discuss governance and
other matters diractly with major shareholders. At every
Board meeting, the Board is provided with the fatest

brokers’ reports and a summary of the contents of any
meetings with shareholders. The Board considers that the
provision of these documents is a practical and efficient
way for both the Chair and Senior Independent Director
te be informed of major shareholders’ opinions on
governance and strategy and to understand any
shareholder issues and concerns.

If you would like to know more about The Panoply as a
shareholder, or potential shareholder, please contact us
through our investars email address and wea will put you
in touch with one of our Executive Directors.

ider

Principle 2 - Take inte g
staikehsider agnd socit sonsibilities and
their implications for lohg-ierm success.

Please see further details in the ESG Section of our Annual

Report (Pages 30 to 81) and financial Statements (Pages
100 t0 159).

Principle 4 - Embed effective risk
slelatalotely

ent, considering both
oppotr ies and threats, through
organisation.

Risk management activity is overseen by the Chief
Executive Otficer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer, with the support of the Executive
Management Team.

"
H
£
L

our framework enables us to remain vigilant to all known
and emerging risks and opportunities Effective risk
management supports informed decision making,
enables us to minimise impact from unforeseen internal
or external evants, and allows us to fully exploit emerging
opportunities Our objectives for risk management are to:

- Identify, measure, control and report on business risk
that may undermine the achievement of objectives,
both strategically and operationally, through
appropriate analysis and assessment criteria

. Effectively allocate effort and resources for the
rmarnogement of key and emerging risks

. Build an accurats picture at the highest level of the
key risks facing our business, and use this
information to drive business improvements ina
considered and coardinated way

Support and develop our reputdtion as a well
governed and trusted organisation

Minimise costs and drive eificiencies in the way that
pervasive risk is controlled across the business

. Identify weaknesses in, and cpportunities to
improva, our business processes

At the Operational level, a risk register is maintained
within every business of the Group. Risks are recorded

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Corpordte Governance Report continued

and managed within as required and are reviewed
regularly by the management of each business.

At a central level, there is a single central risk register for
Group Significant risks, which records the tep risks to the
businoss

Risk registers are reviewed on a quarterly basis which
supports the escalation of any risks with a high residual
impact, or potentially pervasive risks, to a higher level risk
register as appropriate.

[l wre vl

The Board determines the amount and type of risk that
The Panoply is willing to take onin pursuit of its strategic
objectives. The Board's appetite for risk is influenced by
various key foctars including {but not limited to) the
overal economic, regulatory and operaticnal landscape
in which we operate

The Executive Management Team advise the Board of
thase key influences which enables the Board to adjust
the amount of risk that The Panoply takes on. Risk
tolerance may, by business choice, differ in different parts
of the company.

SO T AT O OF

Risk registers are updated as and when required. A full
review is undertaken quarterly. The highest rated risks are
presented to the Board every quarter by the CEO. Every six
months the Board is presented with the detailed risk
registers for each iine of business Further details can be
found in our Risk Section of the Annual Report on

pages 75to 77

Principle b — Maintain the Beard as a w
functioning, balaonced team lad by t
Chair.

The PLC Board ("the Board") is responsible for the

Company's corporate governance systems and
processes that support good decision making.

The Non-Executive Directors, Mark Smith (Chair), Isabel
Kelly, Rachel Neaman and Chris Sweetland are
considered independent of management and free from
any business or other relationships that could materially
interfere with the exercise of therr independent
Judgement. Both Mark Smith, Chris Sweetland and Rachel
Neaman own shares in The Panoply and all three Non-
Executive Directors hold options, howsever this is not
considerad to olter their independent status.

The Directars acknowledge the importance of the
principles set out in the QCA Code.

Qur Non-executive Directors have comrmitted in their
letters of appointment to attend all reasonable board
and committee meetings in addition to being reasonably

available at other times for The Panoply business. Gur
Executive Directors have entered into employment

the panoply//

contracts which require them to attend all board and
committee {of which they are a member) meatings.

The Non-Executive Directors meet at least once a year
without the Executive Directors present. All Girectors
submit to re-election each year at the Annual General
Meaating ("AGM") of the Company.

The Board meets at least four times each year with
additional meetings when clrcumstances and urgent
business dictate. At cach meeting the Board raviews a
schedule of reserved matters including trading
performance, financial strength, strategy (including
investment and acquisition opportunities), risk
management, controls, compliance, reports to
shareholders and succession management

The Directors have established three committees of its
Board, namely the Audit, Risk and AlM Rules Compliance
Committes, the Remuneration Committee and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (ESG
Cormmittes).

The audit, Risk and AlM Rules Compliance Committee is
chaired by Chris Swestland and has primary
responsibility for monitoring the gquality of internal
controls, ensuring that the financial performance of the
Company is properly measured and reported on and
reviewing reports from the Company's auditors relating to
the Enlarged Group's accounting and internal controls, in
all coses having due regard to the interests of
Shareholders. The sudit, Risk and AIM Rules Compliance
Committee meets at least twice a year Mark Smith is the
other member of the Audit, Risk and AIM Rules
Compliance Committee. Cliver Rigby, CFO, attends Audit,
Risk and AlM Rules Complhance Committee meetings by
nvitation.

The Remunsration Committee is chaired by isabeat Kelly,
and reviews the performance of the Executive Directors
and determines their terms and conditions of service,
including their remuneration and the grant of options,
having due regard to the interests of shareholders. The
Remuneration Committee meaet at least once a year.
Mark Smith is the other member of the Remuneration
Committee

The Remuneration Committee also considers Beard
policy in relation to the remuneration of the Chairmnan of
the Board. Non-Executive Director remuneration is ¢
motter for the Chairman and the executive members of
the Board. No Director is involved in any decisions as to
their own remuneration or benefits

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
(EsG Committee) is chaired by Isabel Kelly, and has the
primary responsibility to Assist Executive Managerment in
setting the Company’s general strategy with respect to
ESG Matters, and to consider and recommend policies,
practices, and disclosures that conform with the strategy.

The ESG Committee meets at least twice a year
Christopher Sweetland and Rachel Neaman are the other
members of the ESG Committes

The Panoply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Principle 6 ~ Ensuie that bstween them the
Direciors have the nacessary up-to-dates
ence, skills and capabilities.

The Board members and their relevant experience and
skills are detailed on pages 84 and 85. The Non-Executive
Chairman believes that, as a whole, the Board has a
suitable mix of skills and competencies covering all
essential disciplines bringing a balanced perspective that
is beneficial both strategically and operationaily and will
aenabie the Company to deliver its strategy. The Board
consists of two executive directors and four non-
executive diractors, all of whom are independent. The
nature of the Company’s business requires the Directors
to keep thair skillset up to date. Updates to the Board on
regulatory matters are given by Company’s professional
advisers when appropriate

exnefi

In addition to the support provided by the Company’s
retained professional advisers (Nominated Adviser,
lawyers, auditor and M&A adviser), external consultants
have been engaged to advise on a number of matters
including tax planning and market research. External
advisers attend Board meetings or committee meetings
as invited by the Non-Executive Chairman to report
and/or discuss specific matters relevant to the Company.

Principle 7 - Evaluste Bogrd performonce

3

£ eNess Process

The Chairman is responsible for the regular evaluation of
the Board's performance and that of its commitiees and
individual Directors. This year the Group undertook a
board review, which focused on assessing the board’s
effectiveness and govermancs. The results focusad on
four key araas where the following scores were recorded:

. Strategy and Business: 84%

. Risk Management and ESG: gU%

- Composition and Diversity. 75%

. Board Dynamics and Process: 81%

As this is the first time undertaking this review these
rosults will be used as a benchmark for the board and will
be reviewed again on a yearly basis. Some of the actions
coming out of the review include the following:

. More in-person meetings and dedicated strategy
away-doy once Covid restrictions are lifted

. Improvement in ethnic diversity on the boord

. Further integration of financial and non-financial
reporting

The Remuneration Committee meet as and when
necessary to consider the appointment of new executive

and nen-execulive directors, although the Board as a
whole take responsibility for succession planning. Board
members ali have appropriate hotice periods so that if a
Board member indicates his/her intention to step down,
thera would be sufficient time to appoint a replacement,
whether internal or exlernul.

The Company's Articles of Association require that one-
third of the Directors must stand for re-election by
sharehoiders annually in rotation and that any new
Directoers appointed by the Board during the relevant year
must stand for election at the annual general mecting
immediately following their appointment. Any Directors
who are not employed by the Company or halding
executive office who have served on the Board for at
least nine years will be subject te annual re-election

Beard appointments are made after consultation with
advisers including the Nominated Adviser who
undertakss due diligence on all new potential Beard
candidates.

Following consultation with the Remuneration Committeg
and Nominated Advisers On the 19th October 2020,
Rache! Neaman was appeinted to the Board as a non-
executive director.

frinciple 8 - Promote a corporaie
thatis based on ethical value
behovicurs,

Wwe are bound together by a collective belief that

business can be a force for good and that the work we
undertake delivers impact beyond just financial gain.

As our Group evolves and grows so should the values that
drive us As we finalise the new power brand te launch in
September 2021, we will be developing unified values and
behaviours for the integrated business.

As a pecple-focussed business, the four values that
underpin our culture are:

Collabaration for impact

Ambition with inclusion

Difference with authenticity

Agility with trust
Further details on aur culture and four themes can be
found on page 13.
Frinciple 8 - Maintein governane
structures dnd jproces
DUFpOSE onti sUpr
rrciking by the Board,
On behalf of the Board, the CEO has overall responsibility
for managing the day to day operations and the Board
as o whole 1s responsible for monitoring performance
against the Group’s goals and objectives. The individual

Board members’ specific responsibilities, contributions
and skills are set out on pages 84 and 85.

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The Board has established three standing Committees,
the Audit, Risk and AIM Rulas and Compliance Cormmittee
{Audit Committee), the Remuneration Committes, and
the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
{ESG Committes). Membership of the Audit Committes,
the Rermuneration Committee and the ESG Committee
during the year under review was exclusively Non-
Executive.

Principle 10 -~ Communicate how :
Compony is governaed and is parforr
maintaining gus with st
and other relavani stakeholders.

The Company maintains a regular dialogue with key
stakeholders including shareholders to enable interested
parties to make informed decisions about the Group and
its performance Further details regarding the Directors'
engagement with stakeholders can be found in

Section 172 an pages 78 to 8]

i

Historical annual reports and notices of general meetings
can be found In the Financial Reports saction of the
Group’s website.

The Board discloses tha results of Annual Genercl
Meetings and these can be found in the Regulatory News
section of the website.

The audit Committee meets at least twice a year,
dlthough the Company’s Auditors or any member of the
Audit Committee may request a meeting at any time,
should they consider that one is necessary. The role of the
Audit Committee is to make recommendations te the
directors and shareholders, in relation to the
appointment, re-appointment and remaval of the
Company's External Auditors and to approve their
remuneration and terms of engagement. Prior to the
commencement of each annual or interim audit, the
Audit Committee will discuss and agree the nature and
scope of the audit with the External Auditors and in
digcussion with them, will maniter the integrity of the
financial statements of the Group and approve any
formal announcements relating to the Company's
financial performance.

The Audt Committee develops and implements policies
on the engagement of the External Auditors to supply
non-audit services and will report to the Cirectors,
identifying any matiers where the Audit Commitise
considers that action or improvement is needed, making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken.

The audit Committee is authorised by the Board te
investigate any activity within its terms of reference and
may seek information it requires from any empioyse of
the Company. The Audit Commitiee may seck outside
professional advice at the cast of the Company, in order
to secure any relevant experience or expertise it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties.

the panoply//

The Audit Committee report can be found on pages 94 to
95 with the Independent Auditars report found on
pages 102 to 108

The Remuneration Committee report can be found on
pages 82 and 93.

The ESG Committee report can ke found on page 9.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Frvirenmzntal, Secial and Governance Commiitas
During the vear the ESG Committee ("the Committes”)
comprised lsabel Kelly, Rachel Neaman and Christoper
Sweetland, these members are independent Non-
Executive Directors and details of their skills, experience
and gualifications is set out on pages 84 and 85.

The committee also comprises the following members of
the executive, Bryony Witde, Head of Impact, Luke Murphy,
Head of Investor Relations and Communications, James
Herkert, CEO of Foundry4 and Ching Chong, Group
Financial Controller and Committee Secretary.

The Committee will also invite divisional leaders and
specialists relevant to the Commitiee’s agenda, and
Employee Rescurce Group (ERG) Leaders on a regular
basis as appropriate.

The main responsibilities of the Committes are
summarised below:

. Assist Executive Management in setting the
Company’s genaral strategy with respect to ESG
Matters, and to consider and recommeand paolicies,
practices, and disclosures that conform with the
strategy;

. To oversee the Compoany's reporting and disclosure
with respect to ESG Matters made in compliance
with existing and future legislation set by the
Financial Cenduct Authority and standards on
environmental, social impact D&l related legislation.

- To assist the Executive Management in oversesing
internal and external communications regarding the
Company’s pesition or approach to ESG Matters;

. To consider and bring to the attention of Executive
Management and Board, as appropriate, current
and emaerging ESG Matters that may affect the
business, operations, performance or public image
of tho Company or are athenaise pertinent to the
Company and its stakeholders, and to make
recommendations on how the Company's palicies,
practices and disclosures can adjust to or address
current trends;

To advise Executive Management on stockholder
praposals and other significant stakeholder
concerns relating te ESG Matters;

i FY

oIy o Gy |
In FY2021, the Committee was established with the core
purpose of supporting the Company's ongeing
commitment to peoplg planet and community matters
relevant to the Company.

The Committee's core work programme focused on
establishing the apprepriate reporting framework and the
specific targets and KPI's relevant to this framewaork.

The Group appeintad EthicsPoint to support its formal
whistleblowing service Whistleblowers can report in

confidence to the Chair of the ESG Committee, who has
responsibility for investigating any concerns. The Board
and the Committee are made aware of any concerns at
Board or Committes mestings as appropriate and
informed as to the resolution or cther status of
complaints.

There were six meetings held in the year from 1st April
2020 to 31st March 2021

EEG reporting
The Committee reviewed and evaluated the

appropriateness of the annual ESG report with
managament, including:

the clarity of disclosures and complianee with the
World Economic Forum (WEF} Disclosure standards,
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), Streamlined
Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) and relevant
financial and governance legislation

Ensuring that the methodologies used to collect and
aggregate data were fair and that the proxies and
assumgtions made to benchmark our data were
reasonable.

The Committee is able to gquastion management at
both Group and business unit levels to gain further
insight into the issues addressed in these reports.

The outputs of the reporting and disclosures help
the Group identify their progress towards their 2023
and 2025 impact vision as set out on pages 1

and 12.

The key significant ESG reporting sections and
outputs are further explained on pages 32 to 81
under the Sustainable Future section.

Isabel Kelly
Chdirman of the Environmental Social and Governance
Cormrmittae

1Z August 2021
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Remunerdalion Report

Pemuneration Cornmittes
The Remuneraticn Committee determines, on behalf of the Beard, the Group's policy for executive remuneration and

the individual remuneration packages for the Executive Directors. in setting the Group's remuneration policy, the
Remuneration Committee considers a number of facters, including the following:

salaries and benalils avuiluble to Executive Directors of comparable companies;
the need to attract and retain Executives of an appropriate calibre; and

the need to ensure continued commitment of Executives to the Group's success through appropriate ncentive
schemes.

The Committes mests at least once a year.
Remunseration Committes Cperatin
Given the increasing size of the company the Committee has werked this year to create and approve a Remuneration

Committee Operating Policy which adds practical, operational interpretation and builds out the committees Terms of
Reference adopted in November 2018.

Folicy

Section 6.1 of the Terms of Reference outlines the duties and respensibilties of the committee. The Remuneration
Committee have now added practical interpretation to the fellowing:

Censider and recommend the remuneration for Executive Directors and senior employees {defined as anyone
reperting to an Executive Director).

When setting remuneration paolicy for Directors have regard to pay and employment conditions across the
company.

. Obtain reliable informaticn akout remuneration in other companies.
Approve the appointment and contractual terms for all Executive Directors.
. Review and oversee the company's employes benefits structure.
Review the policy for approval of expensas incurred by Executive Directors,
retnungration of Executive Directors
The remunerction packages comprise the fellowing components:

Base salary
The Remuneration Committee sets the base salary by reference to responsibilities and the skills, knowledge and
experience of the individual

. Bonus scheme and other benefits
There is no annual Bonus scheme or other benefits in place currently.

. Share Incentive Schemes

An EMI and unapproved option scheme were implemented in the prior period and options were awarded to each
of the Executive Directors.

. Other benefits

Private meadical and life cover for employess including the Dirgctors have been provided in the current year

lermuneration of Hoan-fxecutive Directlors

The fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board. They are not entitled to receive any Lonus or
other beneafits but did receive unapproved share options at the time of their appointment. Non-Excoutive Directors’
letters of dppointment are on a threge-month roling basis.

The Panaply Holdings Plc
the panoply# Company number: 10533096
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Direciors’ remuneration
Details of individual Directers’ emoluments for the year {excluding smployer's National Insurance contributions) are as

follows:

Non-Executive
tAark Smith
(appointed 18 October 2018}
Christapher Sweet and

(appointed 18 October 2018}

Isabel Kelly
{appointed 18 October 2018)

Ruchel Neaman
{appainted 19 October 2020)

Executive

Neal Gandni
{appointed 20 December 2015)
Qliver igby

{eppointed 20 December 2016)
Total

Directors’ interests i

158
. 569

1 SNGres

- 7 57 54 21
- 4 - 39 38 14
- 4 - 39 32 12
- - 6 - -
1 2/ 4 320 296 148

23 e 2 210 ] 189 150

37 68 8 &8l 599 345

The interests of the Directors in the Ordinary Shares of the Company at 31 March 2021,

e sfgee o

Christopher Pow Sweetland
Isabel Kelly

mMark Wilhlam Smuth

Rachel Nearnan

Neal Gandhi

Cliver Righy

Lo ISt VI

30,602

bitectors’ interzsis in share options

The directors have been granted options over the shares of the Company as follows:

Christopher Pou' Swectiand
Christopher Paul Sweetland
Christopher Paul Sweetland
sabel Jane Kelly

I1sabel Jane Keliy

Isabel Jane Kelly

pMark willam smith

pAcirk Williarn Smith

wark williarm Srrith

Neal Gandhi

Nedal Gandhi

Neal Gandai

Cliver Righy
Cliver Righy
Cliver Righy

By order of the Board

Isabel Kelly
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

12 August 2021

20300
20,300
20,302

20,300
20,300
20,302

33,834
33,834
33,836
135,338
135,338
135,340

135,338

135338
135,340

80,000 30000
122,000 122603 122,000
1765 -
12,081.000 9306885 9,786,884
50087,7¢81 5,056,107 5,124,930
15382546 14524922 15,063,814
[ Tyt 31-Mar-20 & Bl
31-Mar-21 I Ak
- Unaopraved scheamo 20,300— 74p 31/0 /2
Unapproved scheme 20,300 Tap 21/03/22
- unapproved scheme 20,302 Tap 3nfeaies
- Unapproved scheme 20,300 74p 31/03/21
- Unagppraved scheme 20,300 ELs] /03/22
- Unapproved scheme 20,302 rap a1/e3/23
- Unappraved scheme 33,834 ap KilisxTh
- Unaoproved schermo 33,834 74p 31/03/22
Unapproved scheme 33,838 74p 3j/caf2a
- EMI scheme 135,338 74p 31/03/21
- EMI scheme 135,338 74p 3j03/22
- FrI schemie 135,340 T4p 3fcaf2z
- Er| scheme 135,338 74p 31/03/21
- EMI scheme 135,338 14p 21/03/22
- EMI scheme 135,340 74p 31/e3/23
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Audit, Risk and Aim Rules Complionce Commitiee

During the year The Audit, Risk and AlM Rules Compliance
Committes ("the Committee’) comprised Christopher
Swastland and Mark Smith. Both members are
incependent Non-Executive Directors and details of their
skills, experience and gualifications set out on pages 84
and Bb. The Chief Financial Officer und e Group
Financial Director attend the meetings. The Committea
will also invite divisional leaders and specialists relevant
and external auditors to the Committee’s agenda if
appropriate.

kiain responsibitities

The terms of reference for the Committee are based on
the Guidance on Audit Commitieas 1ssued by the

Financial Reporting Council. The main responsibitities of
the Committee are summarised below:

. review the integrity of the financial statements of
the Group and any formal announcements relating
to the Group's financial performance

. raview the Group's internal controls established to
identify, assess, manage and monitor risks, and
receive reports from management on the
effectivensss of the systems it has established, and
the conclusions of any testing performed by internal
audit and the external auditar

. make recommendations to the Board in relation to
the appointment of the external auditer and
approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external cuditor

. assess the independence, cbjectivity and
effactiveness of the external cuditor and develop
and implement palicy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-audit services

. review the integrity of the statement in the Annual
Report on baing fair, balanced and understandable,
as required under the Companies Act 2006

- 2 Lol LD
In 2021, the Committee’s core work programmee focused
on o number of significant issues and other accounting
judgements where the Committee believed the highest
level of judgemeant was required and with the highest
potential impact on the Group's financial statements
There were seven meetings held in the year from 1 April
2020 to 31 March 2021

Finuncial reporting
The Committee reviewed and evaluated the
appropridteness of the interim and annual financial
statements (includtng the announcements thereof 1o the
London Stock Exchange) with both management and the
external auditor, including:

at the Board's request, whether the Annual Report
and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and providas the
information necessary for shargholders to assess
the Group's position and performance, business
rmodel and strategy

the panoply//

. the clarity of disclosures and compliance with
financial reporting standards and relevant financial
and governance

discussing the critical accounting policies and usc
of assumptions and estimates, as noted on

pages 124 and 12b ot this Annual keport and
rinancia! Statements, and concluding that the
astimates, judgements and assumptions used were
reasonable based on the information avaitable and
had been used appropriately in applying the
Group's accounting policies

- reviewing the gong concern and viability of the
Group over the longer term as part of its
assessment of the Group's risks

The Committee is able to question management at both
Group and business unit levels to gain further insight into
the issues addressed in these reports. The key significant
financial reporting issues and other accounting
judgements are set below and further explained on
pages 124 and 125 under section critical accounting
iudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty.

Significant accounting judgginents
Revenue and margin recognition

The Committee from time to time discusses revenuc
recegnition within the Group whether they are
aligned to IFRS 15. This includes finding out any
challenges subsidiaries may have in implementing
IFRS 15 in their inance framework and accounts.

Carrying value of goodwill and other intangibles

The judgement largely relates to the assumptions
underlying the value in use of the cash-generating
units, primarily the macroeconomic assumptions
(such as discount rates) underpinning the valuation
process. The Commiitee received reports from
management who prepared reports setting out the
allecation of the purchase price between goodwill
and other intangibles. The Committee aiso received
reports from management outining the impairment
model and the assumptions used; in addition, the
external auditor provided detailed wiritten reports in
this arec.

Carrying value of investments

The judgement largely relates to the assumptions
underlying the value of investments held by the
parent company. The Committee received reports
from managemant indicating their assessment of
the potential impairment of investments inciuding
consideration of triggering events, the calculation of
value in use and digcount rates and sensitivity
analysis.

- Fair value of contingent consideration

The Cemmittes has reviewed the assumption used
to calculate the fair value of contingent
consideration. This primarily includes a review and

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533086
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



chalienge of any EBITDA adjustments used in the
calculation of valuations.

. Going concern

In order to satisty itself that the Group has adequate
resuurues to Cortinue in operation for the
foreseeable future and that there are ne material
uncertainties that could lead to significant doubt as
to the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, the Committee considered the Group's
budgets and forecasts, cash position {bath existing
and prejectad), bank facilities and covenants.

External auditor independence and
affectiveness

The Committee will carry out a formal review cach year,
to assess the independence and effectiveness of the
external auditor, Nexia Smith and williamson {NSW). The
Committee has satisfied itself as to NSW's independence
and effectiveness

tland
Chairmman of the Audit, Risk and AIM Rules and
Compliance Committee

12 August 2021

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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Directors Report

The Directors present their Annual Report on the affairs of
the Group, together with the Financial Statements and
Auditor's report, for the year ending 31 March 2021

Principol activities

The Panoply 1s a technology-enabled services group, built
to service clents’ digital transformation needs. Founded
in 2016, with the cim of identifying and acquiring best-of-
breed specialist information technology, design and
innovation consulting businesses, the Group collaborates
with its clients to deliver the technology cutcomes theyre
looking for at the pace that they expect and dermand.

The Group is being increasingly recognised as a leading
alternative digital transformation provider to the UK
public services sector, with 71% of its client base
represanting the public sector and 29% representing the
commercial sector.

Further infarmation can be found in the Strategic Report
on pages 2to 8l

General information
The Panoply Haldings Plc is a public limited company
listed on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange on

4 December 2018 and is incorporated and domiciled in
the UK. The Cempany's registered number is 10533096

The Articles of Associdgtion for The Panoply can be
accessed on the website at
https:/ fwww thepanoply.com/finvestors-hub/overview.

An updated version of our majer shareholders table is
available on our website

Carporats governance
The staterment on corporate governance on pages 86

to 90 is included in the Directors’ Report by way of
reference.

Resultz and dividends
The Group’s loss after taxation was £2.2m (2020: £3.0m
loss). The audited financial statements of the Group are
set out on pages 109 te 158. A maiden interim dividend of
0.2 pence per share was declared for H1 2021, which was
paid on 29 January 2021 to shoreholders on the register ot
the close of business on the 8 January 2021

The Directors propose a dividend™ of 0.4p per share for
the yoar ended 31 March 2021 (2020: £Nil).

3 Fevis
The information satisfying the strategic review
requiremeants is set out in this report cn pages 2 to 8l

o
e

Ongoing concerns

The Group's business activities, together with the factors
likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out on pages 3 to 28. The financial

*Subyject to approval ot the AGM and on publication of the FY2C21 Comparny
stotutory accourts demonstroting sufficient distributable reservos.

the panoply

position of the Group, its billings, gross profit and
profitability are described on pages 28 and 29. Details of
the key risks and uncertainties in the business, including
the operational impact of Covid-19 and expected impact
on the economy, along with the mitigation has been
prasented in the risks and uncertainties is presented on
pages 75 to 77

Having considered the Group’s cash flows, liquidity
position and borrowing fucilities, and after reviewing the
budgets and cash projections for the next twelve months
ond beyond, the Directors beliove that the Group and the
Company have adequate resources to continue
cperations for the foreseeable future and for this reason
they continue te adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

Directors
The present membership of the Board is as follows:
Mark Smith, Non-Executive Chairman,
Chris Sweetland, Non-Executive Director,
. Isabel Kelly, Non-Executive Director,
Oliver Rigby, Chief Financial Officer,
Neal Gandhi, Chief Executive Officer.

On the 18 October 2020 Rachel Neaman, Non-Executive
Director, was appointed to the Board

The nomes and kiographical details of the current
Directors cof the Company are given on pages 84 and 85
During the year under review, all Non-Executive Directors
were independent of management and any busingss or
other relationships which could interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement.

Details of Directors’ interests in the Company's shares,
service contracts and rernuneration are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 82 and 93.
Post-kb:olunce sheet events

Details of post-balance sheet events are given in Note 27.

Folitizal donation

The Group hos not made any pelitical denations during
the year. (2020:£nil)

Energy and Corboen Reporiing

We are committed to reducing any negative impact we
have on the planet and have invested significantly in
expertise and technology to identify our greenhouse gas
emissicons.

This is the first yeor we have repoited our emissions
farmally in-line with the UK Government’s Streamlined
Erergy and Carbon Reporting {SECR) requirernent. More
in depth datg, analysis and commentary on our
environmental impact are included in the ESG section of
this annual report and we will look to continually improve
our environmeantal reporting as our processes cvolve.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number; 14533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Energy and Carbon breakdown from 1 April 2020 to 3ist
March 2021

Energy use
Totul energy consurmption: Kwh 89,72/
Energy consumption break down:
. natural gas kwh 31,437
. vehicle fuel Kwh 15,018
. purchased electricit KWh 20532
. business travel, car {diese\) KWh 272,632
. business travel, train (electricity) KWh 704
. business travel, aeroplane

{aviation fuel) kwWh 357
Greenhouse gas emissions
Total scope I: tCOse 677
Scepe 1 break down:
. natural gas 1CG5e 8.41
- vehicle fuel tCQse 0.36
Tetal scope 2 tCOse 479
Scope 2 break down:
. purchased electricity tCOse 479
Total scope 3% tCCse 204
Scope 3 break down:
. business travel t COqe 248
Total gross greenhouse gas
emissions t COpe 14.03
Intensity ratio, kilograms of L COge/Em 0331
CO9p equivalents per hundred revenue)

thousand British Pounds of
revenuc

*Only Includes greenhouse gas emrissions fram business travel, excluding
emissiors from snert-term occommodation or sabsistence

Reducing oul impaoct

In the repoerting period, we have carried out severdl
actions to help us understand and reduce our
greenhouse gas emissions. More detgils of these can be
found in the ESG section of this report, however highlights
include.

. Partnered with Emitwise, a leading provider of
emissions measurement software, to help us
understand our complete carbon footpnnt

. Invested in Gold Standard carbon offsets such as
renewable energy projects as part of our policy to
offset emissions

. Provided lower cost access to electric vehicles for
employees using an EV salary sacrifice scheme

. Educated empioyees on the actions they can take,
using courses from Climate in Colour, Rewilding
Britain, The Beaver Trust, and Olio

tethodology

To quantify the greenhouse gas emissions of our
activities, we have followed the 2019 HM Government
Envircnmental Reporting Guidelines and the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol - Corporate Standard.

For natural gas (scope 1), emissions factors from the 2020
UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting {BAIS, 2020) were used.

For vehicle fuel (scope 1), the spend-based calculation
approach of the GHG Protocol — Carpoerate Standard was
followed, with emissions factors from the envirenmentally
extended input output model, EXIOBASE, for “retail sale of
automctive fuel” in the United Kingdom used.

For purchased electricity {scope 2), the location-based
calculation approach of the GHG Protocol — Corporate
Standard was followad, with emission factoers from the
2020 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting used.

For business travel, the spend-based calculation
approach of the GHG Protocol — Corporate Standard was
followed for passenger car and rail travel, with emissions
factors from the envircnmentally extended input ocutput
maodel, EXIOBASE, for "other land transport” in the United
Kingdom used. For air travel, the distance-based
calculation approach of the GHG Protocol - Corporate
Standard was followed, with emissions factors from the
2020 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting (BAIS, 2020} used.

antl Corruption

The directors are not aware of any incidents.

share Copital

As at 31 March 202, The Panoply had 80,428,360 Crdinary
shares {£0.01) in issue, listed on AM. These shares hold the
right to vote at a general meating.

The Company has not purchased any of its own shares
during the year.

Details of the number of share options held under the
employee scheme are available in note 5.5 to the
financial stotements

“f = {0 g issued

The Company is required to issue further shares as
contingent consideration for their acquisitions. A
maximurm of 13,728,000 shares remain to be 1ssued under
this obligation.

Further details of the remaining shares to be issued are
crovided in note 20 of the financial statements

Finunoial 1 sinent and ohizoiives
Details of financial risk management and cbjectives are
contained in Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial

Staterments.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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Directors Report continued

Awarenass of relevant audit informs
Each of the Directors who heald office at the date of
approval of this Directors’ Report confirms that, so far as
they are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the
Auditor is unaware; and

the Directors have taken all the steps they ocught to
have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the
Auditor is aware of that infermation.

Annual Generai Heeting

The Annual General Meceting will be held in Lendon on

23 September 2021 — at I am. Notice of the Annual
General Meeting will be sent to shareholders on 12 August
2021

independeant Audite:
Nexia Smith & Willamson was appointed as Auditor to the
Group on 12 September 2018. There are no centractual
obligations in place that restrict our choice of statutory
Auditor.

By order of the Board

‘ -fu'_.z/

g 4% b oL Ly 1Y
Qliver Righy
Company Secretary
12 August 2021

the panoply#
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Statement of Direclors Responsibil

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directers te prepare financial
statements for each financiat year. Under that law the
Directars have elected to prepare the Group and
Company financial statements in accerdance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and International
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Under company law the Directors must not opprove the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Campany and of the Group and of the protit or loss of the
Group for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are reguired to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply
thern consistently;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that
are regsondble and prudent;

. state whether international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 have been followed subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statemonts, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to prasume
that the Company will continue In business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient te show and
explain the Group's transactions, disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companios Act
2008.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and dstection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the
Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report, in addition to
any other information included in the Annual Report and
Financial Statements, is prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom company law. They are also responsible
for ensuring that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements includs information reguired by the AIM Rules.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. L egislation in the
United Kingdorm governing the preparation and
dissemination of the financial statements and other
information included in annual reports may differ from
legistation in other jurisdictions.

y
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Independent Auditor's Report [o the members of
The Panoply Holdings plc

Qpinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Panoply Holdings Pic (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the
‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consalidated and
Company Statements of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows anel the notes to the financigl statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’'s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of
the group’s loss for the year then ended;

. have bean properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2008; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our gudit in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (UX) (15as (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial staternents section of our report. We are independant of the group and parent company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financicl statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
Qur opinion.

Conchunions relating o going congcern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors” use of the going concern basis of

accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of
the group and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

. Challenging the assumptions used in the detailed budgsts and forecasts prepared by management for the
financial years ending 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023;

. Assassing the mathematical accuracy of the detailed budgets and forecasts provided by managerment;

- Comparing forecasts with actuals in the year and post year-end, ta consider management's forecasting ability;
. Considering the sensitivity of the assumptions and re-assessing headroom after sensitivity,

. Considering the group’'s funding position and requirements, and

. Reviewing and chalienging management's calculations suggesting the Group is able to comply with all loan
facility covenants in the 12 months from approval at the financial statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply:/ Company number: 10533096
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Key audid maiters

We identifiad the key audit matters described below as those that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
staterments of the current period. Key audit matters include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstaternent, including those risks that had the greatest effect on our overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources
in the audit and the dircction of tho offorts of the audit team

In addressing these matters, we have performed the procedures below which were designed to address the matters in
the context of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon. Consequently, we do not provide
a separate opinion on these individual matters.

We focused on this area due to the high level of
judgements and assurnptions necassary Lo
perform valuations of separately dentifiable
intangible assets arising from the acquisition of a
business.

We challenged management on the identification
of intangitle assets and the inputs and
assumptions used in the purchase price allocation
('PPA‘) to determine the value of the identifiable
assets and habilities:

As part of our procedures we:
Reviewecd the Share Purchase allocation’s

The Group has a business model based
on acguinng businesses’ and during the
year, three acguisitions have taken
place.

Business combinations
occounting ~ Group {See
Note 8)

There are significant judgements and
assumptions involved to perform
valuations of separately identifiable
intangible assets arising from the
acquisition of ¢ business

There s a risk that the values and

allocations of inlangible assets and
goodwill recognised are not in .

accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standord {IFRS} 3 ‘Business
combinations’.

{'sPas’) for each entity acquired during the
period

Obtained the PPA report prepared internally
and externally, together with the business
combination calculations for each
acquisition and checked the mathematcal
accuracy ot thase. Confirrmed the basis of

P P SINNODOV R LHOdAd 1¥NNNY 1202
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support for judgements used by o
management. =

. Used our internal valuations team to assess =

the valuation model prepared in respect of
each acquisition, including the basis and
methodelogy adopted for identifying
separate intangibles distinct from goodwill
and the fair value of the consideration
recognised

Checked the appropricteness of discount
factors applied

Considered the overall valuation of intangible
assets identified relative 1o similar companies
in the industry

Agreed the calculation of residual goodwill
based on the ceonsideration payable and
identifiable assets and habilities.

Reviewed acquisition costs to ensure these
have been expensed within the Income
Statement in line with IFRS3.

Reviewad the appropriateness of the of the

useful lives applied to the intangible assets
identified

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of
The Panoply Holdings plc continued

- e e = = == e e L =TI = -
" Fair Velue of contingent The Share Purchase Agreements {SPAs) We challenged the inputs and assumptlions
consideration - Group and  contain clauses for contingent used to determine the fair value of the
! company (See Note 20) - consideration and clawback provisions contingent consideration payable at acquisition
' based on the acquired entities’ and subsequently at the reporting date.

performance cver the first two to four

A N As part of our procedures we
years following acquisition

. Reviewed the SPAs to oblain an

Monagement are reguired to apply understanding of consideration payable.

judgement to determine the fair value of

the consideration payable, n accordance - Reviewed and challenged management's
with IFRS 3 forecasts of future resuits which underpins
how the contingent consideration is
calculated.
. Compared histerical forecasts ogainst

actual resuits and corroborated
rmanagement’s assertions where
: recsonably practicable

. Checked the appropriateness of discount
factors applied

. Assaessed if any of the contingent
consideration should be treated as
empiloyee benefits given that some of the
vendors have been retained in the

business.
Revenue - Group (See The Group's activities include the As part of our procedures we:
Note 3) provision of business IT management, . Gained an understanding by testing the

desian, implementation and support
services. Thesa services have multiple
deliverables and can be a fixed or
\ variable price A number of contracts are
 expected to span the year end and the
acguisition dates.

design and implementation of controls
over revenue recognition which have been
put in place by the Group to prevent and
detect fraud and errors in revenue
recognition.

- Reviewed terms of major customer
contracts ond assessed the accounting
for each revenue stream for compliance

. Judgement will be involved in determining
i the levels of revenue to be recognised in

! | line \_n:lth IFRS 15 ‘Revenue reo_ogmtlon’, with FRS 15,
particutarly for contracts which span the
- year end and acquisition dotes. . Performed tests of details on the different

! revenue streams starting tests from
invaice and separalely fram contracts

i . Performed cut off testing around the
subsidiary acquisition dates and the year-
end to determine if revenue is recognised
in the correct period

Carrying value of goodwill - The Group has a signficant camrying value  We reviewed management's assessment of
Group (Ses Note 9) of goodwill arising on the acquisition of impairment of goodwill We challenged
businesses in tha prior year and current assumptions and assertions made by
year. management in their assessment and

considered whether the presence of impairment
- indicators should resultin an impairment
charge.

An annual impairment review 1s required
lo assess the carrying value of goodwill
for each cash generating unit (CGU)

The Panaoply Holdings Flc
the panoply// Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



" Carrying value of

investments in subsidiaries

" - Company (See Note 1)

Managemaent uses a discounted cash
flow model and compares the resulting
valuation Lo Wi canying value of goadwill
for each CGU to assess if any impairment
is required.

- There are significant judgerments and

assumptions, such as growth rates end
discount factors, used by management in
determining the valuation.

» The Company has significant balances

relating to investments in subsidiaries,

. The investrments relate to the acquisition

of subsidiaries in prior year and current
year.

Tha carrying value of the investrnents in

. subsidiaries is also underpinned by the

future financial viabikty of the subsidiaries.

As part of our audil procedures we:

Obtained the discounted cash flow
models and the underlying valuations for
each cash generating unit and checked
Llhe mathematical accuracy of these.
Confirm the basis of support for
judgements and assumptions used by
management.

. Reviewed and challenged management's
forecasts of future results which underping
how the valuations are calculated.

. Compared historical forecasts against
actual results and carroborate
managerneant’s assertions where
reasonably practicable.

. Ugsed our internal valualions leam to
assess the valuation models and the
approprateness of the discount rates
applied

. petformed sensitivity analysis on kay
assumptions used in the calculations

. Considered the market capitalisation
valug of the group as at 31 March 2021
We reviewed management's assessment of
impairrment of the carrying value of investments
in subsidianes We challenged assumptions and
assertions made by management in their
assessment and considercd whether the
presence of impairment indicators should result
in an impairment charge

© As part of our audit procedures we

ot Considered whether the market

capitalisation of the group is less than the
carrying amount of investment balances
and therefore highlighting o potential
impairment indicator

. Challenged assumptions and assertions
made by management in their
assessment of tha investment balances
and considered whether the presence of
impairment indicators shoutd result in an
impairment charge

. Reviewed the forecasted resullts of the
subsidiaries and corrcborated
management’s assertions wherg
reqsenably procticsl

. Discussed with management the
underlying future ond planned activities of
the subsidiaries.

. Reviewed any Lhird parly reperts such as
investor analysis

. Obtained the discounted cash flow
models and assessed the mathematical
accuracy of each valuation

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Coempany number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021

105

AT E T SINNQODV R 180d3d TYNNNY leog




106

Inclependent Auditor's Report to the mernbers of
The Par‘mpi\j Loldings ple continued

Our application of muateriality

The materiality for the group financial statements as a whole ("group FS materiality”) was set at £860,000 This has been
determined with reference to the kenchmark of the group’s revenue, which we consider to be one of the principal
considerations for members of the company in assessing the group’s performance. Group FS materiolity represents
1.75% of rovonue ag presented on the fare nf the Consolidated Income Statement. This is an increase from the prior year
benchmark of 15% of revenue due to the increased size and diversification of the group.

The materiality for the Company financial statements as o whole was set at £5659,00C, capped by the performance
materiality of the Group. This has been determined with reference to the benchmark of the Company’s assets, which we
consider to be an appropriate measure as the Cormpany exists only as a holding company for the Group. Materiality
represents 0.8% of total assets as presented on the face of the Company's Statement of Financial Position.

Performance materiality for the group financial statements was set at £559,000, being 65% of group FS materality, for
purposes of assessing the risks of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit
procedures. We have set it at this amount to reduce to an appropriately low leve! the prebabllity that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstaternents exceeds FS materiality. We judged this level to be appropriate based on
our understanding of the group and its financial statements, as updated by our risk assessment procedures and our
expectation regarding current period misstatements including considering experience from previous audits where a
high number of audit adjustments were offset by management's willingness to adjust and adapt for these.

Performance materiality for the parent company financial statements was set at £363,000, being 85% of parent FS
materiality. The level of performance materiality as a psrcentage of financial statement materiality has been
determined using the same reasoning os for the Group, noted above.

An overview of ihe « cope of the audit

All of the Group's reporting components were subject to audit for group reporting purposes, thus ensuring all of the
group's revenue, expanses, assets and liabilities were encompassed in our group audit.

Four of the compenents subject to audit for group reporting purposes were bosed in Norway and Bulgaria respectively
and its audits were carried out by component guditors based in Norway and Bulgario. We held video calls with the
auditors of the Bulgarian and Norwegian compaonents, and on these calls performed our review of their audit working
papers.

Other infermation

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report and Accounts, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report therecn. The directers are responsible for the other information. Cur opinion on the
Annual Report and Accounts does not cover the other infermation and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do net express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such materiat inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatsment in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this cther informaticn, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to repert in this regard.

: fons or rnatters preseribed by the Comp
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the Gud\t

the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared Is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
reguirements.

The Panoply Holdings Pic
the panoply// Company number. 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



itizis on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and thair environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.
We have nothing te repert in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to yod if, in our epinior:
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilitics of directors

As explaned more fully In the directors’ responsibilities staternent set out on page 98, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give o true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s
ability to continue as o going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic afternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities foy the gudit of the linanciud statements

Cur objectives are to ocbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financicl statements as awhao'e are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
15as (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staterments.

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of nen-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstaterments in respact of irregularities, including froud.
The extent to which our procedures are copable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below:

Weo cbtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the group and parent company as
well as the laws and regulations applicable, and considered these throughout our testing. We obtained an
understanding of the group and parent company’s policies and procedures by discussions with management. We also
drew on our existing understanding of the company’s industry and regulation.

We understand the compaony complies with requirerments of these frameworks through:

. The Directors updating operating precedures, manuals and internal controls as legal and regulatery requirements
change; and

- The Directors regularly communicate with the Key Management Personnel of the subsidiary companies to ensure
all relevant lagal and regulatory reguirements are met

In the context of the audit, we considered those laws and regulations: which determine the form and content of the
financial statements; which are central to the company’s abllity to conduct business, and where failure to comply could
result in moterial penalties. We have identified the following laws and regulations as being of significance in the context
of the company:

The Companies Act 2006 and IFRS in respect of the preparation and prasentation of the financial statements;
Tha Bribery Act 2010,

. The Data Protection Act 2018;

. British, Norwegian and Bulgarian tax legislation; and

AlM regulations and Market Abuse Regulations

The Pancply Heldings FPlc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Incdependent Auditor's Repoert to the members of
The Panoply Holdings ple continued

We performed the following specific procedures to gain evidence about compliance with the significant laws and
regulations above;

. Made enquiries with management as to any legal or regulatory issues during the yeaar

. We have reviewed Board minutes for evidence of non-compliance

. We have cbtained representation from managemeant that they have disclosed to us all known instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations

. Reviewead correspondence with externally engaged experts that support the internal services provided with
regards te whistleblowing

. Discussed specific laws and regulations related to the Bulganan and Nonvegian components with the companent
auditors

. Reviewead the risk register

The senicr statutory quditor led a discussion with senior members of the engagement team regarding the susceptiiility
of the group and parent company’s financial statements te material misstatement, including how fraud might ocour.
The key areas identified as part of the discussion were with regard to the manipulation of the financial statements
through manual jourmnals and overstatement of asset values, This was communicated to the other members of the
engagement team who were not present at the discussion.

The procedures carried out to gain evidence in the above areas included;
Testing of the high and significant nsk balances as explained in the Key Audit Matters section; and

Testing of manual journal entries, selected based on specific risk assessments applied based on the group and
company's processes and controls surrounding manual journals.

The senior statutory auditor was satisfied that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence and
capabilities to identify or recogrise Irregularities In particular, both the senior statutory auditor and the audit manager
have a number of years’ experience in dealing with companias subject to AIM Regulation and international subsidiaries.

A further description of our responsibilities is availaible on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www,frc,org.uk/cud'\torsresponsibiIm‘es. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of ol report

This report is made solely to the parent company's members, as o bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 18 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. Te the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the parent company and the parent
company's members as d body, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the apinions we have formed.

sz?ﬁ-éem Drw 7
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Stephen Drew

Senior Statutory Auditer, for and on behalf of
Nexia Smith & Williamson

Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

25 Moorgate
Lendon

ECZR BAY

12 August 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2621

Revenue
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit
Administrative expenses

Other income
QOperating loss

Adjusted EBITDA

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation

Loss on fair value movernent contingent consideration
Share-based payments

Caosts directly attributable to business combinations
Costs relating to business restructuring

Operating loss

Finance income

Finance costs

Net finance expense

Loss before taxation

Taxation

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income o o
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Loss per share N

Basic and fully diluted

3 5,087 21533

- .. (sa988)  (19526)
18429 12007

(18,085} (15,149}

a3 184

4 (1543) (2958)

7,101 3,846

10 (2,509} (1,583)

12,13 (835) (737)

20 (4,260) (3,764)

5 (294) (129)

4 {498} (4386)

4 (250} (155)

(1,543) {2,958)

4 1 7

4 (303) (188)

(302) (182}

T ©(18a5) (3140}
6_ (384 98

) i o (2229} (3.044)
S e 104
L f2e) (2940

7. a5} (e3)

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 116 to 158 are an integral part of these Consolidated

Financial Statements

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Non-current assets

Goodwill

intangible assets

Proparty, plant and equiprent
Right of use assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivakcles
Contract assets

Other taxes and social security costs
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets i

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Other taxes and social security costs
Defaerred and contingent consideration
Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Contract liabilities

Non-current liabllities

Deferrad tax liabilities

Deferred and contingent consideration
Borrowings

Provisions - dilapidations
Lecse licbilities

Total non-current Iiob_ilities
Total liabilities
Netassets
Share capital

Share premium
Merger reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Other reserves

Retained earmnings
Totalequity

g 53,323 35,672
1c 29,370 859
12 292 290
13 445 1,045
22 15 -
. 83445 45598
14 14,014 8,530
18 1144 1413
19 137 206
15 5,734 4514

21,029 14,823
104,474 60,421

15 (5,681) (4,343)
19 (5,326) (3,001
20 (8,478) (10,685)
13 (338) {609)
7 (55) (29)
18 (L941) (1454)
e (20)
22 (5,133) {1623)
20 (3,741} {5,908)
17 (13,000} (5,000)
(78) (23

B (s3) (00
 (22003)  (13034)
(43,820} (3355}

60854 27266
21 804 551
21 5,691 5,673
21 60,926 25,804
21 5 5
el 796 434

(7,568} {5,201}
50654 27206

These financial staternents were approved and guthorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 August 2021, Signed

on behalf of tha Board of Directors by

Oliver Rigby -pg_of Neal Gandhi /.

Dircctor R N N Director wealladr g p2ur bogr vt

The cccompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 116 to 158 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

the panoply#
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Consoclidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2021

[ P i Lo Jr
At 1 April 2019 20,779 (2157) 19,251
adjustment (note 21) - (15106) 15,106 - - - - -
At1April 2019 (Restated}} 423 5,673 15,108 5 (38) 239 (2157) 19,251
Loss for the period - - - - - - (3.044) {3,044)
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations - - - - 104 - - 104
Transactions with owners o
Shares issued 128 - 10,688 - - - - 10,826 §
Share -basedpayments - T T T 28 T8 2
Equity at 31 March 2020 £
_(Restated) 551 5673 25804 5 686 388  (5201) 27266 2
=
v
- C
- <
et —
toTo- - Tl o
Frooeo e 7 L(l o P [ a
At 1 April 2020 {Restated) 368 {&,201) 27,26 8
Less for the period - - - - - - (2,229} (2,220) %
. —
Exchange differences an w
translation of foreign -
cperations - - - - 68 - - 68 %
Transactions with owners =

[

4

Shares issued

Shares issued 203 8 35,122 - - - - 35,393 ?
Dividend paid - - - - - - (138) {138) .
share - based payments - - - - - 294 - 294 g
Equityat3IMarch2021 804 5691 60926 6 134 662 _(7568) 60654 ]

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 118 te 158 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 202

Cash flows from operating activities:

Loss befare taxation (1,845) (3140)
Adjuslinienls for.
Depreciation 12,13 835 737
Amortisation 10 2,509 1583
Share-based payments 8 294 128
loreign exchange {gains}/iosses {5) 104
Finance expense 4 303 182
Finance income 4 m (7}
Moverment in fair value of contingent consideration 20 4,260 3,764
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivables {1,032} (2,588)
Increase in trode ond other payat’es 483 1978
Net cash generated from operations ) 5800 2,751
Taxpaid (89 ()
Net cash generated from operating octivities 5,642 2,707 )
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net cash paid on aeguisition of subsidiaries 8 (10,813) (5,876)
Deferred consideration payrment 20 (259) {1,088)
Purchase of propertty, plant and equipment 12 (137) (131)
Additions to intangibles 10 (321) (198)
Interest received ) ) ) ) ) N ) 4 1 8
Net cash used in investing activities - . ... [A(ns29) (7283
Cash flows from financing activities:
New borrowings 26 8,000 5,000
Cost relating to the issue of new borrowings - (148)
Repayment of borrowings - {507)
Payment of lease liabilities 28 {(610) (829)
FiInance costs (331) (178)
Dividends paid (138) -
Net cash generated from financing activities 6,921 3,540
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ) 1,034 (1,036)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 4,614 5,650
Effect of exchange rats fluctuations on cash held .. 8 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period }5 5,734 4,614
Comprising:

5. 5734 _4p

The accompanying accounting pelicies and notes on pages 116 to 158 are an integral part of these Consolidated

Finoncial Staternents.

the panoply//
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company Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Non-current assets

lvestinerts n 98,478 54,952
Property, plont and equipment R o2 4
Total non-current dssets ' 77 _ '__ 98,482 54 953
Current assets

Trade and cther receivables 14 298 183
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 23 901 1337
Cash and cash equivalents 15 344 147
Totaicurrentagssets o lk43 1867
Totalassets ) 100,025 56620
Current llclbrlltles

Trade and cther payables 18 (s61} {(494)
Other taxes and sccicl security costs 18 (53} (157}
Deferred and contingent consideration 20 (8,478) (10,547)
Amounts owed to Group undertakings = {5040 (3227)
Total current liabilities ] ] - (14,132) (14 A25)
Non-current liabilities

Deferred and contingent consideration 20 (3,741) (5,998)
Borrowings 17 {(13p00)  (5000)
Total non- cl,!rrent iabiktes o B (16 741) ) (17079798)
Total liabilities ] _ T (30873)  (25423)
EQUITY S ) - - I - - B

Share capital 21 804 b5l
Share premium 21 5,691 5,673
Merger reserve 21 60,926 25,804
Capital redemption reserve 21 5 s}
Cther reserves 21 662 368
Retained earnings ) 7 3 - ) 1064 {1,204)
Total equity 69,152 L7

The Panoply Holdlngs Plc has elected to take the exemptlon  under section 408 of the Compcmes Act 2006 from
presenting the company profit and loss account.

The Company’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 was £2.4m (2020: £3.9m loss)

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 August 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:
STl THAIEY N --,3:-‘. 1D el BV

Oliver Righy Neal Gandhi
Director Director

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 116 to 158 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533086
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Cormpany Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2021

T T

Freidi=.s AR P v Lt .. LUt
At 1 April 2019 423 20779 - 5 2710 24,56
adjustment {note 21) - {15,108) 15,106 - - -
At | April 2019 (Restated)) 423 5,673 15,106 5 2,710 24,56
Less and totdl comprehensive

loss for the period - - - - (3,914) (3214}
Shares issued 128 - 10,693 - - - 10,826
Share-bosedpayments T T T B8 T e
Equity at 31 March 2020 R - - - N
_(Restated) S5 5673 25804 5 368 _  (1204) 31197
A1 April 2020 (Restated) {1,204} 31197
Profit and total comprehensive

income for the period - - - - - 2,406 2424
Shares issued 253 18 35022 - - - 35,303
share-based payments - - - - 284 - 276
Dividends paid o - = e - = (3g)  (138)
Equity ot 3IMarch 2021 T804 5691 60826 5 662 1064 69152

The accempanying occounting policias and nates on pages 116 to 158 form an integral part of these financial
statements

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Compdainy Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit/ {loss) before taxation 2,424

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 12 1 -
Impairment of intercompany balances 886 450
Impairment of investments 1 100 -
Dividends receivad (9,358) (1678)
Share-based payments 5 294 129
Finance expense 266 120 o
Movement in fair value contingent consideration 20 4,280 3784 §
Working capital adjustments: _ L
Increase in trade and other receivables (774) (392) £
(Decrease)/increase intrade and other payables (72) a2 F
Net cosh:gené-rotemqrfrorrippeEcrllions: 7‘ ] o R 7(1,?837)7”7 77(],19_6) %
Cash flows from investing activities: %
Acquisition of subsidiaries (paid) 8 {11,675) {(7.360) i
Deferred consideration payment 20 (21 (n3) O
Balances repaid from/{provided to) subsidiary companies 303 (785) 8
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (4) {n %
Dividends received ) ) 6,131 1678 @
Net cash used in investing activities el (5366) (81 =
Cash flows from financing activities: N

New borrowings 26 8,000 5,000
Finance costs {221} (107)
Proceeds from loan from substdiary undertakings - 1,000

Costs relating to issue of new borrowings (95) (148)
Dividends paid _(138) -

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net decreasef(increase) in cash and cash equivalents
Cush and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Eomprising: )
Cosh at bank and in hand 19 L

The cccompanying accounting pelicies and notes on pages 116 ¢ 168 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

The Pangply Heldings Pl
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stalements

L Seneral infermaotion

The Panoply Holdings plc 1s a public limited company incerporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act
2008 with registered number 10533086 The Company’s shares are publicly traded on the AIM Market as part of the
London Stock Exchangs

The addrass of the registered office 1s 7 Savoy Court, London, England, WCZR UEX. The principal activity of the Group is
the provision of digitally native technology services to clients within the commercial, government and non-government
organisation {NGQ) sectors.

The following subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial staterments of The Panoply Haldings plc have taken
advantage of the exemption from audit conferred by s478A of the Companies Act 2006:

Manifesto Digital Limited (Registered number 07835631)
. Foundry 4 Consuling Limited {Previously Not Binary Limited) {Registered number I0686321)
. iDisrupted Limited (Registered number 00496322)
. Human Pius Limited {Registered number 11771564}
v Questers Global Group Limited (Registered number 08116392)
' Questers Resourcing Umited (Registered number 05640907)
- Deeson Group Holdings timited (Registered number 1418077)
. Deeson Group Llimited (Registered number 01073356)
. Greenshoot Labs Limited (Registered number 10957409}
. FutureGov Limited (Registered number 06472420)
. Us-Creates Limited {Registered number 05938821)
. Ameo Professional Services Limited (Registered number 09786677)
. Arthurly Limited (Registered number 11560054)
. Difrent Limited (Registered number 09227500}
. Keep IT Sirnple Limited (Registered number 1044362i)

11 Bosiv of propaiation

The conselidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) in conformity with the Companies Act 2008 and the AlM rules for Cormpanies. The
measurement bases and principal accounting policies of the Group are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements include the financial results of the subsidiaries listed in Note 1 for the full year with the
axception of the following subsidiaries from the date of acquisition. All subsidiaries are incerporated in the UK unless
otherwise stated:

. Arthurly Limited — acquired on @ June 2020
. Difrent Limited — acquired on 7 Septemiber 2020
. Keep IT Simple Limited — acquired on 26 February 2021

Further details of the above acquisitions can be found in Note 8 Business Combination

L7 Going concearmn

As detailed further in the Directors’ Report, after reviewing the budgets and cash projections for the next twelve months
and beyond, the Directors bslieve that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue operations

for the foreseeable future and for this reason thay have adopted a going concern basis in prepdring these financicl
statements.

In considering the business activities for the forthcoming 12 months, the directors have assessed the impact of principal
risks and uncertainties through scenario modelling. This includes an assessment of the impact of Covid-19 and inflation
by assessing the impact on our services, sector, custemers and through looking at trends in the digital transformation
sector. The Group has agreed o rolling credit facility with HSBC of £20m of which £13m has been drawn down. Of the
£20m, £5m is available as a working capital facility. This facility with HSBC, together with strong cash reserves within the
Group provide comfort over the viability of the Group to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
Furthermore, trading for the 3 months to 30 Junse 2021 has been strong with a cash balance of £4.8m as at the 30 June
2021

After performing all the above assessments and through modelling scenarios, it is concluded that we would maintain
sufficient undrawn capacity and satisfy all borrowing facility covenants in the next 12 months.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/” Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



standards adepisd in th
The following IFRS and endorsed standards and amendments, improvements and interpretations of published
standards are effective for accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and have been adopted with no
material impact on the Group's financial statements:

. Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business combinations’ (definition of a business): The amendment will help improve the
definition of a business and help companies determine whether an acquisition made 1s of a business or a group
of assets. The amended definition emphasises that the output of a tusiness is to provide goods and sarvices to
customers, whereas the previcus definition focused en returns in form of dividends, lower costs or other economic
benefits to investors and others.

Amendmenits to IFRS 9, IAS 33 and IFRS 7 ‘Interest rate benchmark reform phase 1& 27 These amendments
considers reliefs to hedge accounting in the period befare tha reform. The reliefs have the effect that IBOR reform
should not generally cause hedge accounting to terminate. The relief provided by the amendments recuires an
antity to assume that the interest rate on which the hedge cash flows are based does not change as o result of
the reform. The amendments to the IFRSs was early adopted and enacted in the current year.

. Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ Covid-19 related rent concessions: The amendment will make it easier for lessees
to account for Covid-19 related rent conceéssions such as rent holidays and tempordry rent reductions. The
amendment exernpts lessees from having to consider individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 related rent concessions that reduce lease
payrments due on or before 30 June 2021

R e R N IO R P e A B AT T a A PO
|

Tt
There are new IFRS cccounting standards and ameandments te existing accounting standards not yet effective in the
current year, but nene of these are expected to have a material impact an the Group in the foliowing financial period.

A3

Principal aocounting policies

sin of consohdating

The Group financial staterments consolidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertokings drawn up to

31 March 2021, A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control is achieved where the Company has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the activitios that affect the Company's returns and exposure or nghts to
variable returns from the entity. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consclidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
approprate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its subsidianes are eliminated. Unredlised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred Amounts reported in the
financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are dealt with using the purchase method. The purchase method involves the recognition at
fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including centingent liabilities of the subsidiary, al the acquisition date,
regardless of whether or not they were recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in the Conschdated Statemoent of Financial
Position at therr fair values, which are also used as the cost bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group accounting policies.

The consideration transferred in the acquisition 1s measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired.
Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment Any gaimn on a bargain purchase is recognised in the profit or
toss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlsment of pre-existing relationships Such
amounts, to the extent that they exceed the settlerment amounts, are generally recognised in the profit or loss. Any
deferred contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acguisition date. If an obligation to pay
contingent consideration that maeets the definition of a financidl instrument is classified as equity, then it is not
remeasured, and settlernent Is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is remeasured at
fair value at each reporting date and subseguent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number. 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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inancial Staterments continued

-

Notes to the Consolidatied

Gaoedwill is stated after separating out identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill represents the excess of censideration
payable over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets of the dcquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition.

Operating segments are reported in o manner censistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker as required by IFRS 8 "Cperating Segrmeants™. The chief operating decision-maker, whao Is responsibte for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of
Directors.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are consistent with the accounting policies of the Group as a
whole. Segment adjusted EBITDA represents earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amaortisation, share-based
payments, fair value of this is the measure of profit that is reported to the Board of Dirsctors for the purpose of resource
allocation and the assessment of segment performance.

Wwhen assessing segment perfermance and considering the allocation of resources, the Board of Directors review
information about segmaent assets and liabilities. For this purpose, all assets and liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments with the exception of borrowings.

The Group 15 organised into, and managed through, the following three operating seaments, which are based on
service and supported by central functions:

. Consulting and innovation - Services include strategy consulting and service design

. Software development — Senvices include digital transformation, technical software development, cloud based
services and IT implementation

. Automation — Services include automation, robotics, chatbots and Al
In addition, management reviews revenue disaggregated by the following sectors to understand our customer base.
. Government ~ Sectors that arc run by both local and central government

. Non-Government organisations (NGOs) - Organisations such as charities, cultural, housing associations etc that
provide public services but are not run by Governments

. Commercial - Commercial clients that do net fall into the two categories above
Government and NGOs are classified as public services for reporting purposes.

c)  Goodwil

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

. the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, plus, if the business combination is
achieved in stages, the fair valua of the existing equity interest in the acqguires; less

the net recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assurmed.
Whan the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlemeant of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognisad in profit or loss

Costs related to acquisition, other than those asscciated with the 1ssue of debt or cquity securities that the Group incurs
in cohnection with d business combination, are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment review is carried out annually. If there is an
impairment, the cost is reduced by the accumulated impairment amount.

ton

4} Bovanus and s e /o5 ienngl
Revenue consists of the value of work delivered to clients dunng the year exclusive of VAT and is recognised as
performance obligations are met in accordance with the tarms of the contract which are primarily on a time and
materials basis. Revenus is wholly attributable to the principal activities of the Group The Group adopt iFRS 15 principles
in recognising the revenue. Revenue reccgnised in excess of invoices raised is included within contract asset Where

ameunts have been invoiced in excass of revenue recognised, the excess is included within contract liability.

The Pancply Holdings Ple
the panoply/- Company number: 10533066
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



The majority of the servicas are provided on a time and material basis whare clients are billed monthly for the time
spent on a project which cerresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to
date and accordingly revenue is recognised at the amount billed. For fixed-price contracts where criteric to recognise
performance obligations over time have been met, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting peried as a proportion of the total services to be provided. This is determined by actual labour
hours and cost incurred relative 1o the total expected labour hours and cost. The use of labour hours and cosls is a
faithful depiction of the transfer of sarvices as it directly relates to the effort required to satisfy the perfarmance
chligaticn. Only inputs relating directly to the performance in transferring the services are included when medsuring
progress to date. Due to changing circumstances, extent of progress and completion may be revised which may affect
revenue and costs. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in
the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management

The majority of the contracts are one single performance obligation. However, some contracts include multiple
deliverables. In moest cases, the deliverable is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract; therefore, it is
accounted for as a separate performance obligaticn. In this case, the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on the stand-alone seliing prices.

standard terms of payment within 30 or 80 days are typically adopted. There is therefore no financing component.

Revenue is recognised whan the Group satisfies the performance abligations, the timing of which is set cut in Note 3.2.
For the majerity, contracts are for performance obligations that are satisfled over time. However, there are some
centracts which contain performance obligations that are only satisfied at a point In time. The revenue for these
contracts is recognised when the performance obligotion has been satisfied, for project development work this occurs
when the customer accepts the final output.

When the customer has a right to return the product within a given period, the entity is obliged to refund the purchase
price For instance, if potenticl candidates put forward are considered unsuitable by the client and no one s recruited.
The contract stipulates reimbursement of 50% - 100% of the fee, under the agreed terms of contract Under [FRS 15,
revenue is only recognised to the extent it is highly probable there will not be a significant reversal of revenue in a future
pariod and is usually therefore recognised only when a successful candidate is recruited

A smoll number of contracts have variable consideration associated with it, whereby a bonus is paid if certain cost
savings are made by the client. These are recognised using the ‘most likely amount method’ once it has been identified
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue will not occur.

e} Forelyn ocurnencies

Items included in the financiat statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment In which the entity operates (the functional currency’). The Consolidated Financial
Statements are prasented in pounds sterling, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency and the
Group’s pressntation currency.

I P T R A T
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the Statement of Financial
Position date. All exchange differences ore recognised in the Consolidated Income Statemaent.

As at the reporting date, the assets and Labilities of cverseas subsidiaries are translated into pounds Sterling at the rate
of exchange applicable at the reporting date and their Income Statements are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. The exchange differences arising from the retranslation of foreign operations are taken directly to
foreign exchange reserve.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liakilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acguisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Currency translation differences arising are transferred to the Group's foreign exchange reserve and are recognised in
the Income Statement on disposal of the underlying investrmeant.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number; 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1} Froperty, plant and equipronent
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residuat
value, over the useful economic life of that asset as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 - 10 years (depending on the length of the lease)
Fixtures and fittings 4 - 5years
Computer equipment 3 - byears

Useful economic lives and estimalted residual values are reviewed annuolly and adjusted as appropriate

gl tniongibicd e povlofal s corpbination angd amorlissgiing

In accordance with IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”, an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. A fair value calculation is carried out based on evatuating the net
recurring income stream from each type of intangible asset intangibles are initially recognised at fair value, and are
subseguently carried at this fair value, less accumulated amortisation and impairment. The following items were
identified as part of the acquisitions of entities by the Group and were still owned at 31 March 2021

. brand amertised over 2 - 5 years;

- custormer lists amortised over 3 - 8 years;

. database over 5 years; and

- Software intellectual property over 3 - 10 years
. Software over 2 - 3 years

The aliocation of fair values to the tangible assets and the identification and valuation of intangible assets affect the
calculation of goodwill recognised in respect of an acquisition and as such represent a key source of estimation
uncertainty.

Iy Dthorintas

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised ds an expense ds incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable software products controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible ossets when the following criteria are mat:

. It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
Management intends to complete the software product and use or seli it

. There is an ability to use or sell the software product;
It can e demoenstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

. Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software
product is avallable; and

. The expenditure attributable ta the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software developrment
employee costs and an approprate portion or relevant everheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred Development costs previously recognised as an expense are
not recognised as an asset in subsequent periods.

Computer software development costs recognised as assels are amortised over their estrmated usoful lives, which
doss not exceed 3 years.

i et W testing of gnoaoenl!
Impairment reviews are tested at cash generating unit (“CGU") level. Goodwill is allocated to those CGUs that are
expected to benefit from synergiss of the related business combination. During the year, Arthurly and Keep IT Simple

integratad with the Foundry 4 CGU and Difrent formed its own CGU Additionally, in the year, the FutureGov and Ameo
CGU's merged into FutureGov CGU

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply Company number: 10533066
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Impairment reviews are carried out using multi-year cash flow projections from the approved budgets of the Group.
These are discounted using a weighted average cost of capital (*WACC") specific to each CGU. The internal rate of
return for each CGU reflects the time value of money and the nature and risks of the CGU. Cash flows are estimated
over a maximum of five years and a terminal value.

Anmipairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use based on
an internal disccunted cash flow evaluation. Impairment losses are credited to the carrying amount of the relevant
goodwill.

i Investment i s :
The investrnent in the Company's subsidiaries is recorded at cost less provisions for impairment. Carrying values are
reviewed for impairment annually to determine if there is any indication that any of the investments might be impaired.
The Company uses forecast cash fiow information and estimates of future growth to assess whether investments are
impaired.

If the results of operations in a future period are adverse to the estimates used for impairment testing, an impairment
may be triggered at that point.

K] Tawation
Current tax is the tax currently payable based on taxable profit for the year. Deferred tax is generally provided on the
difference between the carrying omounts of assets and liabilitiss and their tax bases. However, deferred tax is not

provided on the initial recognition of goodwill, nor an the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the related
transaction is ¢ business combination or affects tax or accounting profit.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense In the Consclidated Income
Statement, except where they relata to items that are charged or credited directly te equity, in which case the related
deferred tax is aiso charged or credited directly to equity.

1 Financialinsii c

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised In the Statement of Financial Position whan the Group and
Company becornes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group classifies its financial assets as follows:

These assets arise principally from the provision of services to customers {e.g trade receivables), but also incorporate
other types of financial assets where the cobjective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. They are initially recognised at the transaction
price that is directly attributable to therr acquisition or issue and are subsequently carried at ameortised cost using the
effective interest rate meathod, less provision for impairment.

Impairment provisions for trade receivables and contract assets are recognised based on the simplified approach
within IFRS 9 using the lifetime expected credit losses. During this process the prebability of the nen-payment of the
trade receivables and contract assets is assessed. This probability is then multizlied by tha amount of the expected loss
arising from default to determine the lifetime expectad credit loss for the trade receivables. For trade receivables, which
are reported net, such provisions dre recorded in a separate provision account with the loss being recognised within
administration expenses in the Consalidated Income Statement. On confirmation that the trade receivable and
contract assets will not be collectablg, the gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the associated
provision.

Impairment provisions for loans to related parties are recognised based on o forward-looking expected credit loss
madel. The methodology used to determine the amount of the provision is based on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial asset. For those where the cradit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition of the financial asset, twelve month expected credit losses along with
gross interest income are recognised. For those for which credit nsk has increased significantly, fetime expected credit
losses along with the gross interest income are recognised. For those that are determined to be credit impaired, lifetime
expected credit losses along with interest income on o net basis are recognised

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly liguid
investrments with onginal maturities of three months or less

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Company number: 13533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stalements continued

C ey e
. LAY S L
2ot ~

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issusd by the Group and Company are classified in accordance with the
substance of the contractugl arrangements entered and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
An equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instrumenits issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Bank borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of any transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the
instrument. Such interest-bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, which ensures that any interest expense over the period to repayment is at a constant rate on the
balance of the liability carried in the Consclidated and Company Statement of Financial Position For the purposes of
aach financial liability, interest expense includes initial transaction costs and any premium payable on redemption, as
well as any interest or coupon payable while the liability is outstanding,

Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities, which are initially recognised at fair value and subsaguently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method

The sffective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability and
allecating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effeclive interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or, where appropriote,
a shorter peried, to the net carrying amount on initiol recognition.

T R

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or as a financial liakility. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair valug, with changes in fair value recognised through profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeosured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

m }

} Emplayos benefifs

All material share-based paYmént arrangemaents are recognisad in the financial staterments. All goods and services
received in exchange for the grant of any share-based remuneration are measured ot their fair values. Fair values of
employee services are indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of the share-based payments awarded.

Their value is appraised at the grant dote and excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growti targets).

All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Income Statement with a
corresponding credit to “share-based payment reserve”. If vesting periods or other non-market vesting conditions
apply, the expense is dllocated over the vesting period, basad on the best available estimate of the number of share-
based payments expectad to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised if there is any indication that the number of
share-based payments expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

Any cumulative adjustment grior tc vesting is recognised in the current period. No adjustment is made to any expense
recognised in prior poriods if share-bascd payments ultimately exercised are different to that estimated on voesting.

Upon exercise of share-based payments, the proceeds received, net of attributable transaction costs, are credited to
share capital and share premium.

The fair value for the share-based payment is measured using the kinomial madel for share-based payments with no
market perfarmance conditions and the monte carlo method for opticns with market performance conditions.

i} Pensiois
Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement as they accrue in

accordance with the rules of the scheme. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions
actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

20 Of Fosiiis

o Fre
In some instances, Alternative Performance Measures {APMs) such as adjusted EBITDA (refer to Financial Review on
page 28) are used by the Group to provide ‘adjusted  results. This is because Management are of the view that thess
APMs provide a more approgriate basis on which to analyse business performance and is consistent with the way thot
financial performance is measured by Management and reported to the Board.

The Panoply Heldings Pic
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Adjusted EBITDA is ¢ non-IFRS measure, defined as the Group's opérating profit before expensing depreciation of
tangible fixed asssts, amortisation, costs relating to listing, acquisitions and restructuring, impairment, gain or loss on
fair value movement contingent consideration and share-based payments.

There are further APMs discussed within the Annual Report. However these have not been included within the notes of
the Financial Statements and therefore have not been defined here Full definitions have been provided in footnotes
where used.

o} Leoses
R R e

The Group recognises d right-of-use asset and a lease liability ot the ledse commancement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for annual lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which itis located, less

any lease incentives received.

The right-of-uss asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight- line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the usetul life of the rnght-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
gconomic lives of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease hability.

The lease licbilty is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its iIncremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurament of the leass ligbilities comprise the following:
- Fixed payments, includ\"ng in-substance fixed payments

- Variable tease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate ds at the
commencement date

Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

. The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, ledse payments in an
optional renewal period if the Group is reasonable certain ta exercise an extension option, and penailties for early
termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Itis remeasured when therg is
change in future lease payments arlsing for a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of
whether it will exsrcise a purchass, extension or termination option.

When the lzase liability Is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the profit and loss If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

e I A BT R

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of machinery that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets including {T equipment. Assets with a value less
than £5,000 are considered low value The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these lecses as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term

q)  Grantinconis

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are generally recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Judgement is applied in assessing when there is reasonable assurance the grant conditions have been complied with
and that the grant money will be received

The Panaply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consoliaated Financial Statements continued

) Kossorch and development

Ressarch and developmant expenditure is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement as an expense until it can
be demonstrated that the conditions for capitalisation under IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ apply. The criteria for
capitalisation include demaenstration that the project is technically and commercially feasible, the Group has sufficient
resourcos to complete development and the nsset will generate probable future econarmic benefit.

During the year, research and development costs are within Administrative expenses and are not identifiable with its
own subheading. The allocation of the administrative costs that relates to research and development for the Group is
carried out annually at the point of assessing for R&D tax credit relief as part of the tax work

The Group benefits from both small, medium enterprises for R&D tax credits and research and development credits
(RDEC).

RDEC research and development credits are accounted for as having the subsiance of a government grant and
recognised in other income. The grants are recognised on the basis of the fair value of claims made. A corresponding
other receivable is recognised at the time the claims are accepted and will subsequently be offset against tax payable.

3} Equity

rinancial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of
a financial liability. The Group’s Ordinary Share capital is classified as equity instruments. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Further details
of the categories of share capital and reserves and disclosed in Note 21

In the current year, the Group restated the share premium account, where amounts should have been recorded undler
a merger reserve as required by merger relief under Companies Act, Section 812, Further detail is provided in Note 21,

\

L Critizataccounting judgoments and key =

Hoestimation ancoriamnty

In preparing these financidl statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of revenues, expenses, assats, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The resulting
accounting estimates, which are based on management’s best judgment at the date of these financial statements, will
seldom equal the subsequent actual amounts. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
rmaterial adjustrment to the carrying armounts of assets and ligbilities within the next financial year are surmmarised
below.

Lriticg: ju

The mdi;w jugjgerﬁeﬁ‘ts Ic]re:

Deciding what are the performance obligations in a contract

Deciding whether the contract should be measured over ime or at ¢ point in time
. The cost to complete contracts to deterrmine the parcentage completion

Under IFRS 15, measurement and recognition of revenue required the Group to make judgements and estimates. In
particuiar, there are a large number of contracts within the business which may require significant contract
interpretation to determine the appropriate accounts such as whether promised goods and services specified in an
arrangament are distinct performance obligations and based on the contract terms, whether the performance
abligation should be recognised at a point in time or over time (refer to Note 3.2},

. - - e
S gt =

IFRS 3 Business combination reguires the management to assess the CGU as part of purchase price allocation process.
The Board uses their judgement in deciding the number of CGU per entity acquired during the year CGU is defined as
the smallest identifiable groun of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. The board dstermines the number of CGU by ascertaining the number of main
income stream generating from an entity. In 202, Difrent was deemed to make up its own CGU. Arthurly Limited and
Keep IT Simple were deemed to be included in the Foundry4 CGU. In the year, FutureGov and Ameo CGUs merged to
become one CGU (FutureGov). Following the activities in the year, there are a total of 9§ CGUs {2020: 9).

Acquinng a business entity would include purchasing its intangible assets even when there were no intangible assets
on its Staternent of Financial Position. The board uses judgement in identifying the types of intangible assets as o result
of business combination. During the year the board identified several intangibles such as custormer list, brand, client
database and software. Details of intangible assets identified on acquisitions are in notes § and 10

The Panoply Holdings Flc
the panoply/” Company number: 10533046
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Fndtion untertainty:
Impairment of goodwill is subjéct to an annual review. The key estimate for the carrying value of CGU is the cash flows
associated with the CGU and the WACC. Each of the CGU held by the Group is measured regularly to ensure that they

agenerate sufficient positive cash flows to justify no impairment

The Group performs an impairment review of CGUs on at least an annual basis. This reguires an estimation of the 'valug
inuse’ of the cash-generating units to which the intangible value is allocated. Estimating a value in use amount
reguires management te make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rats in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Where therg is indication
of impairment, the goodwill is impaired by a charge 1o the Conselidated Income Statement. The key area of uncertainty
is the revenue growth. Management perform sensitivity analysis to ascertain the level of growth rate that will start to
impair the goodwill on a yearly basis. Further explanation is included in Note @ — Gooedwill and impairment

An assessment of impairment of investments is performed if there is an indicator of impairment. The key estimate for

the carrying value of the investment is the cash flows associated with the investrment and the WACC. Each investrment is
reviewed regularly to ensure that they generate discounted positive cash flows.

The same principles used in the assessment of impairment of goodwill is used for estimating the value in use’ of the
cash flows of the investment. Where there is an indication of impairment, the investment is impaired by a charge to the
consolidated income statement. The key area of uncertainty is the revenue growth. Managerment perform sensitivity
analysis to ascertain the leveal of growth rate that will start to impair the investment on a yearly basis.

The fair valus of contingent deferred consideration is determined by reference to the future EBITDA of the acquired
business and applying the contingant deferred consideration formula as specified in the asset or share purchase
agreerment and discounting the nat present valus of the future cash flows. The total fair value of consideration for the
businesses acguired during the year was £43m {2020: £22m) and the goodwill was calculated as £18m {2020: £15m).
The range of contingent consideration in the current period was £nil to £61m; further details are included in Note 8.

An assessment of the recdvercbnity of mtercompony balances is perfarmed by reviewing the future cash flows of the
subsidiary. Whare there is an indication of impairment, ¢ provision for doubtful debt is recorded by a charge to the

Company income statement.

3 ssgmznt reporti

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports reviewad and used by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODMY), being the Board of Directors, in assessing the Group’s performance and in
determining the allocation of resources.

The Board has concluded that it monitors the Group's performance and makas business decisions around investments,
resource aflocation and acquisitions based on the Croup’s scrvices. Those sorvices are noted below and consists of 3
reportable segmenits. All other revenue that is not classified as a reportable segment are classified as “All other
Segments’ or ‘Central Services'.

Consulting and innovation - This part of the business pravides strategy consulting and service Jorganisational
design services to external clients in the government, commercial and NGO sectors

Software development — Services within this sector Business 1T Management, include digital transformation,
technical software develepment and implementation, cloud based services, data based services and support
services.

+ Automation — Services include automaticn, robotics, chatbots and artificial intelligence

All other segments — Gther sagments not included in the above. This primarly relates to the Group’s operations
comprising of magazine publication and events management services which are not core to the Group.

The Board of Directors primarily uses o measure of revenue and adjusted EBITDA which is taken as earnings before
interest, tax, depraciation, amortisation, costs relating to business acquisitions and restructuring, costs relating to share-
based payments and fair value movement in contingent consideration to assess tha performance of the operating
segments. Information about segment revenue is disclosed in the tables below.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533086
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 202
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments continued

Ravanuag

-~ ye
JCOR I

Included in revenues arising from ‘Software developrment’ service are revenues of £2.6m (2020 £3.2m) which arose from

the Group’s largest customer and represents 5% of the Group's total revenus.

Consulting and innovation
Software development
Autormnation

All other segments
Intersegment eliminations

Total revenue

United Kingdom
Norway
Switzerland
Rest of EU
USA

Cther ]
@I&événue

Commerciat
Government
NGO

Total Revenus

consulting and innovation
Software development
Autermation

All other segments
Central services

Total adjusted EBITDA
Finance costs

Finance income
Depreciation and amartisation

Costs relating to business restructuring

Costs directly attributable to business combinations
Fair value movement in contingent consideration
Share-based payments

Lossbeforetax

the panoply ¥

5,097

14,230 0,476

28,047 13,207
8,820 6,850
51,087 31533

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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213 Segment aesels

Segment assets dre measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the
operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset

40,529 29,085

Efonsuhin@ and innovation
Software development 69,314 32565
Automation 1,023 1425
All other segments - 52 204
Tt segmentassets ... V0SB o5&
Intersegment eliminations (8.818) {5,425)
Unallocated:

2374 1867

104,47 8047

soameant lubifitics
Segment haobilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on
the aperations of the segment and the physical location of the liability.

The Group's borrowings are not considered to be segment liabilities, but are managed by the Group finance function

[ RPN

Consulting and innovation o ’ 12,649 7324
Software development 19,024 20,272

Automation 1,996 1768

All other segments 279 338

Total segmentbagilties ... 33948 29702
Intersegment eiminations ' ST T (sei8)  (5425)
Unallocated:

Central services ) 18,6890 8878

Total ligbilties per the Statement of Financial Position . 43820  33i55

g
8

voaniracis witl cugtomears

ey
The Group derives revanun from the transfor of services over time and at a peint in time in the following service hnc:

External Revenue 93,407 2977

Inter-segment revenus 1783 2,756 - 35 (4574) -
Total revenue 27008 26]83 2,277 103 (4574) 51,097
Recognised at apoint in time - 8,569 - - - 8,569
Recognised overtime . B Zws 1814 2277 103 (4574) 42528
Totolrevenve 27008 28183 2277 103 (4874) 51097

The Pangply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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(N [ P T ) [LTN
IETERIRES: NN 2320 (e GGG NN
Externai revenue 9,23 20,672 31533
Inter-segment revenue 343 570 -
Total revenue N 9,681 21,242 31533
Recognised at a point in time 23 7,408 - 7581
Recognised over time _. . .9588 13834 1380 ms_ {929) 23942
Total reverue T 2242 136l o278 {929) 3533
(1} Intor-segment revenuos are eliminated on consohdation and reflected in the odustments ond olminations column
d.  Opeiating |
Opercaﬁng loss is stated after charging: o
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (see note 12) 175 154
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {sea note 13) 660 583
Amortisation of intangible assets (see note 10} 2,509 1,583
Employee costs {see note 52) 24,485 18,080
Costs directly attributable to the busingss combination 496 436
Costs relating to restructuring” 250 155

Disposat of fixed assets - 34

Loss on fair value movement contingant consideration (see note 20) 4,260 3,764
Share-based payments {see note 5.5) 294 129
Short-term leases (see note 13} 3 3

" BUsINess resruciunng costs wore incurred in the year relating 1o the restructunng or personngl and conschdation of lsgal ontities In the poor year, rostrustuing relaisd
o the clesurz of the pubicanon perl of the businass and to tha rostructuring of persarne!

21 2uditors remunerotics

Fess payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for the audit of parent company

and consolidated financial statements 189 145
Feas payable to Company’'s auditors and its associates for the audit of Company's subsidiaries 26 27
Fees poyable to Company's auditors and its associates for other services:

Audit-related assurance services 9 2
Other services - 4
Tax compliance and other tax advisory services - 131

- _ B 224 309

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Company number: 10533096

the panoply#
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



129

4% Findnegincoms and costs

Interest income from fimancial assets held for cash managomoent purposos 1 7
Fincnce income 1 7
Finance costs

*** Adrunistran e staff also parcpate i inceme geraratng aclivibes, sales and markoong

Interest payable on bank loan and overdrafts 279 147
Interest and finance charges paid/payable for lease liabllities and financial liabilities not at
fair value through profitorloss L 24 42
Finance costs expenscd B o . 7 303 186 o
Net finance costs - e 302 82 3
>
pd
=z
c
2
of staff employed by the Group during the financial year is 495 (2020: 361) as fallows: EY
m
Z0e L 3
Consultant ** 380 220 g
administrative staff =** 72 15 i
Management _ ~ 43 26 8
Total 495 3861 e
— O OOt S S
* Conswtant ncludet 194 consuiteris employed by Questers salely for chonts” projocts, whare they prowvide ligh'y skifed iT toams to chents 0—,:‘

Employee numbers are stated including Directors,

5.7 Fmploves remuneralion =
S
L "
wWages and salaries - N 21,053 =
Pension contributions 595 o
Share-based payments 294
Sccial security costs 2,281
Other penefits e el 2’2 T
24485 18,080
Number of key personnel for the parentcompany. . &6__ 5
) _ __l
Number cf key personnel for the Group 30 28

Group key parsonnel comprises of Directors of the parent company and the directors of the priﬁéipol operating
companies.

The Panoply Holdings Flic
Company number; 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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RE
Emoluments for the key management parsonnsl for the parent company.

5.4 ey monoyemont ematum:

Wuges und salaries . 7 569 515

Pension contributions 37 38
Share-based payments 69 43
Social security costs 68 65
Othar benefits ~ L L 6 3
Total 749 664

The total emolument for the Group key persennel for the year:

Wages and salaries
Pension cantributions
Share-based payments
Socidl security costs
Other benefits
Total o

The aggregate of remuneration of the highest paid director (including Employer NIj of the Company was £355k
{2020: £328k}. The amount of pension contribution paid into the defined contribution scheme for the highest paid
director totaled £14k in the year, The full breakdown of other benefits are detailed in the remuneration report.

Details of individual Directors’ ermolurments for the yaar {including employer's National Insurance ("NI") contributions)
are as follows:

Non-Executive

Chris Swesetland 35 35 4 4 4 3 43 42
Mark Smith 50 50 6 6 7 4 63 60
Isabel Kelly 35 30 3 3 4 2 42 35
Rachel Neaman 18 - 2 - - 18 -
Executive

Neal Gandhi 275 259 35 34 45 35 3656 329
Olver Rigby 158 141 8 18 52 38 228 188
otal s69 b5 68 85 W2 B4 749 684
5.5 Shos g 3

The Group has the following equity-settled share plans:

Share options were granted to employees as determined by key management personnel and the Remuneration
Committae at IPO of the company. No further EMI options can be granted by the Group. The opticns cannct be
exercised within two years unless specific criterias are met and have a maximurn life of 10 years. Exercise of the opticns
will be settled by the issue of shares and there are no cash alternatives. Options ordinarily are forferited if the smployee
leaves the Group before the options vest.

The Panoply Heldings Plc
the panoply Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Share options are granted to ermployess as determined by key management personnel and the Remuneration
Committee. The CSOP permits the Company to grant CSOP options which have tax advantages pursuant to the
provisions of Schedule 4 to the Income Tax zEcrnings & Ponsions) Act 2003 {"Schedule 4”). The options cannot be
exercised within one year unless specific criterias are met and have a maximum life of 10 years. Exercise of the options
will be settled by the issue of shares and there are no cash alternatives. Options ordinarily are forfeited if the employee
leaves the Group before the coptions vest.

Unapproved share options are typically granted to employees based oustide of the UK as determined by key
management persennel and the Remuneration Committee. The options cannot be exercised within two years unless
specific criterias are met and have a maximum iife of 10 years. Exercise of the options will be settled by the issue of
shares and there are no cash alternatives. Options ordinarily are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the
options vest.

e .}‘ s

The Group has established a Share Incentive Flan for UK employees in the current year. Under this scheme all eligible
employees are able to purchase ordinary shares ‘Partnership shares’ through tax-efficient salary sacrifice. Each
Partnership share offers a free matching award of ordinary shares on a cne-to-one basis. 'Matching Share’. The shares
are held in trust by Cytec Solutions Corporate Trustess whe also administers the scheme. A minimum period of three

years is imposed before the employee can withdraw.

SRR S o
The number of outstanding options under each valuation method has baen disclosed in the table below

rae i STt 1o
Number of gtﬁlqﬂl@_ggqﬁqpf_g§__gt 31 March 2021

The following table lists the key inputs to the modsl used for the grant of share opticns in 202]

There were no grant of share options made In 2020. Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Group's share price cver the expected term

Exercise price a ) 7 82p 184.5p

Share price at grant date 48p 184.5p
Expected volatility' 38.40% 35.00%
Expected dividend yield 1% Q%
Risk free interest rate 0.06% 0.00%
Contractual life of cption {years) _ o 10 o0

1 The expected price volativty is basod on the hstoncal volaiiity (pased an the ramaning ife of the optians), adiustad for any expected changes 1o future volatiity due
to pubicly avaitabie infermation

The Panaply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Noles Lo the Consolidaied Financial Stalemeants continued

The total share-based payments expense included in the Consoclidated Income Statement s

Share-based poyfﬁ(énts téiémployées
Share-based payments to nen-employees : e T

The tota! share-based payments expensc relating to Directors of the Company is £68k (2020 £43k)

The total share-based payments expense relating to key management personnel of the company is £127k (2020: £70k).

& Tdzraiion

Coairenl T EIR
UK corporation tax for the period at 19% (2020: ]9%) {581
Adjustments in respect of prior period provisions 121
Adjustments in respect of prior period R&D credits 481
Overseas current tax charge on income for the year Ll ._(98)
Totaleurrenttax e e e (o)
Deferred tax

Current year 439 268
Change in deferred tax rate = (77)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 15 Q)
Total deferred tax L _ e 4Bg 180
Total tax credit/ {charge) ) - I o N o o (384) ] 96

Curing 2021 a deferred tax cradit of £454k (2020 £296k) was attributable to deferred tax on intangible assets acquired
as part of business combination. For further deferred tax information — see Note 22

The relationship betweean expected tax expense based on the effective tax rate of the Group of 20% {2020: 4%) and the
tax expense recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement can be reconciled as follows:

Loss for the year before tax.
Tax rate

507

Expected te credit

Prncipal differences due to:

Expensas not deductible for tax purposss {s07) {256)
Non taxable income (2) {3)
Adjustments in respect of prior period provisions (69) 121

Adjustments in respect of prior period R&D credits 172 451

adjustments in respect of prior period deferred tax 15 -

Difterence In overseas tax rates 14 39

rMovement in deferred tax rates - {80}
Ceferred tax asset not recognised 7 - 42 (83
o T (389 %

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/ Company number: 10533096
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Enrning

ENVN

Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders o (e229)  (3043)

VA

APz 220 i b
Weighted average number of Crdinary Shares in issus, basic 63,783,475  48162,078

Basic and diluted loss per share

Earnings per ordinary share has been calculated using the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

There is no difference between basic loss per share and diluted loss per share as the share-based payments are
anti-dilutive.

The Group have a number of share-based payments {see note 5) and share purchase agreements {see note 8) where
the terms and conditions could affect the measurement of basic and diluted earnings per share. A number of shares
that were issued during the period are contingent on certain conditions being met and therefore these have been
excluded from the calculation of the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue.

& Businesss combingtions
During the year the Company completed the acquisitions of Arthurly Ltd * Arthurly’, Difrent Ltd ‘Difrent’ and Keep IT Simple
Ltd "KITS". A sumimary of the acquisitions is shown below.

ety

[N

Date of acquisition " 09-Jun-20 07-Sep-20 26-Feb-21

Considoration payable Cuash & Shares  Cash & Shares  Cash & Shares

% aequired 100% 100% 100%

Acquisition related costs 43 174 233 450
Imtangible assets acquired on acquisition 454 2,58] 19,932 22,967
Net assets 74 549 2217 2,840
Total identifiable net assets acquired at fair value 528 3130 o 22148 25,807
Cash 321 3,801 12,406 16,628
Cash - Deferred consideration - - 467 467
Shares {including contingent deferred considaration) 953 6,239 ) 19,271 26,463
Total fair value consideration 1,274 10,040 32144 - 43,458
Goodwill 746 6910 9995 17,651
Cash flow

Acquisition of business (net of cash acquired} 3 3,251 - 7559 10,813

Total cash outflow (net of cash acquired) 10,813

Al acquisition-related costs of that were not directly attributable to the issueg of shares are included in administrative
expenses in the Consolidated income Statement and In operating cash flows in the Statement of Cash Flows.

Having joined the Group, Arthurly and KITS will sit within the Foundry4 CGU as part of the deep tech, engineering focused
division of the Group. The Foundry4 CGU helps organisations in highly regulated sectors harness technology to solve
complex challenges, focusing on CTO/CIos locking to enable digital transformation through the adoption of hyper scale
cloud, data analytics, Al and maching learning and cutomation. Difrent wilf form its own CGU bringing the total CGUs in
the Group to 9.

. : H P T
The consolidated pro-forma revenue and profit/(loss) for the year ended 31 March 2021, had the acquisitions occurred
on 1 April 2020 are shown below. These amounts have been calculated using the subsidiary’s results adjusted for:

differences in the accounting policies between the Group and the subsidiary; and

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolicdated Financial Statements continued

. the additional depreciation ond amortisation that would have been charged, assuming the fair value adjustments
to property, plant and equiprmeant and intangible assets had applied from 1 April 2020, together with the
consequential tax effects.

[ A Y e

Arthurly
Difrent 4,783
KITS

Froft

Arthurly ' ) R4 335

Difrent 543 1181
KITS L o e o 380 3334
_ 1027 4,860

The cash paid for acquiring the companies and the cash inherited are summarised as foliows:

Arthuriy . ' 3 318

Bifrent 3,801 550
Krs o ol 12408 L. as4T
Total ]E,E}S 7?{;’15_

The cash paid by the parent company only is as follows

Lot p
iy, o o o I
Arthurly 32
Difrent 380
KITS 7553
Total . Me75

2020 the Company ocquired the entire issued share capital of Arthurly Prior to acquisition, Arthurly had
already been working in partnership with other Group companies, winning and delivering a number of projects to
provide The acquisition of Arthurly adds to the Group's depth of capabilities in hyperscale cloud projects, in particular
giving the Group gredter strength on the Microsoft stack. The code trading activities of Arthuly are in design,
development and engineering services and building software and data products, services and solutions on large cloud
vendor platforms.

.

Cn 9 June

Arthurly was purchased for an initial consideration of £1.3m being £1m in shares and £0.3m payable in cash. Further
consideration may be payable based on revenue generatad for the 16 months to 30 September 2021 Any such
additional consideration shall be calculated following the agresment of the relevant revenue calculations and
publication of the Group's results relating to the financial period ending on 30 Septernbar 2021 and shall be payable by
the allotment and issue of shares in The Panoply.

The number of such shares to be allotted and issued shall be calculated by dividing the deferred consideration
payable by a price per share in The Panoply which is the greater of 82 pence and the volume-weighted average mid-

The Paneply Heldings Plc
the panoply// Company number: 10533096
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market price (YWAP) over the 30 business days prior to the relevant issue date. Any shores in The Panoply which are
allotted and issued as part of the deferred consideration will be allotted and issued in 4 tranches at six-month intervals.

As with previous transactions, all Panoply Shares allotted and issued under the SPA (including the shares issued as part
of the Initial Consideration) are subject to customary lock-in arrangements. £01m worth of the shares are subject to
claw kack in the event of underperformance in accordanee with the Group's acquisition formula. The total
consideration payable is capped at £1.5m.

IFRS 3 requires that consideration to be measured at fair value. The total consideration {before calculating its fair value)
of £1.5m is further analysed based on the timing of the consideration payments and an estimation of the contingent
consideration likely payable as at the transaction date to work out the farr value {net present valuc) of the
consideration as at the transaction date using cost of debt 295% for caleulating cash consideration and completion
shares using WACC of 147% The fair value of the total consideration is calculated to be £1.3m.

Intangibre.s

Brand - 30 30
Customer lists - 424 424
Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment 8 - 8
Current assets

Trade and other recaivables 144 - 144
Cash and cash equivalents 318 - 318
Current liabilities

Trace and other liabilites (285) - {265)
Tax liability (45} - {45)
Non-current liabilities

Deferred tox o o o - 26 {88)
Netassets - - 60 388 528
Cash ' o o 321
Share issued (Contir\gent to performance until FY2020) 300
Contingent consideration {Equity) L o o 853
Fair value of total consideration 7 - o 7_77 _' ' 1,274
Goodwil 746

The trade and other receivables are all considered recoverable. The goodwill is related to assembled workforce and will
not be deductible for tax purposes®

On 7 September 2020, the Company acquired the entire 1ssucd share capital of Difrent, a digital transformation
consultancy focused on the Healthcare sector.

Difrent uses a partnership approach to help its clients te achieve ther digital transformation goals. The company’s
proposition includes strategic consultancy, user centered design, business analysis, business change, procurement,
and front and back end developmenit. Difrent also specialises in rermote-first delivery, enabling organisations to dsliver
positive outcemes entirely remotely.

Difrent was purchased for an initial consideration of £8.8m being £4.8m shares plus £4.0m cash. The cash portion was
funded through an extension of the Group’s revolving credit facility with HSBC to £7m with the balance funded from the
Group's own cash reservas. £0.4m of the cash elsment of tha consideration was withheld panding the finalisation of the
completion accounts, resulting in an adjustment of £0.2m in the initial consideration payable to £8.6m.

Further consideration may be payable based on revenue generated for the 12 months to 31 March 2021 and 12 months
ta 31 March 2022, Further consideration will be calculated at 0.66x revenue growth above £7.6min each period and
there will be o claw back of Consideration Shares if there is a revenue decline below £7m for the 12 months to 31 March

The Panoply Hoeldings Pl
Company number: 105330%6
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolicdated Financidl Statements continued

2021 and £7.6m for the results to 31 March 2022 at Ix the decline, such clawback being limited to consideration shares
with a value of £4.8m. The maximum total consideration 1s capped at £133m.

Any such additional consideration shall be calculated following the agreement of the relevant revenue calculations of
the Company relating to the financial pericds ending on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 and shall be payable by the
alletment and issue of shares in The Panoply. The number of any such additional shares to e allotted and issued shall
be calculated by dividing the defarred consideration payable by a price per share in The Panoply which is the greater
of £1.225 and the valume-weighted average mid-markst price (VWAP) over the 30 business days prior to the relevant
issue date.

Any shares in The Panoply which are allotted and issued as part of the deferred consideration will be done so following
publication of the relevant annual report. All of the Consideration Shares and any further shares issued by way of
deferred consideration shall be subject to customary lock-in for a period of 12 months following the date of their issue
{the Lock-up Period) and orderly market arrangements for a period of 12 months following the end of the Lock-up
Period.

IFRS 3 requires that consideration to be measured at fair value. The total consideration (before calculating its fair valus)
of £10.4m: is further analysed based on the timing of the consideration payments and an estimation of the contingent
consideration likely payabls as at the transaction date to work out the fair value {net present value) of the
consideration as at the transaction date using cost of debt of 2.75% for calculating cash consideration and WACC of

15 0% for calculating completion shares. The fair value of the total consideration is calculated to be £10.0m.

At 31 March 202), the fair value forecast EBITDA for March 2021 are assessed to be higher than the fair value EBITDA
forecast calculated at completion date This is related to the unwinding of the discount rate leading to an estimated
total consideration calculated at £i0.1Im. A debit of £0.1m has been recognised in the Statement of Total Comprehensive
Income in respect of the movement on the deferred contingent consideration liability.

[

Intangibles

Brand - 326 326
Customer lists - 2,265 27755
Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment 29 - 28
Current assets

Trade and other receivables 1348 - 1348
Cash and cash equivalents 550 - 550
Current liabilities

Trade and other liabilities {835) - (835)
Taxes and social security costs (3) - (3
Borrowings (50) - (50)
Non-current liakilities

Deferred tax o - - (ag0) (490)
Net assets o 1039 2,091 3130
Ciqsﬁi - S 3,801
Share issucd {Contingent to performance until FY2020) 4800
Contingent consideration {Equity) 1439
Fair value of total consideration o 10,040
Goodwill N 6,910

The trade and other receivables are all considered recoverable. The goodwill is related to assemble workforce and the
high profitability of the acquired business. it will not be deductible for tax purposes.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/ Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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©n 28 February 2021 the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Keep IT Simple Limited KITS'. KITS typically
delivers managed services, with market-leading expertise in service integration and management, which is seen by
lazge organisations as the highest value-added layer in the technology services stack. KITS has built a reputation in the
public sector for transforming and running live ond critical sérvices such as payments platforms on behdlf of clients

including the Rural Payments Agency and the Department for environment, Food and Kural Affairs ("UerA™).

As at the acquisttion date, KITS had a strong contracted pipeline backlog of £30.3m to be recognised between 2021 and
2024, Given the strong pipeline, the Group agreed to pay a total consideration of £321m, satisfied thraugh the payment
of £7.86m cash, £18.3m of shares and £4 9m paid from free cash on KITS's balance sheet on completion representing
excess cash of its nermalised working capital requirements and £0.4m payable post year end on finalisation of the
completicn accounts,

The cash portion was funded through an extension of the Group's revolving credit facility with HSBC to £20m, of which
£6m was drawn down at completion. The balance of £15m was funded frem the Group’s own cash reserves

Up to £7.0m of shares will be subject to a clawback in the event that KITS does not achieve a revenue target of £26.8m
either during the calendar year 2022 or the calendar year 2023. Should the revenue target not be met in either of those
years, shares with a value of up te £7.0m can be clawed back from the seller with a value equal to the amount by which
the actual revenue in the calendar year 2323 is less than the revenue target

Intangibles

Brand - 682 682
Customer lists - 19,109 19,109
Software - 141 141
Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment 12 - 12
current assets

Trode and other receivables 1,980 - 1,880
Cash and cash equivalents 4,847 - 4.847
Directors Loan 650 - 650
Current liabilities

Trede and other liabilities (1412} - (112)
Tax licability (a12) - {412)
Non-current ligbilities

Deferred tax o - (3448)  (3448)
Netassets ' o - o 5,665 16,484 22,149
Cash ' - 12,406
Share issued {Contingent to performance untit FY2023) 19,271
Deferred consideration {Cash) 487
Fair value of total consideration o 32144
Goodwill 9985

The trade and other receivables are all considered recoverable. The goodwill is related to assemble workforce and the
high profitability of the acquired business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes.

BY  Scouisitions post yeor end

On 30 June 2021, The Panoply Holdings plc acguired the entire issued share capital of Nudge Bigital Limited, ¢ digital
services agency which delivers strategy-led services primarily to the pharmaccutical industry, hedlth sector and, more
recently, to local autharities, with a particular focus arcund cdare pathways. Nudge Oigital Limited, company registration
number 05805455 is incorporated in England and Wales. Its registered office is 8 Garden Close, Watford, England, WDI17
3DP

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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The censideration for the acquisition was £5.0m, satisfied through the poyment of circa £1.75m cash and the issue of
1,09G,476 new ordinary shares in The Panoply.

The Group is currently performing a fair valua review of Nudge Digitol Limited's assets and liabilities and wilk report these
within its next published financial statements.

9, Goodwill and impairment

As at 1 Aprit 2019 20,585 - 20,585

On acguisitions o 15,087 - 15,087
As at 31 March 2020 35,672 - 35,672
On acquisitions 7 17,651 T 17,651
As at 31 March 2021 53,323 - 53,323

Management have cencluded the acquisitions in the year are separate cash generoting units. In the year ended
31 March 2021, there are nine cash generating units {cou).

impairment test :
The value of CCUs is assessed according to the projected performance of the business. This is performed by calculating
the recoverable amount of all CGUs based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations uses a post-tax cash flow
projects based on latest forecasts by each CGU which are extrapolated to cover a b yedar period. The forecasts used are
latest forecasts which have been adjusted for the iImpact of Covid-18 and the Expected impact on inflation. A risk-frea
discount rate is based on WACC using the CAPM model. A risk free rate has been used to mitigate the risk of double
counting risk adjustments as these have been taken into account in the cash flows. As the WACC used in the value-in-
use calculation are post-tax WACC, the implied pre-tax WACC has been subsequently calculated and disclosed below.

Each reporting period, management compares the resulting cash flow projections by CGU to the carrying value of
goodwill. Any rmaterial variance in this calculation results in an impairment charge to the Consolidated Income
Statement. The following table sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to
them. The growth rate used varies between years, with the maximum growth rate shown in the table below As well as
the following assurmptions, EBITDA margin based on histaric and latest forecasts have been used for each CGU and
ranges from 10% to 21%. A long term growth rate of 0.4% based on CPI as at 31 March 2021 was used to extrapolate cash
flows beyond the budget period.

)l PR 4 .
Foundry 4, H+ and Arthurly 6,03 ’ _13% 13%
FutureGaov and Ameo 15,088 13% 5%
Bene Agere 1,845 13% 16%
Questers 2,883 13% 193%
Deeson 1,238 10% 13%
Manifesto 6,052 10% 13%
Greenshoot Labs 130 10% 13%
KITS 9,895 10% 13%
Difrent ) 6,812 10% 13%

Based on the impairment review carried out at the end of 31 March 202, the management believe that the projection of
cash flow from the CGUs exceedad the carrying value of the goodwill

The Panoply Heldings Plc
the panoply// Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Management concludead that the key factor for sensitivity analysis is the revenue growth rate from FY2023 onward. The
discount factor is assumed to be easily determined by way of the known risk of the market and the cost of debt which is
based on the credit facility from HSBC at 25% plus SONIA. If the forecasted annual revenue for each CGU falls by the
following rate shown in the table below, goodwill impairment would be required.

S

Foundry 4

Manifesto

Bene Agere

Questers -32%
Deeson -88%
Greenshoot Labs -68%
FutureGov and Ameo -18%
KITS -43%
Difent . L L S . 7/

Intangible assets are non-physical assets which have been obtained as part of an acquisition or research and
development activitigs, such as innovations, introduction and improvement of products and procedures to improve
existing or new products. All intengible assets have an identifiable future economic bensgfit to the Group at the peoint the
costs are incurred. Customer lists and brands are amartised over a maximum period of six years from the date of
acguisition.

L T ina

Cost

As at 1 April 2018 1051 4,400 53 50 2 5,553
Additions - - - - 126 126
Acquired on acquisition 526 4238 e . .
As at 31 March 2020 g7 8,638 50 50 198 10,513
Additions - - - - 321 321
Acquired on acquisition 1038 21,788 - 141 - 22967
As at 31 March 2021 2,615 30,425 50 191 519_ 33,801
Amortisation -

As at 1 Apnl 2018 73 263 2 1 - 338
Charge for the year 31224 0 5 25 1,583
As at 31 March 2020 392 1487 12 5] 25 1,822
Charge for the year - 408 2,031 10 9 50 2,508
As at 31 March 2021 801 3518 22 15 75 4,431
Net book value

As at 31 March 2021 1,814 26,908 28 176 444 29,370
At 31 March 2020 1185 7,151 38 44 173 8,591
Asat]April2018 978 4@ 48 48 2 524

The Panoply Holdings Pl
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Investmentin subsidiaries

AsatlAprl2018 I - S 32499
Addtions_ - I S 22453
As at 31 March 2020 o 54,952
Additions 435626
As at 31 March 2021 R - ) - ) N 98,578
[kl - . 1o
As at 1 April 2019 and 1 April 2020 Z
Impairment in the year - - B 100
Asat3lMarch202l - oo
FER I Teio
As at 31 March 2021 98,478
As at 31 March 2020 54,852
As at ] April 2020 32,499

Investments in Group undertakings are recorded at cost, which s the fair value of the cansideration paid plus the fair
value of contingent censideration determined at the acquisition date.

At 31 March 202), the Company had the following subsidiaries:

o

Foundry4 Limited

England & Wales

[t i bl EER

7 Savoy Court, London,

e b et
Do T

Digital service consultancy,

100%

(previously Not Binary WC2R OEX software development,
Limited) derta and automartion
Human Plus Limited England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, IT focus in Robotic Process 100%'
WC2R OEX automation (RPA)
iDisruptad Limited England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Ceased trading in the year 100%
WCZR OEX
mManifosto Digital Limited  England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Digital experience agency 100%
WCZR OEX
Questers Giobal Group England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Holding company 100%*
Lirnited WC2ZR OEX
Queasters Resourcing England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Provides dedicated highly skilled 100%
Limited WC2R OEX IT teams from its technology
centrg in Sofig, Bulgaria, ¢ leading
Eurcpean talent peol, to businesses
located in Furope and wotldwide
Arthurly Limited Englond & Wales 7 Savoy Court, Londaon, Capabilities in hyperscale 100%
WC2R OEX cloud projects
Difrent Limited Englond & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Digital rransformation 100%
WCZR 0EX consultancy
Keep IT Simple Limited Englond & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Delivers managed services 100%
WC2R OEX with expertise in service
integration & managerment
Questers Bulgaric EOOD  Bulgana Sofia, 17 H. Ibsen Str, fl 5 European talent pool, to businessas 100%

BG176406553

Bulgaria, a leading Furopean talent
and worldwide

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number. 10533086

the panoply~
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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V2. Proparty, plani and sguipment

Deeson Groapiﬂ-c;ﬁimnéé Eng\ond & 7 savoy COLJ}‘{, Lond'crm,” Holaiﬁé comporﬁ Q0%
Limited Wales WCZR GEX
Deeson Group limited Fnglnnd & wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Digitcl experience agency 100%°
WCZR GEX
Greenshoot Labs Limited  England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, IT development mainly in 100%
WC2R OFX, conversational interfaces and Al
Bene Agere Norden AS Norway Postboks 573 Strategic and management 100%
Sentrum 0105 Cslo digital transfarmation
FutureGov Limited England & Wales  Runway East Digital and service design 100%*
(second rloor) consultancy
20 St Thomas Street, B
London, SE1 9RG E
Us-Creates Limited England & Wales  Runway East Dormant 100% Z
(second Ftoor) c
20 St Thomas Streel, P2
London, SE1 9RG @
Ameo Professional England & Wales  Runway East Strategic and management 100% 3
Services Limited {second Floor) consultancy focusing on digital 3
20 St Thomas Street, transformation g
London, SE1 9RGL ?‘3
FutureGov Australit Pty Australicl Level 4, 29 Kiora Road, Dormant 100% 8
Limited Miranda NSW 2228 c
=
(723

S . _ . . - _ ! . =
Cost of assets E
At 1 ARl 2019 S0 50 185 375 "
Acquisition of subsidiaries 30 37 - 657 ,
Additions n4 17 - 131 ot
Disposals (34) - - (34) )
AdIMarch 2020 L . _20 M4 88 488
Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation bff 14 8 23 45
Charge for the year 70 16 &8 154
Disposal . L T T = T
At3lMarch 2020 - ... - S - S .. S .. 198

Net book value a S ' N -

At 31 March 2020 LR ! 94 290

AL BIMaren 2019 e e L B2 &2 280

i Not Binory Limmited cwnis 100% of Human Plus mited

2 Questars Clobat Group Lmited fully avr Questers Resourcing Lomted Questers Techpea and Questears Bulgana
2 Deason Group Haldings temited owns J00% of Doesan Group Lirmtad

4 FutureGov Lineted awns 100X of FuturcGav Australa Pty imited and US Creatas Limited

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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St

[ET) ) 5 ,31, I :Zl‘iLl [

Cost of assets o - ) N

At 1 April 2020 200 104 185 489

Acquisition of subsidiaries 37 12 - 49

Additions 133 4 - 137

Disposals o o o (73) )] R -0

AtdMarch202 o 297 09 185 B9l

Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation bff 84 24 al 199

Charge for the year 94 13 68 175

Disposal {(64) (m) - (78)

At3March202 n4 26 189 299

Net book value

At 3] March 2021 - 1’83 83

AIMEN2020 T8 80

[N R [

Cost of assets

At 1 April 2019 - -

Additions 1 1

At3lMarch2020 Y

Depreciation

Accurnulated depreciation bff - -

Charge for the year - -

At 31 March 2020 L A o =

Net book vulue T e

AT 31 Mdrch 2020 - 1 1

At3IMarch 2019 - e T
! | Testes

Cost of assets

AL T April 2020 1 1

Additicns . ) o - o L B . 4

At 3] Morch h 2021 i e o . o . .5 5

Depreciation

accumulated depreciation b/f - -

Charge for the year . - ~ o ) 1 1

MBMAICN20N e

F\Tet bookvalue o -

At 31 March 202 4 4

AUIMch2020 ] .

the panoply//

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



13, Leuses

The Group leases various offices and office equipment. Rental contracts vary from rolling 3 month contracts to fixed
coentracts up to several years

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to the lease ond non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate
for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease compenent.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor Lease assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The iease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the leass. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rats, the Group uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee os a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

AL ey L

Right-of-use assets relates to property rentals where the lease term is greater than 12 months in duration. ittems that do
not meet the criteria of a right-of-use asset has been recerded in the income statement andis summarised below.

The Statement of financial Positicn shows the following amounts relating to leases:

2202k

AT R AN & LR

Leased buildings

445 1045
Current 336 603
Non-current N X 390
______ - - 389 999
The maturity profile of the Group's ledse liabilities is as follows:
R O A e B £ sLt
Within cne year 341 614
In more than one year but less than twe years 74 345
In more than two years but less than three years e ) - 73
e 415 1032
Effect of discounting (26) (33}
Lease liakility 389 999

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidatea Fincancial Statements continued

E: Tty
R ol -uon Gus 2 VIR
Cost of assets
1 April 2020 1628 1628
Additions o o 60 60
At 31 March 2021 1,688 1,688
Depreciation
1 April 2020 583 583
Charge for the year 660 660
A B MaC 2 et e V2831243
Net book vaiue
At 31 March 2021 445 445

Tha income statement shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Interest cn lease habilities
Expenses relates to short term leases
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short term leases of low-value assets 1 1

Total cash outflowufor logses

14, Trade ond otherreceivables

- L0708
o o I 2L J B
Trade receivables 12,663 7734
Prepayments 470 335
Otherreceivables 58l 52
Trade and other receivables 14014 8590

Trade receivables at the reporting date comprise dmounts receivable from the provision of the Group's products and
services.

The average credit period taken on the provision of these services is 93 days (2020 87 days).
The breakdown of the trads receivables by currency is explained under financial instrument section.

Trade recelvables are non-interest bearing and generally have a 30 to 60 day payment term. The age of trade
receivables befors impairment is as follows:

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply 7 Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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E .
5,694

Not yet due

Past due 1-30 days 1,800

Past due 3t-8uU days 71

Past due 61-90 days 96

Past due 91-120 days (23)
Past due 121+ days 204 75

Trorc?é receivables before impoirmé_nt B 7_ ) 1338 ; 7,8@
Provision for bad debt _ i B _ {(195) (82)
Trade receivables as at March 12863 7734

Loss rates are calculated based on actual credit losses over the past three years and adjusted to reflect differences
between the historical credit losses and the Group’s view of the economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables. The Group's provision for the loss allowanca is £185k (2020: £82k).

W Tan ThE A Lol i
Otnerreceivables L2898 183
Trade and other receivables 298 83

15, Coshandcash eguivalznts

G D LT Pl

Cash at bank and in hand 573 4B4_

Cash balances are held with a small number of counterparties, with high credit rating. Borrowings were taken out
during the year. These are discussed in note 17

111 SINNQOOV 2 L1Y0d3d TVNNNY 1Z0T

S o T ' 344_- N

Cash dt bank ond__ir_{ ho;‘ud 127’

The Birectors consider that the carrying amount of these assets is a reasonable approximation of their fair value. The
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparty is o bank with a high credit rating

Trade payables
Accruals and other payables
Trade and other payables

Treds payables
Accruals and other payables _
Trade aond other paychbles

17. Borrowings

The Group entered into a three year £5m revolving credit faciity ("RCF") with HSBC UK Bank Plc ("HSBC") on 11 June 2019,
The RCF was amended to £7m in September 2020 and £2m was drawn down for the acquisition of Difrent. In February
2021, the RCF was further extended to £28m and £8m was drawn-down for the acquisition of Keep IT Simpla. Of the total
facility, £13m has been drawn down and £7m remains undrawn. Within the £20m facility The Group can draw-down up
to £6m for working capital purposes with the remainder set aside for acquisitions.

interest is payabkle on a monthly basis at an average margin of 25% plus SONIA.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

The RCF reaches maturity in June 2023,

HSBC has taken security over The Panoply and all of the Group's subsidiaries and their assets in connection with the RCF
Facility. The RCF Facility contains customary terms and covenants, including financial covenants.

Under the terms of the RCF facility, the Group is required to comply with the following financial covenants:
. the adjustad leverage (based on net debt over adjusted EBITDA} should be less than 1.75 and
the interest cover taken as adjusted EBITDA over net finance costs must be moere than 4.
Adjusted EBITDA is taken on a proforma basis, assuming that all companies have been part of the Group for 12 months.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period. As at 31 March 2321, the adjusted
leverage was 0.7 and the interest cover was 38 14.

Fionder e
Bank loans S
Total secured borrowings

LTl R SIS
;

Total unsecured borrowings
Total betrowings

Bank loans

Total secured borrowings
Total borrowings

i aeis with cusion
All revenue relates to contracts with customers The Group have a number of contracts where it receives payments
from customers based on a kbilling schedule. Revenue recognised in excess of invoices raised is included within contract
asset. Where amounts have been invoiced in excess of revenue recognised, the excess is included within contract
liability.

18, Assets ang lighijis oled 1o

Loz

G o LT o ‘
Current contract asset 1144 1413
Loss allowance o ) — _
Total contract asset o 1144 77771,4713
Contract liability - 1841 1454
Total contract liability 1,941 _ 1454

Contract assets have decreased despite the significont increase in revenue as there has been a focus on invoicing
clients on a timely basis tor work performed.

Contract liabilities have increase due to averall contract activity where customers are paying in advance for
performance obligations that have yet to be satisfied.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply /- Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities and how much relates to performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year:

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract licbility taken ovéf_éngcqﬁ}_sit;ié_n
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the period 1,454 388

Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previoysperiods U
U
The majority customer contracts for the Group as at 31 March 2620 are 12 months or less. Long term contracts with
unsatisfied perfarmance obligations as at 31 March 2021 is £nil {2020: £nil).

ag-term contracts

15 Othe

LY GO

PR ST I

Corporation tax

VAT 1471
Other taxes and social security costs 669
Total 3,00
Coap e R e FT Lo
Corporation tax 22 187
VAT ns g
ow o w7 208
var S - . 12 Y
Other taxes and social security costs 41 33
Total 53 157

The Panaply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidatad Financial Statemenls continued

30, Gain/{loss) on the fair vaius movement of deferred and contingent consideration
The consideration payrment of the acquired businesses includes deferred consideration, in the form of equity payment,
contingent upon certain results being achieved over relevant periods.

oo Lalo Lo din

Opening fair value at | April : 16,645 10,849
Initial fair value for deferred contingent consideration on acquisitions in the year 2,083 2172
Settlement of deferred consideration (shares) {1,025} {240)
Settlement of deferred consideration (cash} (121) -
Movermnent on fair value contingent consideration L 4260 3,764
Fair value at 31 March ’ o - 11,752 16,645
Deferred consideration measured at amortised cost 138 713
Deferred consideration on acquisitions in the year 467 -
Acquired as part of business combination - 513
Settlernent in the year (cash} _ (138) {1088)
Amortised cost at 3t March 467 128
Total ) 12,219 16,683
Deferred and contingent consideration as at 31 March:

Deferred and contingent consideration due less than one year 8,478 10,685
Deferred and contingent consideration due more thanene year 3741 5988
Asat3lMarch ' 22 16,683

LG el

PSS

v

Fair value at April . ) 16,545 10,849
Initial fair value for deferred contingent consideration on acquisitions in the year 2,093 2172
Settlermnent of deferred consideration (shares) {n,02s) (240)
Seltlernent of deferrad consideration {cash} {121} -
Movernent on fair value contingent consideration o 4,260 3764
Fair value at 31 March L 1,752 16,645
Detferred consideration measured at amortised cost - 713
Deferred considaration on acquisitions in the year 487 -
Settlement in the year . e )
Ameortised cost at 31 March ) o 467 -
Total R e S - L
Deferred and contingent considgration as at 31 March:

Deferred and contingent consideration due less than one year 8,478 10547
Deferred and contingent consideration due more than one year ) _ 3,741 5,99877
As at 31 March ) 12219 16545

The contingent consideration more than one year has a range of years due from 1 April 2022 to 30 September 2023,
The fair value moverment of £4.3m in the year resulted from the unwinding of the discount and due to changes in the

value of contingent consideration based on latest forecasts and amendments to SPAs. The following SPA changes were
made in the year:

Futdredey

The second deferred earn-out consideration was agreed between the FutureGov sellers and the Group at an amount
equal te a £1,249,290 in respect of the 12 month peried ending on 31 March 2021

The Panoply Hoeldings Pl
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Ameo

The first deferred earn-out consideration was agreed between the Ameo sellers and the Group dt an amount equal to
£416,460 in respect of the 77 month period ending on 31 March 2021 and £889,710 in respect of the 12 month peariod
aending on 31 March 2022.

Grecashitol Labs

The parties to the GSL SPA have agreed that the GSL sellers will receive deferred earn-out consideration equal to a fixed
ameunt of £500,000 in respact of tha 12 month pericd ending on 31 March 2020 (the “First GSL Reference Period”), in
substitution for an amount that would have been previously determined by a caleulation predominantly based on GSL's
EBITDA perforrnance for the First GSL Reference Period. This is to reflect the value of GSLU's revenue growth during the
period

The calculation for the amount of deferred earn-out censideration in respect of the 12 menth period ending on 21 March
2021 (the *Secand GSL Referance Period”) will remain based on the financial performance of GSL for the Second GSL
Reference Period. In addition, the GSL deferred earn-out consideration remaing payable by the Panoply by the issue of
the relevant number of Panoply Shares (calculated in accordance with the GSL SPA) In one tranche following the
publication of the Panoply's accounts for the Tirst ond Second GSL Reference Period (os applicable).

21, Share capiial ond reserves
Share capital and reserves comprise of the following categeries:
- Share capital: The nominal value of shares inissue.

. Share premium: The excess of the value recaived for shares issued over their nominal value less transaction costs
and amounts used to fund bonus issues.

. Merger reserve - Under section 612 of the Cempanies Act 2006, where a company issues equity shares in
consideration for shares in another company and secures at least 90% equity holding in another company, then
the excess consideraticn over the nominal value of the shares issued should be recordsd as a merger relief
reserve. The Group has previously recognised the excess consideration arising on the consideration {cash and
shares) within the share premium rasarve.

1 1 SINNCOOV R LHOdIY IVNNNY 1202

The Consaolidated Statement of Finanecial Pesition and Censclidated Statemant of Changes in Equity have been
restated to reclassify the excess consideration to the merger relief reserve from the share premium reserve. This
reclassification has no impact on the Consolidated Income Statement or retained earnings in the currant or
previous years.

. Capital redemption reserve: The nominal value of shares cancelled
. Foreign exchange reserve: Cumulative gains or losses recognised on retransiation of overseas operations.

. Share-based payment reserve: The cumulative charge recognised under international financial reparting
standards less amounts exercised.

. Retained earnings: Cumulative gains or lossas not recognised elsewhers, less amounts distributed to
shareholders in the current year, an interim dividend of £138k was made by the Company. The Company had
sufficient reserves to make the dividend, however the Company did not file interim accounts with Companies
House to demonstrate the Cempany had sufficient reserves which is a reguirement per The Companies Act 2006
section 836 and 838. The Company are resolving this issue by filing the interim accounts as at the 30 September
2020 and through resclutions to be agreed at the AGM.

SR e dand fa pa i =0

Beginning of year 551

Issued during year o o 258

Shares issued and fully paid - . — - . 804
A:i:;'%lu,\f\f(" TS e LN Ere oo SR

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each - T o -
At 31 March ) 80,428,360 55052267

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements continued

Tl Teote:

PRVNES

15,106 21,202

B il

At April 2012

42,295

Acquisition of subsidiaries 12,466 125 - 10,461 10,586
Settlement of contingent consideration 29 3 - 237 240
As at 31 March 2020 56,052 . 58 5673 25,804 32,028
Acquisition of subsidiaries 14,562 118 - 24,225 24,371
Settlermant of contingent consideration 10,805 107 - 10,897 1,004
snaresissuedto SPscheme 9 - 18 - . 18
As at 31 March 2021 80,428 804 5,691 60,926 67,421

The share price with reference to the acquisitions in the year ranged from B2.0p to 187.5p.

22, Deferred tux
Deferred tax liability

B T e B e TR R It E b TR TR G I M TR o 1) L PRI IETRE S) ERRES xR foon

As at 1 April 1,623

Deferred tax arising from acquisition of subsidiarios 3,964

Change in deferred tax rate -

Moverment in Income statemant for the year {a54) (282)
As at 3l March 5,133 1,623

The Government had announced an increase in corperation tax rate to 25%. As at the balance sheet date, this had not
been enacted and thersefore has not been reflected in current year's trading results.

Coforiod tax dsaot

NERITE) V) S R T T

&

As at 1 April
Deferred tax arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
Movement in income statement for the year
Asat 3IMarch

[EER (k)

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised

Potential tax benefit available for offset against future profits in the jurisdiction in which
the loss arises. N 8 ) 131

73, Ultirmots

rolaled party e :
In tha opinion of the Directors there is no ultimate controlling party All other transactions and bolances with related
parties, which are presented for the Group and the Company, are detailed below.

STETTTIO e T L

Transactions with subsidicries comprise sale and purchase of services in the ordinary course of business at normal
commergial terms. Total income accruad in the Company as d result of management fee was £1.413k (2020: £1,231k).
During the year the Company received £8,358k (2020: £1678k} dividends from its subsidiaries (refer to Cormpany
Statemant of Cash Flow) There was also purchases totalling £134k {2020: £169k). Intercompany loans to and from
subsidiaries for the year are noted in the table on the next page.

The Fanoply Heldings Plc
the panoply /- Company number: 10533096
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Balances outstanding at 31 March 2021 and 2020 in raspect of the transactions betweean Company and its subsidiaries
are shown below:

wan i Laoar Co

= I L T

Other receivables from Group undert

oklﬁgs h o 7497

Intercompany loans to Group undertakings* 104 577
Intercompany loans from Group undertakings o (5,040) (3,22?')
Total _ B {a139) (1890)

Other receivables from Group undertakings relates to management fees due to the Company from the subsidiaries. As
at 31 March 2021, the balance was £1,150k (2020; £760k), with a provision of £353k {2020: £nil).

*Intercompany loans to Group undertakings are at the market rate of 3% and are repayable on demand. As at 31 March
207, the balance was £1,088k (2020: £1,027k) with a provision of £882k (2020: £450k).

In addition, the Company owed £2k (2020 £2k) to subsidiaries which is included within tha trade payables

The expected credit loss on intercompany receivables and loans are £1,335k based on actual credit losses over the past
three years and adjusted to reflect ditferences between the historical credit losses and the Company's view of the
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. The Company's provision for the loss allowance as at

31 March 2021 was £1,338k (2020: £460k).

Transactions with subsidiaries comprise sale and purchase of services in the ordinary course of business at normai
commercial terms. Total intercompany sales excluding to parent Cempany were £374k (2020 £853k).

tiens with Directors
Details of Directors’ interests in the Company’s shares, service contracts and remunearation are set out in the report of
the Board to the members on Remuneration report on pages 82 and 93,

Trein

The director's loan provided to Neal Gandhi of £50k in the year ending 31 March 2018 from its subsidiary, Questers
Resourcing Limited remains outstanding as at 31 March 2021 This 1s interest free and payable on demand.

In December 2018, the Group acquired Not Binary Limited. Neal Gandhi and Oliver Rigby owned shares in Not Binary
Limited totalling 5 per cent and | per cent respectively. The fair value of deferred contingent consideration shares due to
the directors is valued ot £102k, which relates to consideration due less than one year

3

In Dacermber 2018, the Group acquired Questers Global Group Limited. Neal Gandhi owned shares in Questers Global
Group Limited totalling 585 per cent. The fair value of deferred contingent considaration shares due to him is valued at
£1,34lk (£973% being deferred consideration less than one year and £368k due from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023).

SUTRITEATT L 1

k]

240 Fin EAR IS

1i B
In comman with othor businesses, the Group is exposcd to risks that arise from its use of financial instruments. This note

describes the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure
them. The significant acceunting pelicies regarding financial instrurmeants are disclosed in Note 2.

e s RHE ATt

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:
. Trade and other raceivables
. Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Controct Assets
. Deferred and contingent consideration
. Lease liabilities

Borrowings

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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continued

sirancis Gesots fI315] t =0 G0 s i

The book values of the financial instruments (excluding equity shares) used by the Group, from which financial risk

arises, are as folfows (note prepayments and other receivables are not financial assets under IFRS 9 but are disclosed
for ease of reconciliation):

(SRS I

| ITEID ST A Lo
12,863

Trade receivables

Prepayments 470

Other receivatles 581 52i
Contract assets 1144 1413
Cash and cash equivalents - R e . 5734 4814
As at 31 March - 20,892 14,617

Financial assets at amortised cost include the following debt investments which is included within "Other receivables:

Loans to related parties 50 50
As ot 31 March 50 50

*The fair value of financial assets carried at amertised cost approximates to the carrying amounts because of the short
maturity of these instruments.

[T E e et BT L 0.t L S I NN R y

Trade payables 3,998 -2,560

Other payables 263 756
Accruals 1,422 1027
Borrowings b5 29
Deferred and contingent consideration 467 138
Lease liabilities ) 338 609

As at 3] March B 6,639 59

R P T R B TS Z PEEIES

Borrowings ’ 13,000 5,000
Lease liabilties - 53 390
s at 31 March 13083 5390

At a Company level, the principal financial instrurments used from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:
. Intercompany loans and other receivables due from Group undertakings

. Cash and cash equivalents

. Trade and other payables

. Deferred and contingent consideration

. Borrowings

. Intercompany loans due to Group undertakings

_?_-:'._','-.'I:\ D R T B '
Other receivables 298

Gther receivables from Group undertakings 797
Intercompany loans to Group undertakings* 104

Cash and cash equivalents 344 147

As at 31 March 1543 1667

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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*The fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost approximates to the carrying amounts because of the short

maoturity of these instruments.

Accruals and other payables

Deferred consideration

Amounts owed to Group undertakings
Asat3iMarch

Bror'réimings
As at 31 March

Foo SESstn

financial instruments in the category “fair value through profit or loss” are measured in the Consolidated Statermnent of
Financial Position at fair value. Fair valuss of financial instruments are recognised and measured of measurements are
disclosed by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

- Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabifitics

. Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for assets or liability, ither
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices}

- Level 3 - Inputs for asset or liability that are not based an observable market data (that is unobservable inputs)

The following table presents the Group’s and Company’s assets and lighilities that are measured at fair value at

31 March 2021

R P PP i

Contingent consideration (See below) -

6penmg balance
Additions
Settlemsants

S SINAODOVY R L4043 IVNNNY (202

Fair value movement deferred centingent consideration (reflected in Consolidated

Income Stqtgment)
Deferrec contingent consideration {See Nate 20}

2B Liskm 180

2,092

(n,145)

4,260 3,764
11,752 16,545

The Group finances its activities through eguity and bank financing. No speculative treasury transactions are
undertaken, and no derivative contracts were entered into. Financial assets and liakllities includs those assets and
liabilitics of a financial nature, namely cash and borrowings. The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks arising
from its operating activities, which are monitored by the Directors and are reported in the Risk and Risk Managament

section on pages 7/bto /7.

ol Tl

The Group seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and to
invest cash assets safely and profitably. The Group policy throughout the year has been to ensure continuity of funding
by a combination available bank facility and the issue of equity. The following table shows the contractual maturities of

financial habilities measured at amortised cost:

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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MNoles Lo the Conso

lec;de and other

payables (Note 18} 5,681 - - - 5681 56 - - - 561
Borrowings {Note 17) 554 13148 - {647) 13,055 488 13148 - (647) 13,000
Deferred consideration

{Note 20} 467 - - - 487 - - - - -
Lease lhabilities

{Note 13) 341 74 - {26) 389 - - - - -
Amount owed to Group

undertakings {(Note 23} - - - - - 5040 - - - 5,040

7043 w222 - (673)195%2 610013148 - (647) 18601

Trads and other

payables 4,343 - - - 4,343 494 - - - 494
Borrowings {Note 17} 173 144 5048 (338) 5,029 144 144 5048 (338) 5,000
Deferred consideration

{Note 20) 138 - - - 138 . - - - _
Lease liabilities

{Nota 13) 814 345 73 {33) 999 - - - - -
Amount owed to Group

undertokings {(Note23) - - - - - 327 - - __ 327

5,268 489 512 (369) 10,509 3,866 144 5048 (336) 872

The macro economic impact of the Covid-18 pandemic is uncertain, and continues to evolve, with potential disruption
to financial markets including to currenciss, interest rates, borrowing costs and the availability of debt financing.

However, the Group's financial risk management strategies seek to recduce our potential exposure in relation to these
risks.

The Group has a combined cash and cash equivalent of £5.7m, providing significant headroom over short term liquidity
requirements.

The Group's operating activities result in customer credit risk, for which provisions for expected credit losses are
recognised. This customer related credit risk is generally short term in duration and while Covid-18 impacts on our
custormers it had no material impact on credit loss provisioning at 31 March 2021 and remains a risk in relation to this
matter for the year ending 31 March 2022,

The Greup's policy on capital structure is to maintain o tevel of gross cash available, which the Board considers to be
adequate to fund a range of potential EBITDA movemsnts, tlaken from a series of business projections and scenarios.
Based on these business projections which takes inte account the impact of Covid-19 the Board believes it has
sufficient cash rescurces at its disposal to pursue its chosen strategy of maximising sharcholder returns fromots
customer base.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that trading entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns,
while maximising the returns to shareholders through the organisation of cash and equity balances. The capital
structure of the Group consists of cash at bank and in hand and equity atinbutable 1o equity holders of the parent,

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply ~ Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclesed in the Consclidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on page 1.

The Directors sesk to promote recurring revenues to a wide range of business customers, to reduce the risks associated
with fluctuations in the UK ecenomy and to increase the long-term value to customers and sharehoiders.

The doclaration and payrment by the CGreup of any future dividends on the Ordinary Shares and the amount will depend
an the results of the Group's operations, its financial condition, cash requirements, future prospects, profits availabls for
distribution and other factors deemed to be relevant at the time. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of any pay-outs to the shareholders, return capital to the shareholders, issue new shares
and make borrowings or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group's policy is to monitor trade and other receivables and avoid significant concentrations of credit risk. The
principal credit risk arises from trade receivables Aged receivables reports are reviewed maonthly as a minimum. The
credit control function follows a policy of sending reminder letters thot start once an invoice is over 30 days overdue.
These culminate in a legal letter with the threat of legal action. In a limited number of cases, legal action has been

pursued. An aged analysis of receivables is shown in Note 14 to the financial statements.

in line with IFRS 9, the Group assesses the credit risk balances at each reporting date, to assess whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition The simplified approach has been applied
to trade debtors to measure ths loss allowance at an armount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss (ECL) at initial
recognition and throughout its life. The credit risk is assessed by reviewing the contract income amount compared to
the arncunt suzsequently recovered. The Group does not identify specific concentrations of credit risk with regards to
trade and other receivables, as the amounts recognised represent a large number of recevables from various
customers, including some government authoerities. Assessment of the average expected cradit 038 across the Group is
deemed to be low over a pericd of 36 months to 31 March 2021 with the exception of Bene Agere. The bad debt provision
as at 31 March 2021 was assessed to be £195k (2020 £82k}. Trade receivables are stated net of an impairment for
estimated irecoverable amounts to £13.0m (2020: £7.7m). This impairment has baen detarmined by reference to known
issues. The Group was not adversely affected by the impact of Covid-18 on the expected credit loss assessment.

write-offs are made when the irrecoverable amount becomes certain. During the year £108k of bad debt was written off
against the provision which pnmarily relates to Bene Agere. The Group's main risk relates to trade receivables which are
stated net of the provisions above. No collateral is held as security against these debtors and the carrying value
represents the fair value.

The expected loss rates are based con the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months befare 31 March 2021
and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward- looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the recelvables. The group has identified that the GDP and the unemployment rate of the countries in which it
sells its goods and services are the maost relevant facters, and accordingly adjusts the historicd! loss rates based on
axpected changes in these factors.

The Group’s main foreign currency risk is the short-term risk associated with accounts receivable and payable
denominated in currencies that are not the subsidiaries functional currency. The risk arises on the difference In the
sxchange rate between the time invoices are raised/received and the time invoices are settled/paid. For sales
denominated in foreign currencies the Group wilt try te ensure that the purchases asscciated with the sale will be in the
same currency. Most monetary assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in pound sterling except for the
following currency in the table below, and which are included in the financial statements at the sterling value based an
the exchange rate ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Sensitivity analysis in foreign exchange rates show an increase or decrease by 10% with all other variables held
constant, the net assets altributable to shareholders would increase or decrease by approximately £234k (2020: £18k).

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk for the Group trade receivables at the reporting date was:

Né;wegian Krone {NCK) 168 248

European Unicn currency {EUR) 57 181
United States of America Dollar (USD) N _ 85 40
As at 31 March ) 840 469

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes Lo the Consaolicated Financidl Siatermenis continued

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk for Group cash and cash equivalent at the reporting date by was:

European Union currency (EUR)

Norwegian Krone (NOK)

Australian Dollar (AUD} 2 -
Bulgarian Lev (BGN) 43 -
Serbian Dinar {RSD) - 58
United States of America Dollar (USD) I I I I <
As at 31 March S 690 696

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk for the Group trade and other payables at the reporting date was.

ush 5 1
EUR - g0
NOK 265 441
BON e " 713 103
Asat3March N . 348 846

in the year ended 31 March 202], the Group has an RCF facility balance of £123m dencominated in GBP. The facility has
been taken out on a floating rate basis (SONIA) for a period of 3 years up to June 2023 Intsrest rate risk arises on the
change in SONIA which affects the interest payable by the Group

Sensitivity analysis in interest rates show that with an increase in 100 basis points, with all other variables held constant,
the net assets attributable to shareholders would increase or decrease by approximately £255k Managerment
periodically reviews the interest rates with lenders to manage the interest rate risk associated with the loans.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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2&. Men-cash investing and )
Non-cash investing and financing activities disclosed in other notes are:

. Partial settlement of a business combination through the issue of shares {scc note 8)
. Acquisition of nght-of-use assets (see note 13)

ition

=hticcor

This section sets out an analtysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Net (debt)/cash at 1 April 2019 - sy (iS00 5650 4149

[y~

o

o

New leases - (127} (127) - (127) >
New borrowings (5,000) - (5,000) - (5,000) g
Loans acquired on acquisition {z07) - (507) - (s07) =
Cash flows 507 629 o138 (1038) 100 2
Not (dom)/cash as at 31 March 2020 {5,000) (999} (5,939} 4614 {1,385) 3
: - 2

New borrowings (8,000) - (8,000} - (8,000) ;
Loans acquired on acquIsitions (55} - (55} - (5) »
Cash flows N ) - 810 610 1120 1730 g
Net (debt)/cash at 31 March 2021 (13,055) (389) (13, 444) 5,734 (7,10} 8
Net cash increasc in the year due to an increase in trading and cash acquired on acquisition offset by a cash outflow =
for acguisitions completed in the year. il
b = )

TETEY

Net cash at 1 Aprif 2019 - - - 2782

&

New borrowings {5,000) (1.000) (5,000) - =
New borrowings ~ non cash items - (2,227) (2,227} -

Cash flows e ] T = (288)

Net (debt}fcash as at 3 March 2020 {5,000) (3,227) (8.227) 147 &
New borrowings {8,000} - (8,000} -

New borrowings - non cash items - (1813} {1813} -

Cash flows - - - - 197

Net (debt)/cash at 31 March 2021 (13,000) {5,040)  (18,040) 344

Nat cash increase in the year due to increase borrowings offset by a cash outflow for acquisitions completed in the
year.

Piiot Vel o ﬁiau;%

Under section 812 of the Compomes Act 2008, where a company issues equity shares in consideration for shares in
ancther company and secures at least 90% equity helding in another company, then the excess consideration over the
nominal value of the shares issued should not be recorded within the share premium reserve.

The Group has previously recognised the excess censideration arising on the censideration (cash and shares) within
the share premium reserve. The Gonsolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity have been restated to reclassify the excess consideration to the merger reserve from the share premium
reserve This reclassification has no impact on the Consolidated Income Staterment of retained earnings in the current
or previous years, The only impact to the Statement of Financial Position is displayed in the Statement of Changes of
Equity and therefore no Statement of Financial Positicn has been presented as at 31 March 2019,

The Panaply Heldings Plc
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22, Posi-boulance shiest evonts

©n 30 June 2021, The Panoply Holdings ple acquired the entire issued share capital of Nudge Digital Limited, a digitafl
services agency which delivers strategy-led services primarily to the pharmaceutical industry, health sector and, more
recently, to local authorities, with a particular focus around care pathways. Nudge Digital Limited, company registration
number 05805455 is incorporated in England and Wales. Its registered office is 8 Garden Close, Watford, England,

WDI17 30P

The consideration for the acquisition was £5.0m, satisfied through the payment of cireca £175m cash and the issue of
1,090,476 new ordinary shares in The Panoply.

The Group is currently performing a fair value review of Nudge Digital Lmited's assets and liabiities and will report these
within its next published financial statements.

The Panoply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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